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Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) was established
in 2009 and listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 15 December 2010 (Stock Code: 01282.HK). The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of financial services, property investment and
development, automation and securities investment.

The Group holds licences to provide comprehensive financial services,
including securities and futures trading, corporate finance, asset
management, wealth management, money lending, and precious
metal trading in Hong Kong and the PRC. After years of operations
and experience, the Group has become one of the most trusted
partners in wealth management and financial planning in Hong
Kong.

The Group’s property investment and development segment has
been under rapid development and expansion in recent years. It is
engaged with a number of property projects in Hong Kong and
various major cities in the PRC, covering projects including
commercial complexes, upscale residences, hotels, commercial
apartments and office buildings. It will continue to explore quality
property projects in the Greater Bay Area to increase its land reserves
for future development.
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The Group is one of the leaders in the distribution of automation
equipment in the PRC. It maintains a close relationship and
collaboration with key business partners in the PRC. It is committed
to seizing the opportunities brought by the smart manufacturing
transformation under “Made in China 2025" and the opportunities
for 5G market development.

The Company is a constituent of the MSCI China Small Cap Index
and a number of Hang Seng Family of Indexes, including Hang Seng
Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite SmallCap Index, Hang Seng
Composite MidCap & SmallCap Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index — Financials, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong
Index, Hang Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong SmallCap Index, Hang
Seng Stock Connect Hong Kong MidCap & SmallCap Index, Hang
Seng SCHK Mainland China Companies Index, Hang Seng SCHK
ex-AH Companies Index. It is also one of the eligible stocks in the
Shenzhen-Hong Hong Stock Connect. The inclusion of the Company
in these indexes reflects the market recognition of its efforts over the
past few years.

Adhering to its philosophy of “sustainable development and giving
back to the community”, the Group is committed to providing all-
rounded quality products and services to maximise return for its
shareholders, and at the same time contributing to the well-being of
the society as a whole. Looking ahead, the Group will rise to the
challenges of the formidable business environment and look for local
and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Lau Wan Po — Vice Chairman
(resigned on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin
Mr. Huang Wei

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chun Bong — Chairman
Mr. Zhang Chi

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew — Chairman
Mr. Yao Jianhui

Mr. Wong Chun Bong

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman

Mr. Lau Wan Po (resigned on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin

Mr. Huang Wei
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STRATEGIC COMMITTEE
Mr. Yao Jianhui — Chairman
Mr. Lau Wan Po
(resigned on 7 March 2022)
Mr. Li Minbin
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Yao Jianhui
Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISER
Baker & McKenzie

AUDITOR
BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

18/F., Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D,

P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100,

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LISTING VENUE/STOCK CODE
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited/01282

BOARD LOT
4,000 shares

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://Amwww.hk1282.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BERE

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=t—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
=l T TF —E-NEFE E-N\F ZE—+F
LUEHOTIGT  HKS'million HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEAT BEET BEBT BEET BEET
(Re-presented)

(BHER)

OPERATING RESULTS BEEE
Revenue (Note 1) Wi (M) 2,614.8 1,573.5 10,887.8 1,483.2 2,825.3
Gross profit (Note 1) EF (M) 432.8 338.1 1,953.7 511.5 8713
EBITDA (Note 182) EBITDA (P 1 X2) 119.7 (135.5) 1,930.4 922.0 1,099.0
EBIT (Note 1&3) EBIT (Pt 1 & 3) 53.6 (187.3) 1,851.5 901.2 1,059.2
Profit/(loss) from BIERF,(E8)

operations (Note 1) (PHET) 66.0 (203.3) 1,830.8 890.5 1,053.4
(Loss)/profit attributable AR AJEEA AR

to owners of the (B18),/ %7

Company (189.0) (217.3) 684.3 670.8 869.2
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As of 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H

2021 2020

T2 —F ke
HKS'million JEsISSnlllitely
BHEER BEAT
(Re-presented)

2019 2018 2017
—T-nEFE ZE-NF ZE—tF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million

BEAT BEAT BEAET

(BHER)

FINANCIAL POSITION B AR
Total assets EEGE 9,884.2 33,1242 29,439.1 10,781.2 10,961.0
Net assets BEFE 6,334.0 10,862.1 10,761.3 6,964.8 7,769.4
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,765.4 7,789.3 42356 1,456.4 3,602.3
KEY STATISTICS FEHF
Gross profit margin (Note 1) EFI= (KfzE1) 17% 21% 18% 35% 31%
Operating profit/(loss) mEER/ (BE) %

margin (Note 1) (PHEET) 3% (13%) 17% 60% 37%
Net (loss)/profit margin FE(B1R), /SR (1%) (7%) 9% 46% 32%
Return on equity [N EIEES (1%) (5%) 9% 10% 12%
Interest coverage (Note 4)  #| BB EH K (Mi:t4) (0.8) (9.4) 3.7 11.1 53.3
(Loss)/earnings per share &A% (E512) /&7

(HK cents) (&)

— Basic — HA (0.60) . 2.55 2.60 3.90

— Diluted — (0.60) 0.71) 2.55 2.60 3.90
Dividend per share (HK cent)  &FR&ALS (B1l) - - - 0.20 0.51
Current ratio TEDLL & 1.5 1.6 1.3 14 24
Notes: 5T

1.

The revenue, gross profit, EBITDA, EBIT, profit/(loss) from operations, gross profit 1.
margin and operating (loss)/profit margin in 2021 and 2020 represent the
operating results from continuing operations.

EBITDA is calculated at profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing operations 2.
subtracted by finance costs — net and adding back depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets.

EBIT is calculated at profit/(loss) before income tax from continuing operations 3.
subtracted by finance costs — net.

Interest coverage is calculated at (loss)/profit before income tax from continuing 4.

operations subtracted by finance costs — net and divided by finance cost of the
Group.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#fi€m&EBEER A A
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Revenue Revenue
& Y ==
(APPROX. HK$2,614.8 MILLION) (APPROX. HK$1,573.5 MILLION)
(#)2,6148EBAET) (491,573 5EH8E7T)
1,767.7 (67.6%) 803.3 (51.0%)

Year 2021
20214

Year 2020
20204

224.8 (14.3%)
545.4 (34.7%)

53.1 (2.0%)
794.0 (30.4%)

o ;(szgg;gv;;tg::nt @ Financial Services and others @) Automation () WEIRE MERE O SRR &M @ =9t

Revenue Gross Profit
Y == EF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B8ET) (BBET)
1,953.7
10,887.8
871.3
511.5
2,825.3 2,614.8 432.8
338.1
1,483.2 1,573.5
(Year) (Year)
(1) (1)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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EBITDA (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
EBITDA KATHEE AEM (B5E),EF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(AB8#T) (BEET)
1,930.4
869.2
6708 6843
1,099.0
922.0
119.7
O (217.3) (189.0)
| |
(135.5)
(Year) (Year)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (&fn) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 (&F{p)
Total Assets Net Assets
EEHE EEFE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(&%) (&%)
33,124.2 107613 10,862.1
29,439.1
7,769.4
6,964.8
6,334.0
10,961.010,781.2 9,884.2
(Year) (Year)
(1) (%19)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a revenue from continuing operations of
approximately HK$2,614.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 66.2% in revenue from approximately HK$1,573.5
million as recorded in the previous financial year. The increase in
revenue was mainly due to the increase in scale of the property sales
made handover to the customers in the Year as compared with those
in the previous year.

The Company recorded a loss for the Year of approximately HK$68.8
million (2020: approximately HK$580.8 million). The decrease in the
loss for the Year as compared to the previous financial year was
primarily attributable to the fair value gain on investment properties
of approximately HK$144.2 million (as compared to a fair value loss
on investment properties of approximately HK$607.2 million for the
previous financial year), which was partially offset by the increase of
impairment losses on financial assets and contract assets of
approximately HK$393.1 million for the Year as compared to
HK$94.1 million for the previous financial year.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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MARKET OVERVIEW

Plagued by the pandemic for more than two years, China has
attached great importance to Hong Kong’s economy and people’s
livelihood since the beginning of 2021. It pushed ahead with the
14th Five-Year Plan, deepened the development of the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, and launched policies to
benefit people and the youth and help Hong Kong better integrate
into China’s development.

Benefiting from the global recovery and the counter-cyclical policy of
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Hong
Kong's imports and exports grew rapidly, providing opportunities for
the financial development in the Greater Bay Area and providing
sufficient impetus for Hong Kong's economy to turn around in 2021.

Although Hong Kong’s tourism, retail and aviation sectors have yet
to return to pre-pandemic levels, the overall economy has recovered.
Hong Kong's gross domestic product (“GDP") grew 7% year-on-year
in the first three quarters of 2021, demonstrating a solid recovery.
The city’s economy is currently expected to grow 6.4% in 2021. The
unemployment rate and the underemployment rate over the same
period have improved markedly, and the imports and exports of
goods, securities, bond and property management markets have also
shown brisk performance.

Driven by the return of Chinese concept stocks and the listing of
innovative biotechnology companies, Hong Kong, as one of the
international financial centres in the global market, is not only open
to the world but also connected to the Mainland China. It has a
profound “financial gene”. In 2021, the amount of equity financing
in the Hong Kong stock market was HK$767.4 billion, a year-on-year
increase of 3.2%. IPOs performed strongly. A total of 97 companies
were successfully listed, with an average of nearly 8 IPOs launched
per month. The funds raised from refinancing stood at HK$438.6
billion, an increase of 26.72% over the same period last year.

In the face of the spread of the variants of the novel coronavirus,
Delta and Omicron, China quickly took a series of prevention and
control measures to effectively bring the pandemic under control.
The Chinese economy showed strong resilience. Under the
background of the orderly economic recovery and the goal of
stabilising land prices, house prices and market expectations, China
tightened and loosened regulations on the real estate sector in the

12 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff @t EBHER A A
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first and second half of 2021, respectively. The real estate market
was regulated in a record of 651 times, a year-on-year rise of 33%.
Moreover, the Chinese government has always insisted on the
positioning that houses should be for living in, not for speculation.
The sales of commercial housing across the country increased to
RMB18.7 trillion, and the sales area reached 1.83 billion square
metres, both hitting new record highs.

With the gradual improvement of the intelligent manufacturing
system, the industrial 4.0 era represented by artificial intelligence, big
data, 5G and other technologies has come, and a growing number
of companies are beginning to expand their automation business.
The deployment of 5G infrastructure and the advent of 5G
smartphones in the PRC contributed to the increase in demand for
SMT equipment. The sales of the global SMT equipment market
amounted to US$5.8 billion in 2021 and is expected to reach US$8.2
billion in 2028, with a compound annual growth rate of 5.1% (2022-
2028).

Looking ahead, Hong Kong's economy is expected to be on the track
of rapid growth as the Covid-19 pandemic is under control and the
external environment remains stable. Building a diversified,
sustainable and dynamic financing platform has always been the
direction of Hong Kong's efforts to enhance its competitiveness. In
addition to consolidating and leveraging Hong Kong's advantages as
an international financial hub, China’s move to expand domestic
demand will provide new growth impetus for Hong Kong's economic
development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the business of financial services,
property investment and development, automation and securities
investment. In January 2021, the Company won “the best financial
company” award at the 5th “Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards”,
affirming its wide recognition in Hong Kong.

Over the past years, the Group has been adhering to its philosophy
of “sustainable development and giving back to the community”
with its commitment to provide all-rounded quality products and
services to maximise return for its shareholders and contribute to the
well-being of the society. In 2022, the Group will rise to the
challenges of the formidable business environment and look for local
and overseas partners to promote the overall development of the
Group.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

The Group provides comprehensive financial services in Hong Kong
through its subsidiaries, and has been striving to connect the capital
markets onshore and offshore over the years. The Group makes
contribution to the economy through financial services and offers all-
aspect financial services to its customers based on its operational
concept of being stable and innovative.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the financial services segment
netted approximately HK$102.7 million in revenue (2020:
approximately HK$246.8 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 58.4% and approximately 3.9% of the
Group's total revenue (2020: 15.7%). The operating loss amounted
to approximately HK$181.9 million (2020: operating profit
approximately HK$145.4 million).

Securities Brokerage Services

The securities brokerage team is committed to providing its clients
with more comprehensive, professional and convenient services over
the past years to enlarge the Group’s market share, and therefore,
trading volume of securities in the market rises year by year. It
continued to adjust its marketing strategies by advertising through
multiple channels, including radio advertising, television advertising
and popular social networks and allocated more resources on the
compilation of research and analysis reports to seize the opportunities
presented by the vigorous securities market. With more popular
functions added to the eTrading mobile application, clients tended to
conduct more trades online as a result of better investment
experience.

Corporate Finance Services

The corporate finance team provided sponsoring, underwriting and
placement services to clients for their fund-raising activities in equity
and debt capital market. Financial advisory services and other
corporate advisory services were also provided to clients for their
corporate finance activities including restructuring, mergers and
acquisitions. In 2021, the Group acted as sponsor, joint bookrunners
and joint lead managers for various applications of IPO and offered
assistance to the issuance of private and public securities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Asset Management Services

The asset management team provided an array of services including
fund management, discretionary account management and
investment advisory services to high-net-worth individuals,
corporations, and institutional clients in global markets. As at the
date of this report, it acts as the investment manager for 3
segregated portfolio company funds with 6 segregated portfolios.
Further, it also provided investment advisory services to institutional
clients on a wide range of investment products in the financial
markets. As at 31 December 2021, the total assets under
management amounts to approximately HK$5.47 billion.

Wealth Management Services

Hong Kong, as one of the leading wealth management hubs, has
been providing comprehensive financial services to onshore and
offshore clients. With its geographical advantages and long-term
experience in serving the PRC market, Hong Kong is expected to
maintain its leading position in Greater China wealth management
and further development of Hong Kong wealth management
industry is expected. In 2021, The Company can provide diversified
wealth management services to its clients so as to fulfill their different
wealth management needs.

Money-lending Services

The Group holds a money lender’s licence and is a member of
TransUnion Limited. It provided long-term secured loans such as
share mortgage and property mortgage and short-term unsecured
term loans. In 2021, the Group continued to optimize its money
lending business structure by adopting a conservative approach and
tightened loan approval procedures to strengthen its risk and capital
management.

Precious Metal Trading Services

The Group hold a AT membership of the Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society to engage with the businesses of 99 Gold, HKD
Kilo Gold, London Gold/Silver and Loco Silver. In 2021, it continued
to provide clients with quality online trading services of gold and
silver as well as comprehensive precious metal trading business for
goods and physical gold and silver and render services of investment
management and investment advisory for them to capture
investment opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV E

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the property
investment and development segment was approximately
HK$1,767.7 million (2020: approximately HK$803.3 million),
accounting for approximately 67.6% (2020: approximately 51.0%)
of the Group’s total revenue. The increase in revenue was mainly due
to the increase in scale of property sales made handover to the
customers during the year as compared with those in 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the operating profit of the
property investment and development segment was approximately
HK$98.0 million, compared to the operating loss of approximately
HK$388.0 million recorded in the previous year. The turnaround from
the operating loss to operating profit was primarily due to the
increase in gross profit and fair value gain on investment properties
located in the PRC of approximately HK$144.2 million.

The Group's property investment and development segment is mainly
rooted in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. At
present, it has implemented a total of 3 property investment and
development projects in 2 cities, namely Shenzhen and Ganzhou. The
development projects include commercial complexes, upscale
residences, hotels, commercial apartments and office buildings.

The Company also has certain investment properties in Hong Kong
for the purpose of leasing.

AUTOMATION BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the
automation segment hit a new record and was approximately
HK$794.0 million (2020: approximately HK$545.4 million),
representing an increase of 45.58% over the last year and accounting
for approximately 30.4% (2020: approximately 34.7%) of the
Group's total revenue. The increase in revenue was mainly due to the
China’s manufacturing industry has recovered from the Covid-19
which the factories have resumed the production and placed orders
for machines and devices.
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As China has entered the industrial 4.0 era, the manufacturing
industry in China accelerates the intelligent transformation. The
“Intelligent Factory” and “Intelligent Manufacturing” have increased
the demand for a large number of SMT equipment. Gallant Tech
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, focuses on the sales and
technical services of advanced intelligent-manufacturing equipment,
including SMT and semiconductor manufacturing equipment, and
also provides equipment leasing, financing and other ancillary
services. Gallant Tech Limited will continuously benefit from the
development opportunities arising from the transformation of the
manufacturing industry in China. In addition, the Group will keep
allocating more resources in intelligent manufacturing service sector,
and provide advanced intelligent-manufacturing equipment and
solutions to the electronic manufacturing industry in China, so as to
serve the real economy and facilitate its clients to march towards the
industrial 4.0 era.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

The Group has been investing in listed shares in Hong Kong, the PRC
and foreign countries and adjusting its investment strategy to ensure
that it is sufficiently prudent to cope with the uncertainties in the
financial market. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
securities investment business generated a loss of approximately
HK$49.6 million (2020: approximately HK$22.0 million). The
operating loss of the segment amounted to approximately HK$67.8
million (2020: approximately HK$62.2 million).

OTHER INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company held 32% equity interest in
Yunnan International Holding Group Limited, an associate principally
engaged in the business of clean energy, health, investment
management, new energy and financial services. Through the
cooperation with the shareholders of the associate, the Company
vigorously participated in the strategic construction brought by The
Belt and Road Initiative.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV E

PROSPECT

With the risks and challenges posed by the widespread of the
Covid-19 and variants of the virus, the economic growth in mainland
China and Hong Kong has been largely affected. Nonetheless, the
Group wishes that the Covid-19 will be gradually brought under
control with the availability and improvement of vaccines.

The Group realizes that the demand for the application of fintech has
been on an increasing trend in the financial industry. Therefore, the
Group is delighted to allocate resources to optimize its eTrading
mobile application with a view to providing better client support
services and up-to-date promotional and marketing strategies to
satisfy the investors with new investment pattern. The Group expects
to increase the number of clients in mainland China by raising its
brand awareness in the mainland market with better equipped
trading platform.

With the emergence of impacts from policies such as “Three Red
Lines” and bank credit red lines, despite minor adjustment of them,
the Group still remains prudent as to the overall condition in the real
estate development industry throughout the year. Facing economic
pressure, the Group will try to seize market opportunities, optimize
its debt structure, enhance the flexibility of capital management,
adjust its competitive strategies in time, and strive to provide strong
support for business development.

The automation segment has been providing automation
manufacturing devices and services for the industries of smartphones,
Internet of Things, semi-conductors, automobile electronics in the
PRC. Following the gradual sophistication of 5G application business
regimes together with the accelerating progress proposed by China
in terms of the new infrastructure facilities construction as
representative of 5G, Artificial Intelligence, Industrial Internet and
Internet of Things, there will be a new source of vitality to benefit the
development of the automation segment.

In light of the recurring Covid-19 pandemic and uncertainties in the
market for a prolonged period, the Group will stick to its robust
operational strategies, strictly control costs, actively expand business,
and strive to provide better quality products and services. The Group
will also capture the development opportunities to create better
returns to its shareholders.
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With the continuous support from China by its gradual introduction
of new measures under the Greater Bay Area initiative, greater
collaboration between the local governments is anticipated within
the region. Hong Kong will definitely gain from the development of
China’s most economically vibrant region. To seize every opportunity
presented in the region, the Group will continue to equip itself with
more talents while making adjustment and optimization to the
management and core business teams with devoted effort to develop
more professional and experienced business teams. The Group
anticipates a turnaround from crisis to opportunities under the
professional operating capabilities of its teams to expand the scope
of its business by the leverage of the opportunity arising out of crisis.
The Group will carry on with its plan to provide investors in the
market with more business opportunities and more quality services
so that the business of the Group can achieve a new level of success.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to
fellow members of the Board, and the entire workforce for their
dedication and hard work over the past year. | wish to also thank all
of the Group’s shareholders and stakeholders for their unwavering
support. Looking forward, we will embrace each and every challenge
with our consistent adherence to the spirit of “Create, Blend and
Share Together” to create stable and satisfactory return for our
Shareholders with our utmost endeavour to maximise the value for
each and every one of our shareholder and investors alike so that we
can create better return together.

By Order of the Board
Glory Sun Financial Group Limited

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group discontinued
or disposed of several businesses/subsidiaries, including the disposal
of Yue Jin Asia and its subsidiaries which were principally engaged in
operation of yacht club and distributed the shares of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (“Glory Sun Land"”) as interim dividend by way of
distribution in specie of shares. Glory Sun Land is principally engaged
in trading of commodities and property development and investment.
The disposal and distribution of shares have significant impact on the
financial position and results of the Group during the year.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021 decreased
by 84.1% to approximately HK$3,550 million (2020: approximately
HK$22,262 million). The gearing ratio, which is calculated at
borrowings divided by net assets value was significantly decreased to
31.7% (2020: 123.3%).
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Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue W zF
The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 REBHEZE T - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
increased by approximately 66.2% to approximately HK$2,614.8 #2518 114766.2% £412,614.8 A& B T (=
million (2020: approximately HK$1,573.5 million). The revenue ZZ=F4F : 41,5735 B 8B IT) - D PUWE D
analysis by segment is presented as follows: TE7mT :
2021 2020
—EBZ—fF —E-EF
Proportion Proportion
HK$’ to total to total %
million EEGIEN HKS million revenue change
1h & W= IEEM ANtk
BEABT Lt 45l BEAT [ad ]l o
Automation SELl« 794.0 30.4% 545.4 34.7% 45.6%
Financial Services T R ARTS 102.7 3.9% 246.8 15.7% -58.4%
Property Investment and ¥R E K 3R
Development 1,767.7 67.6% 803.3 51.0% 120.1%
Securities Investment BHFRE (49.6) (1.9%) (22.0) (1.4%) 125.5%
2,614.8 100% 1,573.5 100% 66.2%

During the year, property investment and development and
automation segments were the major source of revenue for the
Group, accounting for 67.6% and 30.4% of total revenue,
respectively.

RER %%&ﬁ&é’*%»&éiﬁfb“*ﬁ%ﬁ
SEMFZWRIR - HRMEEYNER67.6%
%30.4% ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit for the year increased by approximately 28.0% to
approximately HK$432.8 million (2020: approximately HK$338.1
million), while the gross profit margin decreased to 16.6% (2020:
21.5%). The change was mainly due to the increase in scale of the
property sales made handover to the customers in the Year as
compared with those in 2020.

Other Gains — Net

The net other gains during the year was approximately HK$254.5
million (2020: net other gains approximately HK$571.8 million),
which was mainly due to the decrease in gain on disposal of
subsidiaries by approximately HK$223.1 million and the decrease in
gain from derecognition of financial guarantee contract by
approximately HK$33.4 million.

Other Income

The other income increased by approximately 15.9% to
approximately HK$51.7 million (2020: approximately HK$44.6
million).

Distribution Costs

The distribution costs increased by approximately 20.1% to
approximately HK$139.9 million (2020: approximately HK$116.5
million), accounting for 5.4% (2020: 7.4%) of the total revenue. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly due to the increase in staff
cost of approximately HK11.8 million and increase in advertising,
promotion and exhibition expenses of approximately HK$5.8 million.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by approximately 16.4% to
approximately HK$284.1 million (2020: approximately HK$340.0
million), owing to the effective implementation of cost control policy
to reduce the routine administrative expenses.

Finance Costs — Net

The net finance costs was approximately HK$66.1 million (2020:
approximately HK$20.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income Tax (Expense)/Credit

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded an
income tax expense of approximately HK$104.0 million (2020:
income tax credit of approximately HK$52.3 million) which was
mainly due to the decrease in deferred tax credit derived from
revaluation of properties.

Discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of its
yacht club operation and the provision of training services in the PRC
and ceased to engage in trading of commodities, operation of golf
practicing court, karaoke box, children playroom and fitness room
and trading of home appliances and building materials upon
completion of distribution in specie. The Group recognized profit
from discontinued operations of approximately HK$47.7 million.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company recorded a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$189.0 million (2020: approximately HK$217.3 million).

FINANCIAL RESOURCES REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

By adopting a prudent financial management approach, the Group
continued to maintain a healthy financial position. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$730.1 million (2020: approximately HK$1,724.7
million). The working capital represented by net current assets
amounted to approximately HK$1,765.4 million (2020: approximately
HK$7,789.3 million). The current ratio was approximately 1.5 (2020:
approximately 1.6). The gearing ratio, which is calculated at
borrowings divided by net asset value, was 31.7% (2020: 123.3%).

The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 included
corporate bonds of approximately HK$356.0 million (2020:
approximately HK$1,020.0 million), trust receipt loans of
approximately HK$14.8 million (2020: approximately HK$8.7 million)
and bank loans of approximately HK$1,193.9 million (2020:
approximately HK$6,800.9 million), and other loans of approximately
HK$441.6 million (2020: HK$5,562.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were secured by (i)
guarantees provided by the Company, shareholder of the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries and related parties; (i) property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$184.3 million; (iii) investment
properties of approximately HK$1,885.0 million; (iv) financial assets
at FVTPL of approximately HK$121.0 million; (v) collateral of the
Group's margin clients of approximately HK$816.8 million; and (vi)
pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$6.0 million.

The borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were secured by (i)
guarantees provided by the Company, shareholder of the Company,
certain of its subsidiaries, related parties and an independent third
party; (ii) properties owned by an independent third parties; (iii)
equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Company; (iv) property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$126.6 million; (v)
investment properties of approximately HK$5,536.7 million; (vi)
properties under development of approximately HK$6,491.3 million;
(vii) completed properties held for sale of approximately HK$1,333.4
million; (viii) financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$310.5
million; (ix) collateral of the Group’s margin clients of approximately
828.3 million; (x) pledged bank deposit of approximately HK$178.7
million); and (xi) intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the
Company.

Capital and Other Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contracted but not provided
for capital commitments of approximately HK$215.2 million,
HK$1,424.4 million and nil (2020: approximately HK$215.2 million,
HK$17,600.7 million and HK$3.8 million) relating to the investment
in an associate; investment properties and property development
expenditures; and property, plant and equipment, respectively.

Currency Exposure and Management

During the year, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi (“RMB"), and US dollars. The Group'’s
payments were mainly made in Hong Kong dollars, RMB and US
dollars.

As the business activities of the Group’s automation and property
investment and development segments were mainly conducted in the
mainland China, most of the Group’s labour costs and manufacturing
overheads were settled with the RMB. As such, fluctuation of the
RMB exchange rate will have an impact on the Group's profitability.
The Group will closely monitor movements of the RMB and, if
necessary, consider entering into foreign exchange forward contracts
with reputable financial institutions to reduce potential exposure to
currency fluctuations. During the year, the Group did not enter into
any foreign exchange forward contract.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Future Plans for Capital Investment and Expected
Source of Funding

The Group finances its operating and capital expenditures mainly by
internal resources such as operating cash flow and shareholders
equity and bank facilities. The Group expects to have sufficient
resources and banking facilities to meet its capital expenditure and
working capital requirement.

Fund raising for future business development

When the Group considers that there are funding needs for the
expansion of its businesses and development of new businesses, it
will explore possible fund raising methods, such as debt financing,
placing of new shares or issuance of corporate bonds.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 331 (2020: 1,036) full-time
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Employees’ remuneration is
determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility, competence
and skills, experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Staff benefits include medical insurance, provident funds and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme on 2 June 2020 and share options will be
granted to eligible employees in accordance with the share option
scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SHARE SUBSCRIPTION
IN JULY 2019

On 10 July 2019, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Bao Xin Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Yao Jianhui, in relation to the
subscription of 4,000,000,000 new shares of the Company (the
“Share(s)"”) at a subscription price of HK$0.25 per Share (the “Share
Subscription”). Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 July 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 10
October 2019 (the “Circular”) for more details regarding the Share
Subscription.
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On 17 December 2019, the Company issued and allotted
2,400,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and received a proceeds
of approximately HK$600,000,000. On 8 May 2020, the Company
issued and allotted 1,600,000,000 new Shares to the Subscriber and
received a proceeds of approximately HK$400,000,000. The net
proceeds of the Share Subscription were approximately HK$999.4
million, HK$936.1 million of which had been utilised as follows:

RZF-NAF+-A++tH  ARARRBEA

%17 K& B %% 2,400,000,000 J& £ A& 15 UK BL B
S FIE49600,000,0008 T R -ZTFH

ANB RARRARE AETRAEZH
1,600,000,000 % ¥ I 15 + U HX B 15 B I8 49
400,000,000/8 7T ° 1D RE R FTEFIE S
%@2%999.4§%/%7E /E\:EF'936.'|§F§J/%7EEH%
RUATA®R -

HK$’ million
BEATT

1. Provision of brokerage service and corporate finance 1. IRE&KLRGE R CERE
(i) securities brokerage and margin financing; and () BHEELEAERE X 130.0
(i) investment iy ®E 56.1
(i) corporate finance division (i) TEMEDE 20.0
2. Expansion of asset management business 2. BEEEENRRE 180.0
3. Expansion of money lending business 3. BEXBHRRE 250.0
4. General working capital 4. —HEEED 300.0
936.1

Save for the HK$63.3 million dedicated to the corporate finance
division and expected to be utilised by 31 December 2022, all net
proceeds of the Share Subscription have been used for the intended
uses as set out in the Circular. The unutilised net proceeds was
deposited with the banks in Hong Kong.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2020: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group'’s financial conditions, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group
are discussed in this section. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those illustrated below, which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can never be
eliminated completely due to the inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Nevertheless, risks may be accepted for
strategic reasons or if they are deemed not cost-effective to mitigate.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage
resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems. Responsibility for managing the Group’s operational risks
rests with every function at both divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group
will identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk
issues to the senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Industry Risk

The financial services business of the Group is subject to extensive
regulations. Among others, operating subsidiaries such as Glory Sun
Securities Limited and Glory Sun Asset Management Limited are
obliged to operate in accordance with the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the "SFO"). The Group is required to ensure
consistent compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
guidelines and satisfy the relevant regulatory authorities that it
remains fit and proper to be licensed. If there is any change or
tightening of relevant laws, regulations and guidelines, the Group
will face a higher compliance requirement for its business activities.
In addition, if the Group fails to comply with the applicable rules and
regulations from time to time, it may face fines or restrictions on its
business activities or even suspension or revocation of some or all of
its licenses for operating the financial services business. Furthermore,
the financial services business, like all other businesses of the Group,
is not immune from market changes. Any downturn in the financial
market may also adversely affect the financial services business of the
Group.
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The automation business of the Group operates in a highly
competitive environment. The Group faces fierce competition from
global technology companies and rapid technological changes which
may render technologies developed and employed by the Group
obsolete. As such, the Group's products may lose its competitiveness,
adversely affecting the Group’s ability to maintain its market share.
Failure to maintain the Group’s competitive position may lead to a
material adverse effect on the results and profit margins of these
business segments. Furthermore, the current trade war between the
PRC and the US may have an impact on the business environment in
the PRC. The Group is prepared to pay close attention to market
conditions and will establish a contingency plan if the trade war
persists over a period of time.

The securities investment business of the Group is sensitive to market
conditions and fluctuations in the prices of the securities held by the
Group. Any significant downturn in the securities market may affect
the mark to market value of the Group’s securities investments and
may adversely affect the results of the Group.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The
changes in the currency environment and interest rate cycles may
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and results of its
operations in the PRC.

The Group’s earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business
objectives may be adversely affected by movements in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any
depreciation in the Group’s functional currency may affect its gross
profit margin. The Group closely monitors the relative foreign
exchange positions of its assets and liabilities and allocates its
holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to minimise
foreign currency risk.

The Group may be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk,
the Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of
cash and credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and
reduce the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is subject to credit risk from its clients. To minimise risk,
new clients will undergo stricter credit evaluation, while the Group
continuously monitors its existing clients to further improve its risk
control measures.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The competition for human resources in the countries that the Group
operates in may result in the Group not being able to attract and
retain key personnel with the desired skills, experience and levels of
competence. The Group will continue to provide remuneration
packages and incentive plans to attract, retain and motivate suitable
candidates and personnel.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding
promptly to market changes within the sectors that it operates in.
Any failure to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy
to such changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial position, results of operations and
prospects.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jianhui (BkZ#8), aged 50, has been the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since August 2015. He serves
as a director to multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves
as the chairman of each of the Nomination Committee, Strategic
Committee and Investment Committee of the Company and is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yao completed a Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the South China University of Technology. He has held senior
management positions with a number of enterprises across a wide
range of industries, including food, construction materials, real
estate, commerce, agriculture and forestry, logistics, technology and
finance. He was appointed as an executive director of Glory Sun Land
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00299.HK) (“Glory Sun Land”) in
December 2018. He was the general manager and chairman of the
board of directors of Dasheng Times Cultural Investment Group Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 600892.5H) (“Dasheng Times Cultural”) from
July 2010 to October 2014.

Mr. Li Minbin (Z80#), aged 41, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2015 and re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2015. He has been the Vice President
of the Company since January 2016. He serves as a director to
multiple subsidiaries of the Company. He also serves as a member of
each of the Strategic Committee and Investment Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Li obtained the Master’s degree of Business Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has comprehensive
experience in operation and management of logistics, real estate,
investment and financial industries. He was an executive director of
Glory Sun Land from December 2018 to May 2019. He served as the
supervisor, assistant to general manager and representative of
securities affair of Dasheng Times Cultural from July 2010 to March
2014 and acted as director and secretary to the board of directors of
Dasheng Times Cultural from March 2014 to March 2016.

Mr. Huang Wei (E1&), aged 47, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in August 2015, re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in November 2015 and further re-designated as an
Executive Director in November 2018. He also serves as a member of
the Investment Committee of the Company.
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Mr. Huang obtained a Master’s degree in Economics from the Hunan
University. He has over 20 years of experience in investment and
financing industries. He has served as the senior vice president of
Shenzhen Baoneng Investment since December 2013. He served as
the vice manager of the department of personal housing loan of the
Shenzhen branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
August 2002 to November 2004, the vice general manager of the
corporate financing management centre from November 2004 to
September 2008, the general manager of the department of
corporate financing management from September 2008 to February
2012 and the general manager of the department of institutional
banking from January 2013 to December 2013.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Chi (3R %), aged 33, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in July 2017 and re-designated as a Non-
executive Director in August 2019. He also serves as a member of the
Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws from the
Shenzhen University and obtained a Master’s degree of Science in
Management from New York University. He is experienced in fund
investment. He served as an officer in the investment department in
Shenzhen Sichuang Technology Development Co. Ltd.* (FIIIBAIF
HEER AR A F]) from January 2013 to June 2013. He worked in
Shenzhen Creative Investment Group Limited* CRIITAIFTIR L £ E
BFR/AF]) and served as an intern in the fund management
headquarter from September 2015 to April 2016, an officer in the
fund management headquarter since April 2016, and has acted as an
investment manager in a management headquarter managing a
Government Guide Fund since October 2016.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chun Bong (E#&#8), aged 63, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since November 2009. He
also serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a range of
positions regarding the provision of assurance, taxation, accounting
and financial management services, which the Company believes will
enhance in the overall financial control and management of the
Group.
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Mr. Wong holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Glory Sun Land since December 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of Guangzhou R&F Properties
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 02777.HK) since May 2017. He is the founder
of a firm of certified public accountants in Hong Kong, a member of
the Council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a fellow
member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, an ex-member of
the Court of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the ex-
Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in Hong Kong.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew (Z=E] %), aged 62, PhD, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
November 2009. He also serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Strategic Committee of the Company.

Professor Lee is the Vice-President (Development & External Relations)
and Chair Professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the
City University of Hong Kong, and he is also a member of the
University Court and University Senate. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00046.HK) since April 1998. He is the Chairman
of the Hong Kong Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation
(HKCPEC) and a member of the Hong Kong Deposits Protection
Board.

Graduated from a number of world-class universities, Professor Lee
has obtained the following qualifications: BEng, MBA (University of
Sheffield), MSc (University of Oxford), PhD in Computer Science
(University of Manchester), LLB, and LLM in Commercial & Corporate
Law (University of London). He qualified as a Barrister-at-Law in Hong
Kong and England and Wales, and is a Chartered Engineer (UK
Engineering Council), and a professional member of the British
Computer Society.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie (Z33#), aged 56, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since November
2015. He also serves as a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Lee received his Bachelor’s degree in Laws and Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and
1989 respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1991 and in England and Wales in 1997.

Mr. Lee is currently a consultant at Messrs. Howse Williams. He was a
partner of Messrs. Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo from April 2001 to February
2011. Mr. Lee successively served as a manager and a senior manager
in the Listing Division of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong from
December 1992 to April 1994. He serves as an independent non-
executive director to multiple listed companies in Hong Kong,
including Embry Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01388.HK) since
November 2006, NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
00777 .HK) since June 2008, Newton Resources Ltd. (Stock Code:
01231.HK) since December 2010, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 06868.HK) since August 2011, Red
Star Macalline Group Corporation Ltd. (Stock Code: 01528.HK) since
February 2015, FSE Services Group Limited (Stock Code: 00331.HK)
since November 2015 and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 01979.HK) since November 2015.

In the previous three years, Mr. Lee was an independent non-
executive director of Futong Technology Development Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 00465.HK) from November 2009 to November
2017, Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00841.
HK) from January 2009 to May 2018, Landsea Green Properties Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 00106.HK) from July 2013 to June 2020 and China
BlueChemical Ltd. (Stock Code: 03983.HK) from June 2012 to May
2021.
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KEY PERSONNELS

Mr. Ho Ka Yiu, Simon ({A%#), aged 43, was appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company in
December 2018. Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ho has over 20 years of experience in auditing, professional
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the Company,
he worked in several international audit firms and served as a chief
financial officer, company secretary and authorised representative in
a listed company in Hong Kong.

*  For identification purpose only

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since
the publication of the 2020 annual report of the Company required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set
out below:

Name of Directors

ExgR

Details of Changes
BEFHE

FEAE

ARBEE 3% R_T—\F+_AEZ
ERARFRIEFEHLE RARME - MR
BEAETIAREGH BRI - WAEAE
FRASEE - MEENE  EXGF LY
BERNHEEB20FLR - RMAKXLRF]
Al WAERERNBERR S ELH > 1
R—REELTRAREEEREMBE AW
ERBEAKRRBIS -

ESEREE

BiE FTRAIE 13 51BN IEZIRE - AAFIA
FREEAARAANT T _TFEFRTIBEURZE
EERZEBHINWMT ¢

Independent Non-executive Director
BYFHITES
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of China

BlueChemical Ltd. (Stock Code: 03983.HK, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange) with effect from 27 May 2021

IR E

BHEB R Pr LR AR EAR(C2ERM AR 2 E (5% : 03983.

HOZBIZIFRTES BT —FRA-THHBEN

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The
updated biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out in the preceding section headed “Directors and Key Personnels”.

34 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B¥i & BEBA R A T

B EXFTRERS R A RARE LT AR
AIZE13.51BM IR ZREM TIAKE - KARIE
EEHBEEAFRENEX EERERAE]

—t5 -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun Financial
Group Limited and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group during the year under review and a
discussion on the Group's future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2021 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 11 to 19 and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 21 to 29 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2021 using financial performance indicators is provided in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
21 to 29 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 75.

Interim Dividend

On 18 November 2021, the Board proposed to declare a special
interim dividend in the form of a distribution in specie of
approximately 3,154 million ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land
directly held by the Company to the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on 24
December 2021 in proportion to their respective shareholdings in the
Company on the basis of 402 ordinary share of Glory Sun Land for
every 4,000 Shares held by the shareholder. The distribution was
recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun
Land of approximately HK$4,910 million, of which approximately
HK$1,804 million was attributable to owners of Company. The
completion of the distribution in specie took place on 28 December
2021 and Glory Sun Land ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
thereafter.

The Board does not recommend the payment of interim dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

R

EEeMALIEFeREBRERARLEHK
BRABE_T_—F+-_A=+t—RHLFE
RERMEECIFABRE

FEXRK

ARAMEBEBRREZR  EXEMNEBELR
B EBH NG A MR -

CEFERNAEBMNESEIRE - Fal K RER
BREMATGEMAE MR X THBAAZ - A &
WEE-E- -+ -A=t-HILEER3
AWHARRBREENEESZH - HENA
FHRENZT19BENEFEHRE ] RE21E29
B [ERENwmEDT]

FERPMBRRESHAKREANBRE_T_—F
TZA=+—BLEFEARNRRETHDNE
RAFHRF21 229 BN EEE TSI

FERRE

AEEHE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHILFE
NEENAEBRZENSEBRAERE2E
75 B E IS HRE -

RHERE

R-ZE-_—F+—A+/\H BEFE€EMfi K
NREIBHFNEYDRA R EZEFTEMN3, 154
AEREMEMETRBRN SN BRERESA
FEARRDRIM IR LB ZAR R S3F 5 4,000 %
B E N E 402 L BRAEE - @R
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WEEHBEMTHAERAGMBAR -
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=t—HLEFENTHRE -
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Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods for determining eligibility to attend and vote at the
2022 annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration:
4:30 p.m., Thursday, 26 May 2022

Closure of register of members:
Friday, 27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022
(both days inclusive)

Record Date:
Wednesday, 1 June 2022

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 annual general
meeting, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant share
certificate(s) with the properly completed transfer form(s) either
overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than the respective latest
dates and time set out above.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the past five financial years, as
extracted from the consolidated financial statement, and restated as
appropriate, is set out on the inside front cover. This summary does
not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made external
donations of approximately HK$541,158 (2020: HK$240,125).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries, purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 77.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law") of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$2,626.0 million (2020: HK$3,368.1 million).
Interim dividend was proposed in the form of a distribution in specie
of approximately 3,154 million ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land
held by the Company on the basis of 402 ordinary shares of Glory
Sun Land for every 4,000 ordinary shares of the Company. The
distribution was recognised at the carrying amount of the net assets
of Glory Sun Land of approximately HK4,910 million, of which
approximately HK$1,804 million was attributable to owners of the
Company (2020: nil). No final dividend (2020: nil) has been proposed
for the year. Under the Companies Law, HK$4,453.5 million as of 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$5,064.6 million) is distributable from
share premium account of the Company to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. The Company’s share premium account may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 24.9% (2020: 22.8%) of the Group's revenue and
30.5% (2020: 40.2%) of the Group’s purchases, were attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers,
respectively; and 7.9% (2020: 8.0%) of the Group’s revenue and
7.0% (2020: 15.1%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to
the Group's largest customer and supplier, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jianhui (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Wan Po (Vice Chairman) (resigned as Executive Director on
7 March 2022)

Mr. Li Minbin

Mr. Huang Wei

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Zhang Chi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the current Directors of the Company are
set out on pages 30 to 33 of the annual report and can be found on
the Company’s website.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All of the executive Directors and non-executive Director had
respectively entered into a service contracts with the Company.
Details of the service contracts include: (1) a term of directorship for
three years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment
or re-election; and (2) the contracts shall be terminated according to
the terms of each contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had signed a letter
of appointment with the Company. Details of the letter of
appointments mainly include: (1) a term of directorship for three
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election; and (2) the letter of appointment shall be terminated
according to the terms of each letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in Notes 12 and 10, respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
Group's results.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As of 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company

(i) interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company

EERTETRAEBREALQAR
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Approximate
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Capacity in which interests Interests Total interests asat 31

Name of Director in shares are held in shares in shares December 2021
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Exns RBROFEEESNSH BEEER R BHAEST

(Note 1)

(FzE1)

Yao Jianhui Beneficial owner 44,468,000 (L) 14,892,511,600 (L) 47.45
j$= 3 EnBBA

Interest in controlled corporation
Rl ERs

(i) interests in debentures of the Company

Capacity in which interests
in debentures are held

REZHTRHAEZNSH

Name of Director
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14,848,043,600 (L)
(No\te 2)
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(i) REREEF PR

Principal amount
of debentures
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Mr. Yao Jianhui
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Interest in controlled corporation (Note 4)
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Note 1: As at 31 December 2021, the total issued share capital of the Company

amounted to 31,387,512,211 shares.

Note 2:  As at 31 December 2021, these shares were beneficially owned by (i) Bao Xin

Development Limited being interested in 14,794,943,600 shares in the
Company and (ii) Laihua Group Holdings Limited* being interested in
53,100,000,000 shares in the Company respectively. As (i) Bao Xin
Development Limited is wholly owned by Bao Xin International Group Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by Tinmark Development Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by Yao Jianhui ("Mr. Yao"”) and (ii) Laihua Group Holdings
Limited is wholly owned by Shenzhen Laihua Assets Holdings Limited, which in
turn is owned as to 99.5% by Mr. Yao, Mr. Yao as the chairman of the
Company is deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Bao Xin
Development Limited and Laihua Group Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Note 3:  On 6 September 2021, Mr. Yao entered into a subscription agreement with the

Company, pursuant to which the bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$114,000,000 were subscribed by Mr. Yao for a term of 364 days.

Note 4: On 6 September 2021, Bao Xin Development Limited entered into a

subscription agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$113,000,000 were subscribed by Bao Xin
Development Limited for a term of 364 days.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO; or (i) to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or; or (iii) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Scheme (as defined in the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY" below), at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief executives of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. Save
for the disclosed, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised any such
right during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director,
other officer and auditor shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him/her as a Director, Auditor or other officer of the
Company about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following, not being a Director or the chief executives of the
Company, have an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

Interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company
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(MEED)
Tinmark Development Limited Interest in controlled corporation 14,794,943,600 47.14
SRR R
Bao Xin International Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation 14,794,943,600 47.14
EMBREE AR QA PRI R
Bao Xin Development Limited Beneficial owner 14,794,943,600 (L) 4714
BEMERERAF EmBEA
AEASRBRGBRA R Beneficial owner 4,219,560,000 (L) 13.44
EmBAA
Taiping Assets Management (HK) Investment manager 4,219,560,000 (L) 13.44
Company Limited wE TR (Note 2)
AFEEER (BB BRAE (M3E2)
Wu Teng Beneficial owner 1,614,386,972(L) 5.14
RiE EmBEaA
Dacheng Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,614,386,972(L) 5.14
AKBRAF] PRI R

42

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Note 1: As at 31 December 2021, the total issued share capital of the Company
amounted to 31,387,512,211 shares.

Note 2: Taiping Assets Management (HK) Company Limited is an investment manager
of BB AFREEMD BB AQF], and is thus deemed to be interested in such
shares.

Abbreviations: “L" stands for long position.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group's eligible employees in the PRC, and a
mandatory provident fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE COMPANY

On 2 June 2020, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) and the major terms of the Share Option
Scheme were summarised as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was (i) to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; (ii) to provide additional incentives to
employees; and (iii) to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
its shareholders.
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(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

44

Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may at its
absolute discretion grant options to any employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries (including any director, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not, of
the Company or its subsidiaries) who is in full-time or part-time
employment with the Company or its subsidiaries at the time
when an option is granted to such employee, or any person
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or
may contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
3,138,751,221, representing approximately 10% of the entire
issued share capital of the Company as of the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in
issue, unless approved by the shareholders in the manner as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which may commence on the date on which the offer for the
grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option subject
to the provisions for early termination thereof. No minimum
period for which the option must be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.
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(9)

(h)
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The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option granted
under the Share Option Scheme is such price as determined by
the Board at the time of the grant of the options, but in any
case the subscription price shall not be lower than the higher
of:

o the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the options are offered, which must be a
business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the options are offered; and

. the nominal value of a share on the date on which the
options are offered.

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$1 or other amount as determined
by the Board by way of consideration for the grant of an option
is required to be paid by each of the grantee upon acceptance
of the granted option.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 2 June 2020). The Share
Option Scheme will terminate or expire (as the case may be) on
the earlier of (i) the approval of the shareholders in a general
meeting, and (ii) at the close of business on the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the adoption
date (the “Share Option Scheme Period").

After the Share Option Scheme Period, the Company cannot
grant new options but for so long as there are options granted
but not yet exercised, outstanding vested or unvested options,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in full force and effect of
such outstanding vested or unvested options or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, no option had been granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 31 December 2020, Baoxin Holdings Company Limited#
(“Baoxin Holdings"”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a property management services framework
agreement (“Baoxin Holdings Property Management Services
Framework Agreement”) with Shenzhen Jixiang Property Services
Group Limited# (“Shenzhen Jixiang”), pursuant to which,
Shenzhen Jixiang agrees to provide property management services to
Baoxin Holdings and its subsidiaries (“Baoxin Holdings Group”) in
accordance with the Bao Xin Holdings Property Management Services
Framework Agreement for a period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023.

The aggregate amount of the management services fees payable by
Baoxin Holdings Group to Shenzhen Jixiang pursuant to the Baoxin
Holdings Property Management Services Framework Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 will not
exceed RMB115,000,000 and the annual caps (i.e. the maximum
contractual sum payable by Baoxin Holdings Group to Shenzhen
Jixiang for each financial year pursuant to the Baoxin Holdings
Property Management Services Framework Agreement for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023) for each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2023 will be RMB20,000,000, RMB45,000,000 and
RMB50,000,000 respectively.

On 14 April 2021, Shenzhen Baokai Investment Holding Company
Limited# (“Baokai Investment”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a property management
services framework agreement (“Baokai Investment Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Jixiang, pursuant to which, Shenzhen Jixiang agrees to provide
property management services to Baokai Investment and its
subsidiaries (“Baokai Investment Group”) in accordance with the
Baokai Investment Property Management Services Framework
Agreement for a period from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023.

The aggregate amount of the management services fees payable by
Baokai Investment Group to Shenzhen Jixiang pursuant to the Baokai
Investment Property Management Services Framework Agreement
for the period from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023 will not
exceed RMB150,000,000 and the annual caps (i.e. the maximum
contractual sum payable by Baokai Investment Group to Shenzhen
Jixiang for each financial year pursuant to the Baokai Investment
Property Management Services Framework Agreement for the period
from 14 April 2021 to 31 December 2023) for the period from 14
April 2021 to 31 December 2021, and each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 will be
RMB48,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB52,000,000 respectively.
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The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report the
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and based on
the unqualified letter issued by the auditor of the Company noted
above, confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary course and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(©) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Each of the Group’s Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors has confirmed that none of
them is engaged in, or interested in any business which, directly or
indirectly, competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as of the
date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 2009 with
written terms of reference set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”). The principal duties of the audit committee
includes the review of the Group's financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures.

At present, the Audit Committee comprises one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, of which Mr. Wong Chun Bong is the Chairman.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited
by the Company’s independent auditor, BDO Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

YAO Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. An internal corporate governance policy was adopted by
the Board aiming at providing greater transparency, quality of
disclosure as well as more effective risk management and internal
control. The execution and enforcement of the Company’s corporate
governance system is monitored by the Board under its terms of
reference as formally adopted on 2 November 2015, including but
not limited to the development and review of the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and to ensure their
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior members of the Company.

In line with the best corporate governance practice, the Company
has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee, a
Nomination Committee, a Strategic Committee and an Investment
Committee. The Board and all subordinate committees evaluate and
monitor their respective effectiveness on a regular basis in accordance
with their terms of reference.

The Company believes that its commitment to high standard practices
will translate into long-term value and ultimately making returns to
shareholders. The Company’s management pledges to building
longer-term interests for shareholders via, for example, conducting
business in a socially responsible and professional manner.

The Board procedures are in compliance with the articles of
association (the “Articles”) of the Company as well as relevant rules
and regulations. For the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no significant changes to the Articles.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group is determined to be a good corporate citizen by fulfilling
its corporate social responsibilities and contributing to the society for
the good of the community. In 2021, the Group provided donations
to worthwhile organisations that help the needy and participated in
various charitable activities. Meanwhile, it cares for its employees by
providing safe and healthy working environment and regularly
hosting events and activities for the employees to benefit from work-
life balance.
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B R R

The Group encourages its employees to minimise the use of paper by
using e-files. While ensuring the observance of high level of
confidentiality, employees are prompted to use reusable papers. The
Group has largely replaced its lighting systems from metal halide
lamps to light-emitting diode (LED) energy-saving lighting to reduce
carbon emissions.

Details of the environmental policies and performance of the Group
are disclosed in the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report to be published in compliance with the requirements under
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
with a view to enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. During the
year under review, the Board is of the view that the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, except the deviations disclosed herein.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao Jianhui (“Mr. Yao")
currently assumes the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Company deviates from this
provision as it believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Yao will be
able to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership. It
allows for more effective and efficient business planning and
decisions as well as execution of long-term business strategies of the
Group. As such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects
of the Group. Furthermore, the Company’s present management
structure comprises sufficient number of independent non-executive
directors and all major decisions are made after consultation with the
Board, appropriate Board Committees and key personnel. The Board,
therefore, believes that a balance of power and authority have been
and will continue to be maintained.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities,
overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group’s daily management and operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an audit committee, a remuneration
committee, a nomination committee, a strategic committee and an
investment committee with clearly defined written terms of
reference. Each committee reports to the Board on its decisions or
recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
its ability to do so.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 November
2009, with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting matters, risk
management and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee
comprises one non-executive director, namely Mr. Zhang Chi and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr. Wong
Chun Bong is the Chairman. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
approved the preliminary announcement of the Group’s results for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include considering and recommending to the Board on
the appointment of all the Directors. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Wong Chun
Bong and Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie, of which Mr. Yao Jianhui is the
Chairman. During the year, the Nomination Committee has duly
discharged the above duties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28
November 2009, with written terms of reference consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee include determining and reviewing the
remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior management
of the Company. The senior management of the Company comprises
only the Executive Directors of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three members, namely Professor Lee Kwok
On, Matthew, Mr. Yao Jianhui and Mr. Wong Chun Bong, of which
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew is the Chairman. During the year,
the Remuneration Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Strategic Committee

The Company has established the Strategic Committee on 28 March
2012. The principal duties of the Strategic Committee include
considering and recommending to the Board on the Group’s business
strategies and investment opportunities. The Strategic Committee
comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao Jianhui, Mr. Lau Wan Po,
Mr. Li Minbin and Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, of which Mr.
Yao Jianhui is the Chairman. During the year, the Strategic
Committee has duly discharged the above duties.

Investment Committee

The Company has established Investment Committee on 26 August
2016. The principal duties of the Investment Committee include the
consideration of the proposals regarding investment, fundraising,
acquisition and disposal made by the Company and its subsidiaries.
The Investment Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Yao
Jianhui, Mr. Lau Wan Po, Mr. Li Minbin and Mr. Huang Wei, of which
Mr. Yao Jianhui is the Chairman. During the year, the Investment
Committee has duly discharged the above duties.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT VARIOUS
MEETINGS

The attendance of individual members of the Board at Board

e WAt
EETHHEE

B Z-—F+-_A=+—HIFE EF

meetings, meetings of the Board Committees and general meetings &EFIKELHEEEees E=ELE80 05
during the year ended 31 December 2021, as well as the number of RIFFE A&7 HEXR  ULRBTEBEEE 2
such meetings held, are set out as follows: BES T -
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Strategic  Investment
Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ENZEE R4ZEE §MZEE HBZEE KREZEE

B FEN ] g3 g3 L EE EE BRAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Yao Jianhui phEEE 44 1/1 22 0/0 1010 N
Mr. Lau Wan Po (Note 1) BEE R (M) 44 0/0 1010 1/1
Mr. Li Minbin FEREE 414 00 1010 11
Mr. Huang Wei BERE 3/4 11
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi ReEE 44 313 1010 10
Independent Non- BUFNTES

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Bong TRA%E 44 33 10 22 11
Professor Lee Kwok On, FERHE

Matthew 44 33 22 0/0 17N
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ~ Zi9 %4 414 1/1 10
Note: (S
1. Mr. Lau Wan Po resigned as Executive Director on 7 March 2022. 1. AEFEER_T_—_F=AtABENTES -

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
that diversity of board members can be achieved through
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

EFTESULEE

EXSCHEMEFTEZ LB HhEihE
HEFEZ TN - ARBRB/AEBRS
THEEEREFEXREZ T BRETR
RIER - Filk - XERBEES  FXELR -
REENAE - EEEMELZERURART S
[RA - WHEERBIREARATEERFTD B R
BEEEZTcmEas -
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the
merits of the selected candidates and their contribution to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each
newly appointed Director or alternate Director would receive
materials covering the Group’s businesses and director’s duties and
responsibilities. The Company provides the Directors with market
news and regulatory updates for them to understand the latest
development of regulatory and compliance issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors participated
in the following trainings:

EERIE AN — RIS TR AEE B
EETERER . 5 MERHEEE &
L0 - R ABRRBER o BRERTR
BFRREAMES LS AEFRERNE
BATYEL -

ESRIIREERE

EENATHASERE BEHZINES
FEFEEHN LERESRENMEAEEE
BHERLREERENEE - ARARANEER
HHBHESERER - WEETREEREE
MR EN SRR -

HE - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE &=
ST

Directors Types of training
2= g
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jianhui Wi pE o A A B
Mr. Lau Wan Po BIEHEE A, B
Mr. Li Minbin TR LA A B
Mr. Huang Wei mESLSE A, B
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Zhang Chi st 7 A A B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFBTES
Mr. Wong Chun Bong FIRAEE A B
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR A, B
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, Eddie ES Sy A, B
A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A: LR g R ek SmiE
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, latest ~ B: MEARAE MR EFEHRER bEE
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, RERERE - FMREFEH
and etc.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of the Group regarding
securities transactions of the Directors. All Directors have confirmed
that throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company, with a term of directorship for 3
years with effect from the date of appointment, reappointment or re-
election. Upon the expiry of the aforesaid term of 3 years, the
appointments shall be subject to the approval by the Board of the
Company. The term of appointment shall be terminable by either the
Independent Non-Executive Director or the Company by giving the
other party not less than 3 months’ prior notice in writing.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Risk management and internal control report

The Group has established and adopted the “Glory Sun Financial
Group Risk Management System” as a simple and effective
management procedure for all business units. Pursuant to which,
risks were identified, reviewed and prioritised to facilitate resources
allocation for the appropriate risk management. The Group has also
engaged independent consultants to conduct review of the internal
control system of our business segments. The management, through
the framework, also developed clear understanding on the material
risks faced by the Group, which formed the basis for its decision and
project implementation, thereby enabling the Group to deliver better
operating results.

It is the sole responsibility of the Board to build and maintain a
comprehensive and effective risk management and internal control
system for the Group for the purpose of safeguarding shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. Such system is designed to
identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
This risk management and internal control report describes the
structure and major features of the risk management and internal
control system.

B R R
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Risk management structure

Based on the different functions performed by each component, the
risk management structure of the Group is organised into three basic
lines of defence under the leadership of the Board, namely the
business departments and subordinate units directly under the
Group; the Risk Management Taskforce; and the Audit Committee
and internal audit.

B EIE RS

RIFSAKRFONBE TR AREHNERE
BHBREND REFTERE TN Z8ELN
R IASEEBEGHMARTBEN : Rk
ERER/E  BRZBERANEE

Functions & Duties

e The right to give guidance and final decision on the risk
management system and risk response plan.

o HBRELIE R E IR HIE LA K B FE ¥ 5 R AEITHE S
BRIORR o

e To monitor the dynamics among staff, corporate
strategy, risk, internal control and compliance.

e EBERBT - MEHE- Rk AEES - SREZE
BECE °

e Monitor the implementation of risk management and
the timely report of outcomes to the Board.

e AEYHEREBENEMBERNETEZE ARKOES
FWEER -

e To review the risk assessment report and review the
effectiveness of the risk management mechanism of the
Group at least once a year.

o BREREHRELZFIEF-ABRIEERRER
T A UL o

e Responsible for the establishment and optimisation of
the risk management framework of the Group and the
supervision and coordination of risk identification,

e RBE
Ultimate Board
responsible body EEy
BREEMEHE
Monitoring Audit Committee and
(third line of defence) Internal Audit
EEER ERZEER
(B=EHR) NEBEET
Management Risk Management
(second line of defence) Taskforce
EEEH EfgEIRET /A
(BB #R)

Implementation
(first line of defence)

Business departments and
subordinate units directly

BITEE under the Group
(E—EEZ) NEE B B EEER
RTBEM

56

assessment, mitigation, as well as the risk management
report and presentation.

e AERUYLTEASENEREERR BREEER
WA EE R - ERRTE - EiaEY - D RER
B TR FE R TAE -

e To perform self-review and inspection of the risk
management work by the respective department or its
subordinate units of the Group, so as to identify and
rectify deficiencies in a timely manner.

e BWASEBEMEMNMN TEEUMNAREEIIFETE
ARG - REERRE LR -
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Risk Management Methodology

The Group adopts the enterprise risk management framework of the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in establishing the risk management system, which
illustrates the key elements necessary for managing risks and their
integration at all levels.

The top-down approach is adopted in the Group's risk management
system. This is facilitated by strong oversight exercised by the Board
of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce in the establishment and maintenance of the risk
management policy and risk management system. These oversight
components provide leadership and guidance that the business needs
to focus, balance risk and reward and steer the Group to the planned
direction. This approach ensures clarity of the top extreme/high risks
involved in shaping the Group's objectives and performance, supports
risk related decisions at the Board/senior management level and
ensures communication amongst the management teams. It is based
on risk appetite and broad understanding of themes.

The risk assessment comprises of five stages:
1. Risk Identification:

Business departments that directly oversee their respective
processes should identify potential risks of their processes
through daily operations, operating and financial data analysis,
changes in operations, etc. All of the risks identified during the
risk identification process should be input into a risk inventory
which summarizes the risks that the Group is facing. The risk
identification process should be performed at least once a year
to take into account changes in the business environment and
determine whether adjustment to the risk inventory is required.

2. Risk Assessment and Prioritization

Risks in the risk inventory shall be evaluated by business
departments using a predetermined assessment criteria. Both
qualitative and quantitative criteria shall be used to measure
different aspects of the risks. Ratings of 1, 2 and 3 will be
assigned to the risks in the risk inventory after completion of
the assessment. Prioritization will be performed according to
the total score of the risks which indicate their level of
significance. This facilitates the determination of action plan
and timeline for mitigating the risks.

B R R
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3.  Risk Response

58

The risk inventory is submitted to the Risk Management
Taskforce for review. The Risk Management Taskforce is
responsible for assigning risk owners from business
departments to top risk events. The number of risk events
identified as top risks is determined by the Board, Audit
Committee and Risk Management Taskforce depending on the
Group's overall risk appetite.

Risk owners involved in the operations of their respective
processes are responsible for formulating risk mitigation plans
for the top risks assigned to them. They should consider the
risks’ impact and vulnerability when determining the
appropriate risk mitigation plan.

In generally, four types of risk responses can be adopted:
(i) Acceptance:

Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable based on
Group's risk appetite and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

(i) Reduction:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial. Actions have to
be taken to reduce the impact and vulnerability to an
acceptable level.

(iii) ~ Sharing:

Risks cannot be considered immaterial and the Group
cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptable level
by itself, therefore a portion of the risks has to be
transferred to or shared with other parties. Common
ways of risks sharing are purchasing of insurance, and
outsourcing.

(iv)  Avoidance:

Risks are so significant that there is no internal nor
external measures available to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level, or the mitigation actions are associated
with unreasonably high costs. Activities giving rise to the
risks should be avoided.

Risk response should at least include the risk owners and risk

mitigation plans, reviewed and approved by the Risk
Management Taskforce before implementation.
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4. Risk Monitoring

Monitoring is a key component of the Group’s risk
management system. It enables the Board, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Taskforce and business departments to
determine whether the system is functioning effectively as they
should and to ensure that risks are identified and
communicated in a timely manner to those responsible for
taking corrective action and to the Board as appropriate.

Risk owners assigned to oversee and manage a particular risk
are responsible for implementing or ensuring the
implementation of risk mitigation plan for the assigned risks.

Annual review on the risk management system should be
performed. The Risk Management Taskforce shall examine
whether all of the required information (i.e. risk event, risk
mitigation plan, reporting frequency and period, responsible
department) have been filled in by the risk owners, and have
been properly supported by supporting documents or other
data if applicable.

5.  Risk Reporting

The Risk Management Taskforce shall report top risks of the
year and the corresponding risk mitigation plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board for endorsement annually. It should
perform the independent review on the risk management
system and report the result to the Audit Committee.

The above risk management system aims at managing but not
eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
Furthermore, the Board will only give reasonable but not absolute
assurance that there will be no material misrepresentation or loss.

B R R
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Review on system effectiveness

The review on effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system for 2021 covers the year ended 31 December 2021, in
which the Board has performed annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system of the Group
through the Audit Committee, and was of the opinion that the
existing risk management and internal control system was sufficient
and effective. During the review, the Board has reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience of the audit
and financial reporting function of the Group through the Audit
Committee, and has not identified any material deficiencies. The
Board was not aware of any material issues that may affect the
shareholders and require their attention, and was of the view that
the internal control of the Group was in full compliance with all of
the code provisions relating to internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code.

In conclusion, the Board strives to enhance the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an on- going basis.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Group shall disclose to the
public any insider information as soon as possible after such
information comes to the attention of the Group, unless such
information is within the scope under any safe harbours provision in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group will ensure such
information will be kept confidential before it is fully announced to
the public. If the Group considers that the confidentiality required
cannot be kept, or such information may have leaked already, such
information will be disclosed to the public immediately. We also
endeavour to ensure that the information contained in the annual
report shall not be deceptive or misleading in all material aspects,
and there are no other material matters the omission of which would
make the information contained therein to be deceptive or
misleading, such that the insider information disclosed can be made
available to the public in an equal, timely and effective manner.
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In addition, if there occurs any significant risk events, the related
information will be disclosed to appropriate authorities and personnel
in a complete, accurate and timely manner, so that appropriate
decisions and measures can be made and implemented by the Group
to deal with such risk events. Meanwhile, in order to further develop
the risks management culture of the enterprise, as well as to enhance
the risk awareness of our staff, the Group has already rolled out

B R R
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training programs, so that we can assure to maintain the balance
between business expansion and risk management in our operation.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements of each financial year, which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash
flows for that year. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, approved adoption
of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, made appropriate

BEREX
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judgement and estimates, prepared the financial statements on a

going-concern basis.

The Group has announced its annual results in a timely manner
within the limits of three months after the end of the relevant period,

as laid down in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by BDO Limited, the
external auditors of the Company, for the year ended 31 December

2021 is summarised as follows:

AEECE EMARARENEABEHETER=
B AR AR 2 FRE -

ZEETE
BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-_A=+—HILFEE &K

RAINEZBENEE L ERREITMEBHE
RAFREIRE M famT -

HK$'000
FHETT
Audit services ENZ RS
— Annual audit services — FEZERTS 6,130
Non-audit services IEEAZIRTS
— Review of interim financial statements — BRI BHRE 800
— Others (mainly reporting accountant’s work — EM(EEAREBEATLAHIIH
in connection with the notifiable transaction) SRR T1E) 138
7,068
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out
of corporate activities of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board established a shareholders communication policy in 2014
and made it available on the Company’s website. The policy is subject
to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Group has established and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders. Annual reports and other corporate
communications are published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. General meetings and investor meetings were
held either face-to-face or via telephone conference. The Group
reports to the shareholders twice a year and maintains a regular
dialogue with investors.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
including email address and postal address, in order for them to
make queries that they may have with respect to the Company. They
can also send their enquiries to the Board by these means. In
addition, shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited,
the share registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlements to dividend. The website of the
Company has also set out details on how shareholders can convene
an extraordinary meeting, and the procedures for shareholders to put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting.

The annual general meeting provides an useful forum for
shareholders to exchange their views with the Board.
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SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

()

(i)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing by the
shareholder(s) to the Secretary of the Company of not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed to convene an EGM in accordance with the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves do so but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meeting (“"GM")

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed
by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at 18/F.,
Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the “Company Secretary” no less than six
weeks before the GM in case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and no less than one week before the GM in
case of any other requisitions.
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(iii)

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned under applicable laws
and rules.

If the requisition is verified to be not in order or the
requisitionists have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet
the Company’s expenses for the said purpose, the
requisitionists will be advised of the result and accordingly, no
action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders may make enquiries or direct concerns to the
Board in writing by addressing for the attention of the
“Company Secretary” by mail at 18/F., Wing On Centre, 111
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The auditors of the Company acknowledges its reporting
responsibilities in the auditor’'s report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

On behalf of the Board

Yao Jianhui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Glory Sun
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”) set out on pages 72 to 282, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to notes 4.6, 5(b)(vi) and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$3,629,657,000 as at 31 December 2021 and a fair value gain of
approximately HK$144,171,000 was recognised in the “fair value
gain/(loss) on investment properties” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year.

Management has engaged independent professional valuers (the “IP
Management Expert”) to assist the management in performing the
valuation of the Group's investment properties at the end of the
reporting period. Valuations of the Group's investment properties are
dependent on certain key inputs and assumptions that require
significant management judgement. The valuation was inherently
subjective due to the significant estimates used and significant
changes in these estimates could result in material changes to the fair
value of the investment properties.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s assessment of
the valuation of investment properties included:

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions and evaluating
the appropriateness of key input data used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties;

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist us in evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuation of
the fair value of the investment properties; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the IP
Management Expert and auditor’s expert.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances,
trade receivables and other receivables

Refer to notes 4.9(ii), 5(b)(iv), 25, 26 and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables of approximately HK$2,490,151,000,
HK$159,586,000 and HK$88,695,000 respectively after loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECL") of approximately HK$375,743,000,
HK$2,948,000 and HK$8,928,000 respectively.

Management performed the assessment on the recoverability of the
loans and advances, trade receivables and other receivables and the
sufficiency of loss allowance for ECL. Assessment on the recoverability
of certain loans and advances, trade receivables and other receivables
and the sufficiency of the related loss allowance for ECL are
performed with the assistance of an independent professional valuer
(the "ECL Management Expert”).

In carrying out impairment assessment on loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables under the ECL model, significant
management judgement was used to determine the underlying
estimations.

Our response:

Our key procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of loans and advances, trade receivables and other
receivables included:

—  Assessing whether the loans and advances, trade receivables
and other receivables had been appropriately grouped by
management based on their shared credit risk characteristics;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the key input data used by
management and the ECL Management Expert to develop the
historical loss rates and assessing the sufficiency, reliability and
relevance of that data;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans and advances,
trade receivables and other receivables (Continued)

— Involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on the
appropriateness of methodology in determining the historical
loss rates on certain loans and advances, trade receivables and
other receivables;

—  Testing the calculation of ECL provisions applying the ECL rates
to the respective categories of the loans and advances, trade
receivables and other receivables outstanding at the reporting
date; and

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
ECL Management Expert and auditor’s expert.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

— conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

— obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Continuing operations

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains — net

Other income

Fair value gain/(loss) on investment
properties

Impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets — net

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations

Finance costs — net
Share of results of associates

Loss before income tax from
continuing operations

Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
Profit/(loss) for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Profit/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations
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2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FET FHET
(Re-presented)

(BEHZER)

6 2,614,841 1,573,547
(2,182,056) (1,235,470)

432,785 338,077

7 254,459 571,768
7 51,652 44,622
17 144,171 (607,202)
8 (393,097) (94,052)
(139,904) (116,523)
(284,095) (340,021)
65,971 (203,331)
11 (66,120) (19,968)
19 (12,345) 16,011
(12,494) (207,288)

13 (103,957) 52,250
8 (116,451) (155,038)
9 47,689 (425,754)
(68,762) (580,792)

(214,591) 74,279
25,634 (291,530)
(188,957) (217,251)
98,140 (229,317)
22,055 (134,224)
120,195 (363,541)
(68,762) (580,792)
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2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTREF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FER FHET
(Re-presented)
(BEFEHR)
Loss for the year FREE (68,762) (580,792)
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2wk :
Items that may be reclassified to profitor FJE# D EZEzAEE -
loss:
Currency translation differences B R 358,307 461,790
Release of exchange reserve upon BT B A B BFAEFRIE K
disposal of subsidiaries & 44 3,564 (18,390)
Release of exchange reserve upon B W) 5 Ik 7T K PR % Bk [
distribution in specie G (64,977) =
Share of other comprehensive income of ~ 235 H & 2 B H il 2 H 1K
associates e 19 (9,684) (45,109)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit #5178 E# 7 E 2182547
or loss: ER :
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of HERMEEBERIREME

owner-occupied property to EOEGRR
investment properties \ - 6,442
Net changes in the fair value of equity EERE AT EFAELM

instruments designated at fair value %EHQ@%WT&@IE

through other comprehensive income NS RE DS ) (96,486) (194,239)
Other comprehensive income for the FREMZ2EHKZE

year 190,724 210,494
Total comprehensive income for the FRZ2HEWIFSHEEE

year 121,962 (370,298)
Total comprehensive income for the E{LFRDENZEELEE :

year attributable to:
Owners of the Company AREHEE A (132,784) (129,952)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRE T 254,746 (240,346)

121,962 (370,298)

Loss per share from continuing and REFELERKILEE

discontinued operations EBNEBRER 15

— Basic (HK cents) — EAR B (0.60) 0.71)

— Diluted (HK cents) — #55 (OB(L) (0.60) 0.71)
(Loss)/earnings per share from REFELCEEBLNER

continuing operations (BR])BA 15

— Basic (HK cents) — EAR (L) (0.68) 0.24

— Diluted (HK cents) — #E OB (0.68) 0.24
Earnings/(loss) per share from RERLEREEKNER

discontinued operations BF,(EE) 15

— Basic (HK cents) — EARGB) 0.08 (0.95)

— Diluted (HK cents) — E@E OB 0.08 (0.95)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e A IR Dt e

Notes

i &

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Completed properties held for sale

Loans and advances

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Derivative financial assets

Finance lease receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Current tax recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Client trust bank balances

Pledged bank deposits and restricted
deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

HEERERE

FRBEE

M - BB MR
REME

BIEE

Bt E N RIBIRE

B EAE MK
mERNERMEE

B AT S YR IR
BNFR - RE REME
Wk

BB E

RBEE

FE

BRTYE
ExIHELEDFE

BN ER

& W E 5 BR K

BREE

ITESREE

B EHE RUGRIAR
BNFOR - mE MEAME
YRR

AT 4 @ B ER T I8
BAVEFARRRNS
BMEE

B EFERITAR
BRI TR R R
T#3K
RekREEHED

EERE
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16
17
18
19

20
28(b(ii))

29
36

22
23
24
25
26
27(a)
21
28(b(ii)

29
30
31

31
31

2020

—E-FF

HK$'000

FHEIT

454,479 564,348
3,629,657 9,301,747
165,706 273,836
295,495 317,524
277,869 478,681
18,310 59,553
9,191 329,316
13,010 49,296
4,863,717 11,374,301
40,203 26,443
319,572 9,477,577
478,963 2,442,662
2,490,151 945,940
159,586 384,856
22,427 68,514

= 32,044

30,282 64,500
179,391 5,166,222
14,266 40,537
326,500 475,056
195,404 254,786
33,624 646,085
730,076 1,724,662
5,020,445 21,749,884
9,884,162 33,124,185




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A1 IR DL

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other payables
Consideration payable
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

RBAE

RN E SRR MEMN R
BMAE

FEETE A M E AL B3R
fBE

RBEEFH
REERRBAR
FRBEE
HAb & 5RIR
KB

fBE

EERBRE

BERE
ABEFE
Rz

EEN
G

ZN/NCTE? 2N
FRIE RS
RSB

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf:

Yao Jianhui

wizeE

Chairman
EE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
P TERT FET
32 632,618 3,730,461
27(b) 52,657 2,006,206
33 376,382 1,449,490
35 2,006,343 6,448,771
28(a) 11,129 16,280
175,952 309,406
3,255,081 13,960,614
1,765,364 7,789,270
6,629,081 19,163,571
33 17,906 17,660
34 - 163,747
35 - 6,943,190
28(a) 43,009 103,625
36 234,117 1,073,251
295,032 8,301,473
3,550,113 22,262,087
6,334,049 10,862,098
37 3,138,751 3,138,751
38 2,801,208 4,828,230
5,939,959 7,966,981
394,090 2,895,117
6,334,049 10,862,098

AV BHRRER_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HE

S ERBETIEY A MIEEAARE

Li Minbin
20

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATEEAEL
Financial assets
at fair value
Merger Capital Statutory Other  through other Non-
Share Share reserve reserve resere Treasury Tesenves  comprehensive Exchange Retained controlling
capital premum  (Note38(@)  (Note38() (Note38(c) share  (Note 38(d)) income reserve resere eamings interests Total
FARKZE
i BARE EERE HfbGE ezt
e RiveE  (Wiee)  (WEssp)  (W&E3sl) ERR (M0 SREERE Efifk REEH  FERER @5t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tan Fin Fin Fin Fin T Tin Tin Tin Titn Tn Thn
At 1 January 2020 i 23
-A-R 2978751 4,830,694 (909,828) 12411 222,263 (70,187) 846,211 (2,309,294) (299,012) 2325145 3134117 10,761,271
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = = = = = (217,251) (363541) (580,792)
Other comprehensive income: 12 E R :
Net changein farvalue of ~ RATE AR
equity instruments at fair 2ENRENES
value through other TEMATER
comprehensive income E)et] - - - - - - - (184,168) - - (10,071) (194,239)
Share of other comprehensiie  AHEBVEATIE A
income of associates 2ENE - - - - - - (45,109) - - - - (45,109)
Release of exchange resene  (EEMBATRE
upon disposal of subsidiaries B
(Note 44) (i) - - - - - - - - (18390) - - (183%)
Revaluation surplus upon BERNFEAR
transfer of owner-ocupied  BEAMER
properties to investment B MREE
properties, net of taxation - - - - - - 6,442 - - - - 6,442
Currency translation differences E%AEZE - - - - - = = = 38524 - 133,266 461,790
Total other comprehensive £ 2R HE
income - - - - - - (38,667) (184,168) 310,134 - 12319 210,494
Total comprehensive income  2EH#HH = = = = = = (38,667) (184,168) 310,134 217.251) (240,306) (370298)
Placing of new shares REHk
(Note 37) (ME3n) 160,000 240,000 - - - - - - - - - 400,000
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-EHBAF - - - - (34,860) = (8.401) = = 43261 = =
Transactions with non-controling &3 EZEIR
interests (Note 42(5) H(HEa) - - - - - - 706 - - - 1,346 2052
Transfer tostatutory resenve ~ EAATRE S = - B 18,866 B B o = (18,866) = =
Transfer of resenve to retained &R AT Ex
eamings upon disposal of ~ A2 AN
equity instruments at fair NERTA%E
value through other BREZRER
comprehensive income il = - - - - - - 14728 - 214728) - -
Derecognition of treasury share % - B F A - = = = = 70,187 = = = (1,114) = 69,073
At31 December 2020 RZB-%E
+ZA=1-A 3,138,751 5,070,694 (909,828) 12411 206,269 - 799,849 (2.278,734) n2 1,916,447 2895117 10,862,098
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o B i 58 T 2

Attributable to owners of the Company
LGN 1

Financial assets
at fair value
Merger Capital Statutory Other  through other Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserves  comprehensive Exchange Retained controlling

capital premium (Note 38(a))  (Note 38(b) (Note38(c)  (Note 38(d)) income reserve reserve eamnings interests
TARMRE
AHRE EARE HERE Afbff haEf
A REEE  (WE3se)  (WaEssh) (K@) (WE38d) SREERS ESiEfE REBR  FERES &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TEn TiEn TR Tn TEn TiEn TR TEn TiEn TiEn

At1 January 2021 RZBZ-§
-B-A 3,138,751 5,070,694 (909,828) 12411 206,269 799,849 (2,278,734) 1122 1,916,447 2,895,117 10,862,098

(Loss)fprofit for the year ER(ER)/ & - - - - - - - - (188,957) 120195 (68,762)
Other comprehensive income: ~ Eft 2 :
Net change in farvalue o~ RATEH ALK

equity intruments at fair 2ENGNER

value through other IENATEE

comprehensive income 3% - - - - - - (95,357) - - (1.129) (96,486)
Share of other comprehensive  AEEE R AR

income of associates 2k - - - - - (9,684) = = = = (9.684)
Release of exchange resene  HEHBAARE

upon disposal of subsidiaries R E 3 &

(Note 44) (Mistad) - = = = = o - 3,564 - - 3,564
Release of exchange reserne ~ REAIAEZE

upon distribution inspece ~ BREXERE - - - - - - - (64977) = o (64,977)
Currency translation differences &% AEZE - - - - - - - men - 135,680 358,307
Total other comprehensive ~ Efs2HRHAE

income - - - - - (9,684) (95,357) 161,214 - 134,551 190,724
Total comprehensive income  2FREAE - - - - - (9,684) (95,357) 161,214 (188,957) 254,746 121,962
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FEAA - - - - - = = = = (8519) (8519)
Deregistration of subsidiaries  HEHEAR

(Note 44(d) GRITO) - - - - - - - = = (1.464) (1,464)
Transactions with non-controling E3ER B IR

interests (Note 42(0) 7 (it date) - = = = = (74,609) - (15,716) - 360,488 270,163
Release of reserve upon disposal tHEHBAABR

of subsdiares 1 - - 694678 - (65.932) (675.179) - - 46,433 - -
Dividend by way of distribution  HEMIAEHHE

in specie (Note 45) RS (Hita) = (1,803,913) - - (1927) (15,510) 10,121 - 1316 (3106278)  (4910,191)
Transfer to statutory reserve ~ EAZERE - - - - 297 - - - (297) - -
Transfer of reserve toretained 1At &HATEx

earnings upon disposal of NEf2EYE

eqity instruments at fai MERTAKE

value through other BRGERER

comprehensive income #l = - - - - - 20,769 - (20,769) - -
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-F

+ZA=1-A 3,138,751 3,266,781 (215,150) 12411 138,707 24,867 (2,343,201) 156,620 1,760,173 394,090 6,334,049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEaBemER

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FER FAT
Cash flows from operating activities K& EBHELENELSRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4 F718,(FiF)
FARE 43(a) 1,922,650 (1,917,689)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEENEH (38,037) (26,960)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EMSER (171,451) (250,126)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BETEATE - (FTH)
operating activities B2 FHE 1,713,162 (2,194,775)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELENHEERE
Additions of property, plant and RNEME - WE KEE
equipment (35,932) (45,064)
Payment for construction costs of B W 2 A PR AN T 3R
investment properties i) (442,743) (470,125)
Additions of intangible assets REBEEREE (128) (1,720)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value ~ BEB IR AFEFT AHA
through other comprehensive income 2EWE E’Jirﬂﬁ? (78,785) (239,008)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEMBAR - Mk
disposed HERS 44 178,023 390,261
Proceeds received from disposal of HEME - WEREE
property, plant and equipment Fri8 5008 105 497
Proceeds from redemption of bonds fE Bl e B 5 FT 1S 5K IB
receivables - 168,150
Proceeds received from disposal of HERANFERAEME
financial assets at fair value through EW SR EEFTS
other comprehensive income FIE 177,910 467,059
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSHRIE
properties 415,604 11,675
Capital contribution to an associate H—EEERF BN
TE 19 - (24,842)
Interest received B U B 47,374 41,000
Dividend received from other investments B U8 E i1 &% S 5,139 4,816
Payment of consideration in relationto ~ HEETFUREMB AR 2
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year NEERES = (302,691)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits and B EIRIRITIER S F R #l
restricted deposits TR,/ (35 0) 134,910 245,298
Net cash generated from investing REZEELENE L FHE
activities 401,477 245,306
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEaHEmER

Notes
Bt &

Cash flows from financing activities BEEFHEENELTE

Capital contribution from non-controlling % B IEIEIRERS A A Z
interest equity holders BARRKRA

Repayment to non-controlling interests 38 B FEIE IR 25 2 iE 3K

(Repayment to)/advance from related REREE S 2 (B,
parties 2R

Drawdown of bank borrowings and REGRTTEE RAMER
other loans

Repayments of bank borrowings and BERTEEREMER
other loans

Repayment of principal portion on lease  EEHE B BEARE D
liabilities

Repayment of interest portion on lease ~ {EEHE & EFI S35
liabilities

Proceeds from issuance of corporate BITRRESFS A
bonds

Interest paid BERFE

Proceeds from issuance of shares BITRIDFIISSRIE

Proceeds from sales of treasury shares REHEEFRD P15

RIB

Settlement of corporate bonds é;’;@ AIfES

Distribution in specie, net of cash EMHIK - ke EE
disposed of Re

Transactions with non-controlling BIEIERER L 5
interests

Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE (FT/E)  Frig
financing activities B&F5E

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ,%&ﬁ%%"f{“%
cash equivalents WD), nEEE

Cash and cash equivalents at FHNESRBESEEY
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEE RSB
changes

Cash and cash equivalents atend of HFAREEREESZEY
year 31

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FETT

= 2,346

(230) (232)
(97,062) 21,282
9,242,659 14,848,736
(11,397,272) (11,261,245)
(17,182) (15,054)
(9,964) (6,653)
536,000 1,025,000
(813,889) (1,033,001)
= 400,000

= 69,073
(520,000) (1,695,800)
(259,155) =
270,163 (294)
(3,065,932) 2,354,158
(951,293) 404,689
1,724,662 1,313,570
(43,293) 6,403
730,076 1,724,662
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

80

GENERAL INFORMATION

Glory Sun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and its
principal place of business is 18th Floor, Wing On Centre, No.
111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Group had discontinued the operations of
yacht club and provision of training services through disposal of
subsidiaries and discontinued the operations of trading of
commodities, golf practicing court, children playroom and
fitness room, karaoke box and trading of home appliances and
building materials through distribution in specie.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“the new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BMNBEBMBREEAN(ER

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") PR EER J) )

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs 21 EAFEAILBITEBMER
(Continued) SR (E)
None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material BMEZENT LB B BB W
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for HEREANEBZ A BERE
the current or prior period. In addition, the Group has FERVBERABEANERTE -
early adopted amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Bboh - REEE R R A B HERR
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 ahead of the BB EmEERE 1658 (BETAR)
effective date and applied the amendment from 1 —E-—FRNAZTHZENTTE
January 2021. BIEHEERE YR =-—F—

A—BRERZEIAR -
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related BB EERE 16 45 (155T
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 xr) R=-ZB-—FANA=+H
ZE B RS EEE R

In April 2021, the HKICPA issued an amendment to —E-—FNA - AEGHAAE
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 B EENBWREERFE 165 =
June 2021, which extended the practical expedient for T —FARNA=tHENEEIER
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification BB A - ERAITHEESE
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct 1218 R - ABARBZETRFTEE
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic by 12 months BreEEERMEEZHEES R 2ME
and applied to rent concessions for which any reductions REEEBITeTEE  WEARR
in lease payments that were originally due on or before AR ZEZZFANA=THBZZA
30 June 2022. This amendment is effective for annual SHAMMEE R KA TR © ZIEFTR
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier BN A—Bsz&mHn
application permitted. The amendment is to be applied L FERERABAER - WEERST
mandatorily by those entities that have elected to apply A - ZIET BB RERA LA
the previous amendment Covid-19-Related Rent & 71 %7 7 5% 15 A8 B R A 1) B 8 58
Concessions. The Group has early adopted the it NEBERAFENBRE
amendment Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond RAKM—_ZT=—FA=THZ
30 June 2021 in the current annual financial statements. & EF R AR AR
The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the RAFERABEBMBREEINES
current year has had no material impact on the Group's IR EHAEERNFEE RBAF
financial positions and performance for the current and EHBMBHRRREREA R, K EE
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the MR RBENEATE -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

82

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they

RAEBUMEREERN(ESB
R EZER ) &)

22 CHEMERERERZHETHE

BT BB MR EZERA

AEBEWEBRIRA TS RME
W AR E R FT ] RSB RT BB 5
WEEL  EEHENFRRERE
Bz iRE M B HmRER -  AKEH
AT B F R AR BREAZ

become effective.
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'
Insurance Contracts?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle'

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

5= 54 °
ST

ERQHENE 1R AESEARDNE
({BETA) fiEh?2
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HEEHERE
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BERECHENE 165 NE BELLE
CCHEN — KERTERS
ATRFTS R
BRECHENEIE LEAH—ETA
CHENS KRy pE A
EREMBEREEANE RRAEL?
175
EEMBHREEAE HoMERMRL
EEACHEN)
ERCHENE 1R SHBERR?
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HE)
BRI ENER SHbitNER?
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BRECHENE NG HE-SFELNE
CHEN EMEEEENE
ERIR?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New or revised HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of other amendments and new or
revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group are not aware of any aspect
of the new standards which are likely to have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
in note 4 below.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

2. RHEBUEBREERN(ESB
R REZER ) @)

22 CEMERERERZHETHE

BT BB IR E LR (&)

1 R-ZTZ—F—A—B=Z2E&HAEHN
FEBRER

2 R-ZZE_=F—A—B=Z2E&HAHBEHN
FEBHMER

3 HZEERTEIRAIEANGEE A%
ZRFIMEEARBEENHERE
BEEA ©

REB A G EMERT AR
HEEFTHNE BB RS LR
MERHRNEE 25/ &
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

Re-presentation due to discontinued
operations

The presentation of comparative information in respect
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been re-
presented as if the operations discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of
the prior period.

The re-presentation do not affect the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities
and assets meets the definition of a business and control
is transferred to the Group. In determining whether a
particular set of activities and assets is a business, the
Group assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired set has
the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition
date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this
results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary (except for
disposal of subsidiaries by way of distribution in specie by
the Company, where the disposed subsidiaries are
ultimately under control of the same parties before and
after the distribution), the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Upon loss of control of a subsidiary through distribution
of shares in the subsidiary to the shareholders of the
Company where the subsidiary is ultimately controlled by
the same party or the same parties both before and after
the distribution, the Group (a) derecognises the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost; and (b) measures the
distribution at the carrying amount of the net assets to
be distributed.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
(i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and (iii) the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group'’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,

investment in an associate is accounted for using equity
method as mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSTHHE#)

(Continued)

4.4 Goodwiill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (“CGU(s)") that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A CGU is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its
recoverable amount (see note 4.17), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is first
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each
asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying
amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-
in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 20-40 years
Leasehold improvement Shorter of assets expected
useful lives and lease term

Furniture and fixtures and 2-10 years
office equipment

Machinery and factory 2-10 years
equipment

Computer equipment 2-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Yacht 4-10 years

Land and properties leased Shorter of assets expected
for own use useful lives and lease term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBE®)

(Continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4.5 ¥ - BERRMEE)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well
as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount. The gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its
carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other
reserves. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6 Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only
when there is a change in use. If an investment property
becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Leases

(i)

As a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease
term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);
(i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and
buildings that are held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose under HKAS 40 and are
carried at fair value. For right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Other than the above right-of-
use assets, the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises its judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset apart from the
leasehold land and buildings which is held for own
use. As a result, the right-of-use asset arising from
the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A P

4. BEARETBE#)

(Continued)

4.7 Leas

(i)

es (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or to reflect revised in substance
fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of
any lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the
probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying
amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments
to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. An
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further
reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms
of a lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation
results in one or more additional assets being
leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a
separate lease, in all other cases, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease
(whether that is an extension to the lease term, or
one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-
of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount.
With the exception to which the practical expedient
for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies, if
the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope
of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then
further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 3 SO 065 e A P

4. BEARETBE#)

(Continued)

4.7 Leas

es (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the leased assets to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a
lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a
modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments as
income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term. The
Group applies the derecognition requirements of
HKFRS 9 to recognise modification or derecognition
gain or loss on the net investment in the finance
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over their useful lives as follows:

Contractual customer relationships
License

Trademarks and patents 3-10 years

Other intangible assets
Operating right
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(ii)

Internally generated intangible assets
(research and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the
product for it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product; and

o sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from
selling the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(Continued)

(iii)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4.17).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease
to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

4.9 Financial Instruments

(i)

GLORY

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.9 Fina

(i)

ncial Instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost as
described above, debt instruments may be
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI")
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.9 Fina

(ii)

ncial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets and financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12 months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

4. BEARETBE#)

49 €WMIE(E)

(ii)

Annual Report F# 2021

EREE R EEE

K%E%E%%Wﬁ%%%%
WESHER  GHNEERTHE
é%%ﬁ%ﬁf%ﬁ@ﬁ%
FEEBEREREERE -
HEEEBERRATEEZ —FF
E-MMtZEANTEHEE
B RERHRT —EAR
AIREBRAMENEMMEERM
BHEEER: RQFRA
BHEEEE: eMIAER
SHERAPA AL ENELD
EHMERNEHRESEAE -
Rt FRHREERIRRTEE
E’]E’EH&F?EZ’SEIEEW :fﬁ
R H &R A KIHIAE -

BHEEEREEEBENH
KINHEfhEt o EEBBIARE
BRBESNRIHAE A HR
TR E RBAKE AW B P
BRERECHENEZRTE -
HZEBRERLEERAERM
KT H)ZFRREIR -

AEECABEBMEREER
F IR AR ERIKE 5 R
BREEZERRE X
ERBFRATRREE BB
HRHEREER - AKEER
BAKENELERERER
BT —ERERRE - Wi
FrERERS AR IIE R F A
RBRIEIT THE -

HREMEBEEREE - B
HEEBRRET—@EANE
HEEEBERETE - A 87
FHERIAREE R REAZIZ N
B BEBAFERABHREER
BER/EE -

103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

4,

104

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

GLORY

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to action such as realising security (if
any is held); or the financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFEE®)
(Continued)
4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 49 @I E(E)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (i) THREERBEEEE)
(Continued)
Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets PIREERENSREENT]
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the BUATIIRE S & ER#HE
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the PR (BB BRE BB B )
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial AE - WEEREERENS
assets, interest income is calculated based on the R EE R F B U A BIREZ8R
gross carrying amount. HEERHE -
Write-off policy AR
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is EREHBTREBABARSE
information indicating that the debtor is in severe B 75 IR B J% f R Ui [B] T B
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect (InEB ANEBR B E
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed BF) r&EEezEcmE
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy E -REEBANEREAER
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be Rig - AREBI A LR EIKE
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s BT ZEN e/ A&
recovery procedures, taking into account legal E o HREFIEE N EES
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are TR o

recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial liabilities (i) £THERE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, AEERABEEENEHEA
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities CRBEEITHE o K
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs TErENT BB EVILRAT
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly BEIRFTEENEEEEKAR
attributable costs incurred. A= o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities(Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables,
lease liabilities, consideration payable and
borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

4, EREFBE®)

49 LRI A @A)

(iii)

(iv)

Annual Report F# 2021

EHEEE)
B IERAGTEZ SRS

B AT E 2 ERB(E -
BRENEZERANENR
& BEt REMENE B
ERE BIREREE H
BERA BRI SOXIRE R A
it E - RN B XN B tE

o
=7]
o ©

PRI ERA B E R GE
2eh - Wessk B EBER LD F
TR o

BRFEE

ERNBER— B EEME
TERAEAR 2 BC A B A KA S
BRNITE - BREMEIERE
BEREEXBENERFH
X (408 ) 858 HA RS A 2E R
REIRAEET R SR 2 R
BRI o

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

GLORY

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as
at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 4.9(ii);
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the

obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

4.10Inve

Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued
cannot be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for
the year.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amount and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

ntories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable

value

. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.11Properties under development and

properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the anticipated sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land,
development costs, borrowing costs and other direct
costs attributable to the development of such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets when the construction of the relevant properties
commences unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

4.12Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSTHHE#)

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued) 4.12 WEHER (&)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or service
may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group'’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Sales of goods

Customers obtain control of the goods when the
automated production related products are
delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is
thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted goods. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of automated production related
products provides customers a right of return (a
right to exchange another product). These rights of
return do not allow the returned goods to be
refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on
variable consideration increases the amount of
revenue that will be deferred. In addition, a refund
liability and a right to recover returned goods assets
are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of properties

The Group develops and sells residential and
commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when
control over the property has been transferred to
the customer.

The properties have generally no alternative use for
the Group due to contractual restrictions. However,
an enforceable right to payment does not arise
until the control has passed to the customer.
Therefore, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when customer obtains control of completed
properties. The control is transferred when the
buyer obtains the physical possession of the
completed property.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Commission and brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income on dealings in
securities and futures contracts are recognised as
revenue when the relevant transactions have been
arranged or the relevant services have been
rendered.

Securities investment income

Securities investment income includes net gain/loss
on financial assets at FVTPL including realised gains/
losses which are recognised on trade dates; and
unrealised fair value gains/losses which are
recognised in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12Revenue recognition (Continued)

4, ERETHE#E)

4.12 WEHER (&)

v BEmEZ

(v) Trading of commodities

(vi)

(vii)

GLORY

Revenue from the sale of commodities is recognised
when control of the commodities have transferred,
being when the commodities have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location (delivery). The
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified goods or service,
has inventory risk before the specified good or
service has been transferred to a customer and has
discretion in establishing the price for the specified
goods or service. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the commodities are delivered to the
customer as this represents the point in time at
which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised

on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii) Others

Consultancy fee income is recognised on a
time proportion basis.

Management fee income and performance
fee income are recognised when services are
rendered.

Installation income and maintenance income
are recognised when services are rendered.

Handling fee income is recognised when
services are provided.

Revenue arising from property management
services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered.
The Group bills the customers for each month
of service provided and recognises as revenue
in the amount to which the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the
services to its customers.

For property management services income
from properties managed under lump sum
basis, where the Group acts as principal and
is primary responsible for providing the
property management services to the
property owners, the Group recognises the
fee received or receivable from property
owners as its revenue and all related property
management costs as its cost of service. For
property management services income from
properties managed under commission basis,
the Group only recognises the commission,
which is calculated by fixed percentage of the
costs involved in the management of the
property units, as its revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(viii) Others (Continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

Revenue from sales of seafood is recognised
at a point in time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Revenue from trading of home appliances is
recognised at a point in time as those services
are rendered.

Revenue from hotel operations and restaurant
is recognised upon provision of services.

Revenue from training services is recognised
over the time of the service performed to
customers.

Revenue from yacht club services comprise
mainly income from members and other
customers. Revenue from provision of yacht
club services to membership holders are
recognised over the membership period in
which the yacht club services are performed.
Payment for the membership therefore is
recognised as a contract liability over the
membership period. Revenue from yacht
parking services is recognised over the time
of the services performed to customers.
Revenue from provision of yacht club services
to other customers is recognised when
services are rendered to the customers.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

4, ERETHE#E)

4.12 WEHER (&)

(viii) Efth (&)

B A FE S BB R
ERRE IR HERR

HEBHMERENE
mRNBEFRAEED
S I 0 T — IR A Bh AR

XEEHABRENEE
HIRISE RN — R

EE it ©

BERERERBKRR
?XEE{/ \HE?F%HTIEEWU ©

15 3| AR 75 P 15 1 2 B [A)
TP RMAIRY ) — BRI
A Wﬁgﬁﬂ °

BESREBATER
?E%E@%&ﬁﬂﬂg}f
Bl e - M BIRME

B AR 7% P 15 HﬁZmEAkT
BEERGNEEHER
R At @8R
REeBHAKERRE
MAafd - RHERER
REERERREF
RERTN—BEER
R AELFEFREM
T REIR S BB AR 75 0 M 2
PR & P He {H AR 745 s B

=7
7o



4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group has the
right to consideration under the contracts with customer
from the sale of automated production related products
but not billed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group's future performance in achieving specified
milestones at the reporting date on the product
certification. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the output method then the Group recognises a contract
liability for the difference.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.12 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the cost relate. The asset is subject to impairment
review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSTHHE#)

(Continued)

4.13Income taxes 4.13 FriB8%

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received that
reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of
the business combination which affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction other
than in a business combination that affects neither
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement in determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on
these investment properties are measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

4, ERETHE#E)

4.13 FTE% (&)

11 5 A 4K 02K 528 1) 077 4 ) 5 B A A
IRE E HER T IE B R
FHRRE-HRERBEKNAEHE
B BAEERIFREAEEEH
BHRBEEREE - RIRT R EHE
ERBEEERAE -

EXEHREENREABIRN SRS
HHBETRE - 3T SAAE R
HETBARLESEHERTUE N
A El 2 E AN EERL

FHEEERTHBSHRMAE
EREH—RBEAPISMER - B
EREMER/BREFT LS ELRE
405K [EME | BANBEIIE
B o BROFRZ IR AR IR IER - BAIZE
BEMENELCHBT B ERZ
EREWMERH®E B HMOREER
ERERNRRTE - EREME
AITHIE - NS EERREIEREY
KBS RBAE D KNz IE
BRLENEHEAANRER - B
BARR SRR -

PRSI IR R FERR - MR FT S 7
HEREbemRaTERNIAER AR
B EUBERT  HETREME
E s R AR HEER
RESERNBE B EHER
T REANERNERER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHE )

(Continued)

4.14 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

4.15Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15Foreign currency (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group'’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the exchange reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

BEAETHE®)

4.15 I (48)

REEBEEKRAELNERLZER
HEL BN EaER - ERER QY
BEFIRMIFERIER EAMIE N Z8
ABNER  EEMREERRERER
REMEZEKGEARRBHFEEIREE
ERERRRIN  EUBERT - EXERE
PAEAD 2 W s MRS o

KRB ARRE - BINER R WSIR B IR F
ANHFHEXBESANEEN25 G
(BIETT) - HERE R B A AR R ) RIlRR
Sh o BN T - RIERER BETRA
RERBENER - BINEBHNMBERE
RABRHREPRNERBE - FIELH
R RN REM 2Rt AR -
WKz AR BE LA (BB IFE
Ptz (ARER)) o

REBEEENENMBHRRNVIBRERER
ERNEXZEXNRERNEREE (B
RSB A RBIN R FIRE N —
M) KEFHEEAEMEEKE IR
RN R BRI

RSB - AREBBELER
T BN RRN R EREE
BEHHBEIEIIER L E BN — 2

e



4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15Foreign currency (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.

4.16 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related
service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.17 Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
. intangible assets; and

° investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating
unit (see note 4.4), discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHE )

(Continued)

4.18 Capitalisation of borrowing costs 4.18 BB AR ERL

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

4.19Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.20 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.21Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company
that make strategic decisions.

4.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants
are presented under other income, rather than reducing
the related expense.

4.23 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
and other providing similar services is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, ERETHE )

(Continued)

4.23 Share-based payments (Continued) 423 IR AER AR E)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.

The fair value of the options granted is considered by:

— including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for the
purposes of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and grant date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

4.24 Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group has
classified the clients’ monies as client trust bank balances
under the current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies and
recognised corresponding accounts payable to the
respective customers in the current liabilities clients on
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’” monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571), the Group is not allowed
to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFHBE®)

(Continued)

4.25 Fiduciary activities 4.25 ZLEE

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned
above, the Group provides brokerage and asset
management services and the Group acts in a fiduciary
capacity which results in the holding or placing of assets
on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains or
losses arising thereon are not included in these
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
contractual rights to these assets and its gains or losses
under fiduciary activities.

4.26 Service concession arrangements

Service concession arrangements are accounted for as
follows if:

a.  the grantor controls or regulates what services the
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

b.  the grantor controls through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term
of the arrangement.

The Group’s rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure constructed by the Group under service
concession arrangements is not recognised as property,
plant and equipment of the Group because the
contractual service arrangement does not convey the
right to control the use of the infrastructure to the
Group. The operator has access to operate the
infrastructure to provide the public service on behalf of
the grantor in accordance with the terms specified in the
contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.26 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

Consideration received or receivable by the
Group for the construction services

Consideration received or receivable by the Group for the
construction services rendered under service concession
arrangement is recognised at its fair value as a financial
asset or an intangible asset.

An intangible asset (other intangible assets) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of the public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses the service. The
intangible asset (other intangible assets) is accounted for
in accordance with note 4.8.

4.27 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.27 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.27 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(a) Critical judgements

(i) Assessment of fund investments as
structured entities

Management has assessed whether the funds in
which it invests should be classified as structured
entities. Management has considered the voting
rights and other similar rights afforded to investors
in these funds, including the rights to remove the
fund manager or redeem holdings. Judgement is
made on an individual investment in each fund
where the Group has ownership interest or acts as
fund manager or both. Management has evaluated
whether these rights of investors are the dominant
factor in controlling the funds, or whether the
contractual agreement with the fund manager is
the dominant factor in controlling these funds.

5.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

EEGRThEr KA

RERAEE @ BRE - EFAYHE
ENBEHERNBEEMEEREZEEE
YR AT - fET RRR - ZEHhat KA
BROIREBELRNEMESEED
A=EL - BRERA RN ZEEET -

ZE M M BRRSFEER - 0
HTEE 135‘# Tﬁ -HEH-I—E}” HT1 ‘?/El{

FIERTROHIME - RIARGEHERT R EDL
ERTRO BRI RERR - SRS RT H AN HIR] KR
REFEH BT E - RIGRELERTH
HAFR) S R 2R BRI R

(a) EEHE

(i) FUEEREBMERNE
ERE

EREECSTHEMEENES
EEDEAEBIEER - B8
FE%EEZggumj]"&ﬁ%
B R R H AR LER - B
FEAG B £ 1532 S B ol B B 335 A%
RIRER o HIET HEN SR B AR
%.%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ? IER
DLRIBITE - IMEFREN
l\/ZTI)DJU&éfFfﬁT’Eﬁ BB
EBEH AR EENZEENZ
LRAEHEeHEERENHE
AESKIBIAVNENHEES
BRIEHZEESNEFERE -

133

Annual Report F# 2021
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134

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements (Continued)

(iij) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties that are using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time rather than
through sale whereas those situated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") are held under such
a business model. Therefore, the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties are
recovered entirely through sale is rebutted for
properties situated in the PRC but is not rebutted
for properties situated in Hong Kong. As a result,
the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of these investment
properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is
not subject to any income tax on disposal of these
investment properties. The presumption that the
carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC is to recover through sale
rather than through use has been rebutted and
deferred tax on the changes in fair value is
recognised according to the relevant tax rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Principal versus agent consideration

Significant judgments include determining whether
the Group is acting as the principal in a transaction.
The Group is a principal in a transaction if the
Group obtains control of the products sold or
services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, is subject to
inventory risk, has latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not all of
these indicators, the Group records revenues on a
gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net
amount earned as commissions from products sold
or services provided.

Distribution in specie

As disclosed in notes 9(b), 14 and 45, pursuant to a
resolution of the board of directors of the Company
on 17 December 2021, the Company declared an
interim dividend, satisfied by distribution in specie
of approximately 57.77% of the issued capital of
its subsidiary, Glory Sun Land Group Limited (“Glory
Sun Land”) to the Company’s shareholders (the
“Distribution”). The Distribution was made by way
of allocating 402 Glory Sun Land shares for every
4,000 share held by the Company’s shareholders.
The Distribution by the Company was recognised at
the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun
Land and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Glory Sun Land Group”) as the directors of the
Company considered that Glory Sun Land was
ultimately under the control of Mr. Yao Jianhui
("Mr. Yao") before and after the Distribution.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Critical judgements (Continued)

(iv) Distribution in specie (Continued)

The directors of the Company assessed whether or
not Mr. Yao has control over Glory Sun Land based
on whether Mr. Yao has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of Glory Sun Land
unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors
considered various factors, including but not limited
to Mr. Yao's absolute size of holding in Glory Sun
Land, the arrangements with the party acting in
concert and the relative size of and dispersion of the
shareholdings owned by the other shareholders.
After the assessment, the directors concluded that
Mr. Yao has a sufficiently dominant voting interest
to direct the relevant activities of Glory Sun Land
and therefore Mr. Yao has control over Glory Sun
Land before and after the Distribution.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, other key sources estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial period are as follows:

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period. The
property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated
to its respective CGUs. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of intangible assets (other
than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for intangible assets (other
than goodwill) with finite useful life at the end of
the reporting period. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. The intangible assets are
tested for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts. For the
purposes of impairment testing, assets are allocated
to its respective CGUs. Management judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether the carrying amount of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to its respective CGUs. Management
judgement is required in the area of goodwill
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the
carrying amount of an CGU can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal or value in use; and (ii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv) Impairment allowances of financial assets

(v)

and contract assets

The measurement of impairment losses of financial
assets and contract assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this
purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in
jurisdictions in PRC. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax
(Continued)

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax
(“LAT") in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of these taxes varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments
with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
LAT based on management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the tax rules, by
using a single best estimate of the most likely
outcome approach. The final tax outcome could be
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the
income tax expense and deferred tax provisions in
the periods in which such taxes have been finalised
with local tax authorities.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. In determining the fair value,
the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current
market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EEGHETTRHE @)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) AFFTEEMZETERIR(E)

(Continued)

(vii) Net realisable value of inventories of (vii) Y¥EFER AT E 5 FE
properties
Included in the consolidated statement of financial BE-ZE-—F+=-A=1+—
position at 31 December 2021 is inventories of ArERE MIBARR RS - W
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of XFENRKEEER
approximately HK$798,535,000 (2020: 798,535,000 T ( —E = F
HK$11,920,239,000), which is stated at the lower % :11,920,239,0007% 7T ) -
of the cost and net realisable value. Based on the HUAK B ] Z R FEMESD
experience of the directors of the Company and the BREESR o IREBAQFE
nature of the subject properties, the directors of EMRBLAREENEE
the Company determine the net realisable value of RRBEZ2ELRTMER
the underlying properties by reference to the PR IFEREMENMEET
estimated market prices of the properties under B WRERFWNTADED
development and completed properties held for B EE U RFERITEME
sale, which takes into account a number of factors TSR - REREER A
including the recent selling price of the properties BMEBEFHE - WS
and the prevailing real estate market conditions in K/ SRBEBEREALIFEEXR
the PRC. If the actual net realisable values of the SHMHERNMETECER
underlying inventories of properties are more or AETRESNENTEE -
less than expected as a result of change in market REEHENRMEFBERE
condition and/or significant variation in the B - ARARESBN2ELE
budgeted development costs, material reversal of EHMBAMUTIIER 2 BRE
or provision for impairment losses may result. The F& B A )Rl 52 T AR AR e ZB VE 8
directors of the Company estimate the costs to BRI o

completion and costs necessary to make the sale by
reference to the actual development cost of other
similar completed projects of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO") that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The reportable segments were classified as follows:
Continuing operations:

— Automation segment represents the trading of
automated production related equipment trading
business in Hong Kong and the PRC;

—  Financial Services segment represents regulated business
activities in respective to financial services under the
Hong Kong Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO") in
Hong Kong;

— Property Investment and Development segment
represents the properties investment activities, property
development project, hotel and restaurant operations
and provision of construction works in Hong Kong and
the PRC; and

—  Securities Investment segment represents the investment
activities through direct investments in listed and unlisted
securities.

Discontinued operations:

— Trading of Commodities segment represents trading of
commodities in the PRC;

—  Yacht Club segment represents operation of a yacht club
in the PRC;

—  Training segment represents provision of training services
in the PRC; and

—  Others segment represents operation of golf practicing
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box
and trading of home appliances and building materials in
the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
identified its yacht club operation and the provision of training
services as discontinued operations upon disposal of
subsidiaries (Note 9(a)) and trading of commodities, operation
of golf practicing court, children playroom and fitness room,
karaoke box and trading of home appliances and building
materials as discontinued operations upon distribution in specie
(Note 9(b)).

The revenue from external parties is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Revenue from Automation segment are derived from the sales
of automated production related products net of returns and
installation and maintenance income. Revenue from Securities
Investment segment is derived from realised and unrealised
gains/(losses) of financial assets at FVTPL and commission
income on dealing in securities. Revenue from Financial Services
segment includes commission and brokerage income on
dealings in securities and future contracts, interest income from
money lending, management fee and performance fee income
from financial services. Revenue from Property Investment and
Development segment is derived from the sale of properties,
hotel and restaurant operations and rental income. Revenue
from Trading of Commodities segment is derived from trading
of commodities. Revenue from Yacht Club segment is derived
from operation of a yacht club. Revenue from Training segment
is derived from provision of training services. Revenue from
Others segment is derived from operations of golf practising
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box and
trading of home appliances and building materials in the PRC.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of operating, which is in @ manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
The measurement of segment results excludes the effect of
unallocated corporate income and expenses, as these type of
activities are managed by central finance and accounting
function, which manages the working capital of the Group. In
addition, share of results of associates, fair value gain on
derivative financial assets, gain on disposal of subsidiaries and
gain on reclassification of exchange reserve from equity to
profit or loss in relation to the distribution in specie are not
allocated to segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER )
Segment revenue and results Dz R EE

Discontinued operations Continuing operations
REEERK SRAERR
Property
Investment
Trading of Financial and  Securities

Commodities  Yacht Club Training Others  Sub-total ~ Automation Services Development  Investment  Sub-total
HRER  HEER S it At BBt SHEH R¥R  B5RE gt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TR TR TR TR TER TER TR TR TR TR

Year ended 31 December HZ-F--F+=

2021 A=T-BLEE
Revenue i 3,948,164 6,568 - 89,068 4,043,800 794,032 178,130 1,767,692 (49,627) 2,690,227 6,734,027
Inter-segment revenue  AHEKE - - - - - - (75,386) - - (75,386) (75,386)

Revenue fromexternal  RESMBRFMLE

customers 3,948,164 6,568 - 89,068 4,043,800 794,032 102,744 1,767,692 (49627) 2,614,881 6,658,641
Segment results IBEE (2730 (15,486) 62,639 18,607 38,459 46233 (181917) 97,952 (67.845)  (105,577) (67,118)
Share of results of associates  FEEHE A AMELE (12,345)
Fairvalue gain on derivative 752 BHEEZAT

finandial assets Bha 1313
Gain on disposal of HEMBAR bk

subsidiaries 296,542

Unallocated impairment KA EHEBEER
losses on finandial assets ~~ AHTAEFERIE

and contract assets—net ¥ (168,698)
Unallocated otherlosses ~~ RAEAERER

—net — 58 (46,490)
Unallocated otherincome ~ RAEHERMA 16,154
Unallocated administrative KA EEHTHER

expenses (37,128)

Gain on reclassfication of ~ FEEMATEHEN
exchange reseve from BEERENAR
equitytoprofitorlossin~ EEAHKE

relation to the distribution

in specie 69,232
Unallocated finance costs ~ RABMEEN

—net 1—58 (25497)

Profit before income tax KA & AT Al 25,965
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FBER @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEBUN IR N KA (E)
Discominued operations Continuing operations
BIHEERH HEREEE
Property
Investment
Trading of Financial and Securities
Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others Sub-total  Automation Services  Development — Investment Sub-total Total
nERE
HRgn  EEEN il Efy It B8l RRE RER  BHRE NGt it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Thn FEn Fin Fin Firn Fin Fin Tin Tin T
Yearended 31 December ~ HZ=F-FE4Z
200 A=t-RILEE
Revenue st 6,129,006 10,000 8,915 104,740 6,252,661 545,377 285,625 805,044 21971) 1,614,075 7,866,736
Inter-seqment revenue el = = = = = = (38871) (1,657) = (40,528) (40,528)
Revenue from external RESNIEFHRE
customers 6,129,006 10,000 8915 104,740 6,252,661 545,377 246,754 803,387 19711y 1573547 7,826,208
Segment results PREE (8.354) (249,314) (197,113) 18,544 (436,237) 54,757 145,369 (388,002) (62,231) (250,107) (686,344)
Share of results of associates  EEIEAAMELE 16,011
Fairvalue gain on derivative {752 BHEEZAT
financial assets fEhs 18291
Unallocated other gains ~~ RAERE ik
—net fodet 38,718
Unallocated otherincome ~ RAE&E A 20593
Unallocated administrative ~ RAEKTHER
expenses (23.462)
Unallocated finance costs ~ RAEMETER
—net i— 58 (57,994)
Loss before income tax REEHAER (674,187)

The Group's revenue derived from external customers located
in Hong Kong and the PRC, is approximately HK$242,575,000
(2020: HK$300,008,000) and approximately HK$6,594,861,000
(2020: HK$7,544,711,000) respectively. The remaining
balances of the Group’s revenue represented securities trading
in Financial Services segment and Securities Investment
segment, represents securities investment loss of approximately
HK$178,795,000 (2020:HK$18,511,000).

144 GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B¢ RiEEA R A 7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (#)
Other segment information Hit o Ips g
Discontinued operations Contining operations

BIHERRR REEEXE
Property
Investment

Trading of Financial and  Securities
Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others  Sub-total ~ Automation Services Development  Investment ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-total Total

nERE

BREA  BEER S5l i N BBE SERE 0 RER EBRRE AOR it )
HKSO00  HKS00D  HK$000  HKS000  HKY'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR  TAT  TEm  TEn  TEn TR TRr  TEn  TAm  TEn TR TEn

Yearended 31 December ~ HE-F-—F1-

201 R=t-AILEE
Depreciation and amortisation 78 34 (2,155) 238 - (12,755) (17,25) 2,514) (13,544) (38,712) (7,061) (4,274) (66,105) (83,357)
(Provision for)/reversal of SREAERAY

impairment losses on BEMAEER

financial assets and (B&)/BR

contracts assets — net — 58 (26) (488) (237) (47) (1,222) 85 (1944160 (22,540) (7528 (168698)  (393,097) (394319
Impairment losses on FeRERRERE

non-finanial assets - (5,620) (4,591) (35,755) (45,966) - - - - - - (45,966)
Write-down of inventories of #1577 SR

properties - - - - - - - (172,69%) - - (172,694 (172,694)
Finance income BHBMA 36 4101 9 38 4184 1,119 120 10,362 % 31565 4319 47374
Finance costs BBRA 21397) (11,314) (4,293) (2,905) (39,909) 433) (27,579) (13,389) (10,847) (57,062) (109,310  (149,219)
Finance incomeflcosts) —net ~ BIFMA /(R %)

— 58 (21,361) 1213 (4,284) (2,867) (35,725) 686 (27,459) (3,027) (10823) (25,497) (66,120)  (101,845)

Additions to non-current ERBEETE
assets (other than financial (£ BAE RER
assets and deferred tax BRAER)
assets) - 133 - 32,682 32815 5291 119 623313 962 - 629,685 662,500

Annual Report 3R 2021 145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

6.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER @)
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn HER (&)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
BIHERER REEEXE
Property
Investment
Trading of Financial and  Securities
Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others  Sub-total ~ Automation Services Development  Investment ~ Unallocated ~ Sub-total Total
EST

BREA  BEER Sl i N EBft
HKSO00  HKS00D  HK$000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000
TRr  TAT TR TEn  TEn  TER

SBEE  RER  EFRR AOR It )
HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
TRr  TEn  TAm  TEn  TER  TER

Yearended 31 December ~ EZ-F=FE1C

2020 A=t-ALEE
Depreciation and amortisation 7% R4 - oS8 (17673 802N (6278 (1.601)
(Provision for)/reversal of SHEAERANEE

impairment losses on AEEE R/

(21512)  (24.250) (371) (4052)  (51786)  (98,064)

financial assets and BETE

contracts assets - net (121) (91) 49 (224) (387) (263) (1,486) (83,378) - (8,925) (94,052) (94,439)
Impairment losses on FeRERRERE

non-financial assets - (231314 (188489) (34,687)  (454,489) - - - - - - (454.489)
Write-down of inventories of ~ i IEFE

properties - - - - - - - (189.921) - - (189,921)  (189.921)
Write-down of inventories - - - (15,097) (15,097) - - - - - - (15,097)
Finance income BEKA 4 12 7 10421 10,514 1,204 349 744 118 28071 30,486 41,000
Finance costs BERK (21,954) (3971) (18,826) (2,130) (46,881) (384) (34,200) (873) (14,769) (228) (50,454) (97,335)
Finance incomel{costs) —net ~ BR&MA /(A K)

e (21880 (3959 (18819 8291  (336]) 0 (38 (129 (4651) 2783 (1998  (56339)

Additions to non-current FEFRIEE (B
assets (other than financial & BEERELH
assets and deferred tax BEEN)
assets) - ni 1,024 40,648 42,389 59

1

75644 615339 i 852 72559 767918

Segment assets and liabilities

The information provided to the CEO with respect to total
assets and liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with
that of the consolidated financial statements. Segment assets
comprise all assets exclude assets held by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries and other unallocated assets that are not
directly attributable to the reportable segments. Segment
liabilities comprise all liabilities exclude liabilities held by head
office and the inactive subsidiaries and other unallocated
liabilities that are not directly attributable to the reportable
segments.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A
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RETERANTEEWEERBEARAE
BB RHE B AR A B % IR AR B9 07 AT
E-NHEEREMBEE BTEEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The total amount of non-current assets (other than financial assets
and deferred tax assets) located in the PRC and Hong Kong is
approximately HK$3,610,432,000 (2020: HK$9,460,341,000) and
approximately HK$934,905,000 (2020: HK$997,114,000)
respectively.

Reportable segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total
assets and total liabilities as follows:

Discontinued operations

ALEERE

Trading of

f 3 SO 065 e A P

DEER (&)
SHEEREE &)

RPBEREE  FERBEE(EREER
BEEMBEERIN BEEIINOA
3,610,432,000/8 w( = T = T F:
9,460,341,0007% 7T ) % 934,905,000 % 7T
— T T4 997,114,000/ 7T) °

AHRESHEERABEEELENRE
RARRRMEIRIT

Continuing operations
Property
Investment
Financial and  Securities

Commodities  Yacht Club Training Others  Sub-total  Automation Services Development  Investment  Sub-total Total
BBl SREH k&R 23R4 it &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TR TR TR TER

BmEZ  EEEA i Afy

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR Thn TR ThRn TR

Asat31December 2021 W=F=-%+=f

557513 2293438 4973528 17814 7,942,293 7,942,293

=t-8
Segment assets PREE = = S -
Unallocated assets: AOMEE:
Property, plant and 0% BERRE

equipment
Investments in associates ~ REFERFINEE
Financial assets at VOCI ~ RAFERTALf
2EkE R
Prepayments, deposits BATE meR
and other receivables Et MR
Loans and advances BRRER
Cashand cash equivalents & RS ZEN

Total assets BESE

Segment liabilities AHEE o - - -

2,127
295,495

55,489

74,022

1,486,873
27,263

9,884,162

181222 76013 1773228 19850 2750313 2750313

Unallocated liabiltes: APREE:
Accruals and other &R REME
payables 308
Borrowings [#E

Current tax liabiltes THHEARE
Deferred tax liabities ELHBEE

Total liabilities BELE

108,886
675,082
1202
3810

3,550,113
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. DEER(#)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREEE)
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
RIHEE5T HEEERE
Property
Investment
Trading of Financial and Securities
Commodities ~ Yacht Club Training Others Sub-total  Automation Services  Development — Investment Sub-total Total
HRgn  EEEN il £fp 3t B8l RRE RER  BHRE NGt it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000
FhL Fhn Fhr Fhn Fhn Fhn Thn Thn Thn Tin T
Asat 31 December 2020  K=F=FFF=f
=t-A
Segment assets SHEE 25,057 62,066 54,693 185,366 327,18 586,391 2679924 28229402 175637 31671354 31998536
Unallocated assets: AOREE:
Property, plant and 0% BERRE
equipment 28,340
Investments in associates ~ IAEEE D AIHTIE 317,524
Financial assets at VOCI AT ALR
2GR
EE 74551
Prepayments, deposits BHE - e R
and other receivables Eto kR 188,067
Cashand cash equivalents ~ B2 REEEEY 470,766
Derivative financial assets ~ 4TE 2 BEAE 3,044
Others Hh 14357
Total assets AEAE 33,124,185
Segment liabiities HHEE 188,878 17,181 119,150 65,725 490,934 139,917 954,336 18,738,344 212,009 20,044,606 20,535,540
Unallocated libiltes: AORERE:
Accruals and other it BRRAE
payables ft38 40619
Borrowings & 1,645,203
Deferred tax labities EiERERE 11,037
Lease liabilties HESR 29688
Total liabiites BiEEE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from major products or

service lines:

Continuing operations:

Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Sale of goods
— Sale of properties
— Installation and maintenance income
— Commission and brokerage income
— Management fee and performance

fee income

— Others

Revenue from other sources
— Securities investment loss
— Interest income
— Rental income

Revenue from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15
— Trading of commodities
— Training services
— Yacht club services
— Others

Revenue from other sources
— Rental income

Revenue from discontinued
operations

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time
Transferred over time

DEE R )
AEBREFEERIREE 2 WA
4
2020
—E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT FHETT
(Re-pr(isented)
(BEFEHR)
KEQEER . -
BBRB S ERE 15 HE
A2 KRG HEHEFEE Kz
— P miHE 771,105 524,022
— MEHEE 1,604,144 682,878
— RE N MEERA 5,250 4,699
— A% RELEA 81,438 69,335
— EEBNERBRA
48,048 40,710
— HAty 13,103 19,734
2,523,088 1,341,378
H AR 2 Wz
— BHREEE (178,795) (18,511)
— FBEHA 101,667 132,904
— HE WA 168,881 117,776
91,753 232,169
FEEERA 2,614,841 1,573,547
RIEREZR
BB B HEER|F 15 KA E
AZ KRG HEHEFHE Kz
—RHmE5 3,948,164 6,129,006
— 53 AR 7% - 8,915
— R ATART 291 1,612
— Hfth 89,068 104,740
4,037,523 6,244,273
H b7 W zk
— e WA 6,277 8,388
RIEEEEIEN
4,043,800 6,252,661
W 25 FE R B
R B 6,512,272 7,534,414
BE B R i 2 48,339 51,237
6,560,611 7,585,651
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is no
major customers contributing for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue.

DEBER #)
FEEFER
BE_T_ZFR_FT-_—F+=_HA

=+—BLEE #$EIEFFAERMEA
KBS REER 10% KA EE) SR o

OTHER GAINS — NET AND OTHER INCOME 7. Hfilsm— FERHEAMUA
2021 2020
—B-—F —TETHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&T Fi&T
(Re-presented)
(BEF2R)
Continuing operations: BEREEK
Other gains — net Hitl=— F58
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KT B A B TS Mk as
(Note 44(c) and 44(e)) (MI3E 44(c) K. 44(e)) 296,542 519,624
Fair value gain on derivative financial MTEESREE 2 A FERZE
assets 1,313 18,291
Gain from derecognition of financial RIETERI B RERE LS
guarantee contract Was - 33,419
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - WERERED
equipment BB (1) (123)
Loss from derecognition of derivative RIEBERITTESREED
financial assets [gi] (33,357) =
Loss from derecognition of subsidiaries IR B A RIREE (999) =
Others At (9,039) 557
254,459 571,768
Other income Hipg A
Dividend income sz BA 5,139 10,781
Government subsidies (Note) BT 7 B (B 3E) 3,295 8,039
Others HAh 43,218 25,802
51,652 44,622
Note: M EE -
For the year ended 31 December 202 1,the government subsidies represented the BE—_2-——&+-A=+—RILEE WF®#AE

encouragement of development of culture and creative companies and the
support of the Group’s automation business from the relevant government
authorities (2020: HK$6,539,000 are government subsidies obtained from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region supporting the
payroll of the Group’s employees.) The remaining subsidies represented the
encouragement of development of culture and creative companies and the
support of the Group’s automation business from the relevant government
authorities). The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the subsidy
notice or relevant law and regulations.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

HEBT#EAZE UL REAIE AR BRI IFAE
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 8. FRAKERKEXKER
OPERATIONS

Loss for the year from the continuing operations is arrived at FRBEREEBERENG GEA) -
after charging/(crediting):

2021 2020
—B-—F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FET
(Re-presented)
(BEFEHR)
Auditor's remuneration IZ SN &
— Audit services — ZBRTS 6,130 5,839
— Non-audit services — JERREURT 938 950
Cost of inventories and inventories of FERMEFERKA
properties 1,928,359 1,033,477
Write-down of inventories and inventories 175 & #2717 Sy (B =E)
of properties (Note) 172,694 189,921
Cost of inventories and inventories of ERARAINTFERDERFE
properties recognised as expenses D& 2,101,053 1,223,398
Amortisation of intangible assets EEEEEE 6,782 6,783
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERBEITE
equipment 59,323 45,003
Directors’ and chief executive’s EERITHBERZME
emoluments 13,069 15,570
Employee benefit expenses EERAAEL 261,753 223,180
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - HE R&HREE
equipment 1 123
Net foreign exchange gain SN W F R (59.864) (18,914)
Gain on reclassification of exchange MEY D IRASE R R BER
reserve from equity to profit or loss in B EE BRI E
relation to the distribution in specie (69,232) -
Short-term lease expenses HHHEER 9,221 6,761
Impairment losses/(reversal of) impairment & B & & M & 4& ERRIE
losses on financial assets and contract BB REEE(EE)
assets — net: — FFE
— loans and advances — EBERRRK 370,669 1,486
— trade receivables — BB Z RN (99) 269
— other receivables — HAb UK 22,588 32,473
— contract assets — AHNEE (61) 59,824
393,097 94,052
Note: B E
Write-down of inventories and inventories of properties to net realisable value of TFERYMEFEMEZE AT # I FE4L 172,694,000 %8
approximately HK$172,694,000 (2020: HK$189,921,000) was included in “cost TT(ZZEZF4 :189,921,000) BILE G ALZELE
of sales” under continuing operations of the consolidated statement of WS RIFECEE TR [SEERA] -

comprehensive income.
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 9. RIMREXERK
(@ On 23 July 2021, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the @ WNZIZBE-_—F+tA=-+=H'4&RQ
Company entered into an agreement with an TR EMBATHE —LBIE=
independent third party in relation to the disposal of the FETHE AAEELEEBES
entire issued share capital of Yue Jin Asia Limited (“Yue MAERA ([EEBITH ) 2R
i Ao Yoe ) S o 5 s s g5 susan <y
provision of training services. The results and cash flows iﬁ:{ =y "If' 3 E&
of the discontinued operations of yacht club and =] ”UEE% ° ﬁﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁﬂ H "Qﬁf%\
provision of training services as well as the gain on Uii%i i\ﬁ%z%fﬁfﬁﬁmiﬁﬁ
disposal are as follows: ERFREZFRIT
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Revenue Weas 6,568 18,915
Cost of sales SHE A (6,233) (41,694)
Other loss — net and other income HhjE51E — SR R E AU A (4,114) (112)
Impairment losses on non-financial FemEERBERSIE
assets (10,211) (419,802)
Impairment losses on financial assets 4 @& E M RIEEE
— net — R%E (725) (42)
Distribution costs 7 SHAC AN - (111)
Administrative expenses THREA 7,522 (4,292)
Loss from operations RELEEKNEIE (7,193) (447,138)
Finance costs — net BbE P AN FEE (11,497) (12,456)
Loss before income tax MRETEBATE R (18,690) (459,594)
Income tax credit Frigtiiie - 49,884
Loss after income tax from RERILREEBENRTE
discontinued operations BEEE (18,690) (409,710)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHRB A E TSR
(Note 44(b)) (FfI7E 44(b)) 65,843 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from RERIEEEEBRNER
discontinued operations w=EL(ER) 47,153 (409,710)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAGRR (i) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N 27,165 (283,232)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE 2 19,988 (126,478)
47,153 (409,710)
Cash flows from discontinued RERLEREEBENES
operations: TE
Operating cash flows KERETRE 3,163 10,338
Investing cash flows KERESRE (128) (1,720)
Financing cash flows MERESRE 4,692 (14,070)
Net cash flows REeEMEFEE 7,727 (5,452)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

A gain of approximately HK$65,843,000 arose on the
disposal of Yue Jin Asia. No tax charge or credit arose
from the disposal. Details of the assets and liabilities
disposed of and the gain on disposal of Yue Jin Asia is
disclosed in note 44(b).

On 18 November 2021, the board of directors declared
an interim dividend that was satisfied by way of
distribution in specie of shares in Glory Sun Land held by
the Group to shareholders of the Company. The
distribution in specie was completed on 28 December
2021. Upon completion of the distribution in specie, the
Group ceased to engage in trading of commodities,
operation of golf practicing court, children playroom and
fitness room, karaoke box and trading of home
appliances and building materials. Details of the assets
and liabilities distributed are disclosed in note 45.

The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations
of trading of commodities, operation of golf practicing
court, children playroom and fitness room, karaoke box
and trading of home appliances and building materials
are as follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

RIEREER =2
@ (&)

& B 85 50 M 2= 4 49 65,843,000 78
TR ES - R EWREERIEN
BRoiR - HEMBEERABRBUK
s B M 2 U 2 s BT RE
44(b) R

R-ZE-_—F+—A+N\H &=
CRAAQNFBRRERPHPRE - %
RHIR B A B R 5k A& E AT
BENBHEMWZRD - BEWSIK
RZE-_—F+_A=Z+NHE
e BYDIRTKE  NEEBTH
REEREFULCESHARE
% REEEENESE - FROK
SERENEREMEES - DK
MEENBBEZHFBEENME
45 o

EmESESRARES REE
BERREE - RUOKZMERE
MBS IEREEE 2 EENR
TREBRMT

Revenue Wz
Cost of sales HE KA
Other gains — net and other

income* A *
Impairment losses on non-financial e MEERMEBEEE
assets

Impairment losses on financial assets

and contract assets — net B8 — JF58

Distribution costs 7 SHR AN
Administrative expenses TIRER

Profit from operations KBRS LB RT
Finance costs — net B FER AN — JF R
Loss before income tax MRETEBATEE
Income tax credit/(expense) Fris®iige, (F)

Hipas— FREEAM

TREENMANEENRE

2021 2020
=B —F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
4,037,232 6,233,746
(3,950,063) (6,162,334)
3,590 6,486
(35,755) (34,687)
(497) (345)
(1,131) (14,728)
(33,587) (11,532)
19,789 16,606
(24,228) (23,911)
(4,439) (7,305)
9,230 (8,739)
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9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

9. HRIFREXEK &)

(b)  (Continued) b) (%)
2021 2020
B —F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Profit/(loss) after income tax MEFBFANER,(E5E) 4,791 (16,044)
Loss on reclassification of exchange REY D IREASE L FHE
reserve from equity to profit or loss HER)EEERNEE
in relation to the distribution in
specie (4,255) =
Profit/(loss) for the year from KEHRILEEEEBNER
discontinued operations AL (EE8) 536 (16,044)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEAEER,(EE) :
Owners of the Company PiN/NETE Y =N (1,531) (8,298)
Non-controlling interests FEE R 2,067 (7,746)
536 (16,044)
Cash flows from discontinued REARILREEKNRS
operations: RE
Operating cash flows KBRS RE 75,039 (195,516)
Investing cash flows KERSNE 15,787 =
Financing cash flows MERESRE (97,367) (126,132)
Net cash flows Remn2F58 (6,541) (321,648)
* Including the gain on disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food & BEREEERNTHBEHRREXERAA

Industry Company Limited of HK$1,806,000 (Note 44(a)) (2020:

nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING
BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS)

f 3 SO 065 e A P

10. ETRAAX (T REESERE
M)

Continuing operations: ERER
Wages and salaries IT& RE
Other employee benefits Hh 8 TR

Pension costs-defined contribution plans
and social security costs

B RERA

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), which is a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong
(the employer) and its Hong Kong employees make
monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employee are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC contribute to state-
sponsored retirement plans for its employees. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

BARERA — EREFEE &

(ii)

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHETT
(Re-presented)

(BFEHR)

223,054 197,467
13,144 12,666
25,555 13,047
261,753 223,180

REBELRHEBREREED MAS
MRAESFE((RESFE )  H
BRBIYZTATENTEBEERE
£l o RIFRIESFTE - REEE
MEMBAR(EX)BEGEA S
EEESEE AR EELHAER
BEAB(TERARFELESE
B)5% HHH - EXEEESEN
F AH G A1,5008 T A LR
M ERABRRAIBERENEE -

FEERARAEPIRTR - NP EE
BB ARSERERBEIRE N
ZRARETEMEL AR - ZFWE R
BIMBRANE T A B TEARS
B BERERIN  WEER R
REHEREBMNOEMEME
£ BRERZEARATAE A
BN TERKEE Z2BEARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo e S8 265 e A B

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (EXCLUDING

10. ETRAAX (T REESERE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS) MErER)#E)
(Continued)
(iiiy  Five highest paid individuals (i) RAEZ@FAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two directors (2020: three directors),
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 12. The emoluments payable to the remaining

AEELEREHFALEEMEE
B(CZE_ZTF =REF) HM
TERME 122500 RER - 7B
FARNTFTHRT=2AL(ZZEZ
TE MBEAL) WS EZIT

three individuals (2020: two individuals) during the year
are as follows:

BEAHS B4 HthEBh R
BEWFla
RKAEN— ER G S

Basic salaries, bonuses, other
allowances and benefits in kind

Retirement benefit-defined
contribution scheme

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

2021 2020
—B-—-F ke ke S
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FET
6,196 3,917
54 36
6,250 3,953

& BHRIA T 868 :

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Emolument bands Bl < &5 B
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000

No inducement for joining the Group or compensation
for loss of office was paid or payable to any five highest
paid individuals during the year (2020: nil).
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1,500,001 % T = 2,000,000 7 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

11. FINANCE COSTS — NET

Continuing operations:
Finance income:
— Interest income on bank deposits
— Interest income on financial assets
at amortised cost

Finance costs:

— Bank loans

— Trust receipt loans

— Obligation under repurchase
agreements

— Margin loans

— Corporate bonds

— Other loans

— Note payables

— Loans from related parties

— Lease liabilities

Less: Interest capitalised on
— investment properties under
construction
— properties under development

Finance costs — net

Note:

1. IR A— FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
(Re-presented)
(BE¥FE®R)
BEEEEK
B URA
— RITERFBHRA 11,753 28,673
— R ER AT ENERE
B2 FBHWA 31,437 1,813
43,190 30,486
BAFSR AN
—RITER (423,405) (339,539)
— ERKIEER (222) (316)
— OISR T AR
(9,111) (9,893)
— HFRER (21,105) (5,077)
— RAEESH (96,848) (103,552)
— HiER (300,420) (266,128)
— BN EE = (6,331)
— BB ER = (1,529)
—HEAaE (6,024) (6,425)
(857,135) (738,790)
W BT B
— EREREYE
169,928 128,128
— ERPME 577,897 560,208
(109,310) (50,454)
BTSN — JF 58 (66,120) (19,968)

The weighted average capitalisation rate for the year on fund’s borrowed is at a

rate of 6.9% (2020: 5.86%) per annum.

GEE

HeEBROFENEFHENMCERTF6.9% (=2

ZTF 1 586%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EEENRER

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERTHRARZHE
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of HE_Z_—F+_A=+—HLFE"
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31 REBEN ENNAARGEEERIT
December 2021 is set out below: BBEMF T
Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit Discretionary contribution
in kind bonuses  to pension
Name of director BE=2E Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme

2R
RENE WERAL EIRKS
ik (Ffeta) (Mt b) ST #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR FET TR

Executive directors HITES

Yao Jianhui jol$E 600 1,032 351 18 2,001
Li Minbin 2 HOR 824 1,081 981 102 2,988
Huang Wei =IE 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po 2278 1,860 2,831 950 18 5,659

Non-executive director ~ FEH{TEE

Zhang Chi o st 312 212 66 71 661
Independent non- BIUkHITES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong FHRFB 660 - 20 - 680
Lee Kwan Hung =Gk 360 - - - 360
Lee Kwok On, Matthew THE 360 = = = 360
5,336 5,156 2,368 209 13,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

12. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 12. EEENNER &)

(Continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERTHARZHMS (&)
(Continued)
The remuneration of each director and the chief executive of HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—HILEFE"
the Company paid/payable by the Group for the year ended 31 REBEBER EBANARETRESE KT
December 2020 is set out below: BN EFH MO T
Salaries
allowances Employer’s
and benefit  Discretionary  contribution
in kind bonuses to pension
Name of director EEZEB Fees (Note a) (Note b) scheme Total
BB - 28h
REDEF| HBTEAT EERIK
e (Ktzxa) (FifsEb)  SETEIfER BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Yao Jianhui ki 600 1,082 323 33 2,038
Li Minbin ZER 1,188 1,672 474 64 3,398
Huang Wei =g 360 - - - 360
Lau Wan Po 2EH 3,000 2,693 1,800 18 7,511
Ye Weiging (Note ¢) ZEE (MFEo 253 = = = 253

Non-executive director FEHITESE

Zhang Chi SR ot 312 200 58 40 610
Independent non- BYEHITES
executive directors
Wong Chun Bong FHRH 660 - 20 = 680
Lee Kwan Hung ES 2 360 - - - 360
Lee Kwok On, Matthew ~ ZFE% 360 - - - 360
7,093 5,647 2,675 155 15,570
Notes: PfsT -
(a) Being salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid or payable in (a) HARRRENBARNEREEFTBEANE
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and its N ERF S - R EYER
subsidiaries
(b) Discretionary bonuses are determined on the performance of the (b) BB TEARIBE EMRBIRTE
employees
() Resigned on 2 June 2020 () RIE-TENA-HEIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12.

160

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were
no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. No inducement for joining the Group
or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
directors during the year.

The remuneration shown represented remuneration received
from the Group by these directors in their capacity as employee
to the Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group does not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2020: Nil).

Save as disclosed in note 50, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

12. EER/ARERS @)

ESRTHRARCHE (&)

HE_Z-_—FEK=_ZFT=_FF+=A
=t+—HIEFE  BEEEHEXREN
EERAMESHOLEE - RFA - NEBIE
BB REFIAETENES - EAK
SIESEMAARE B S ERREBAMHE -

M EZFEEHRAKERE
R/ 35 RANARESRHHWEAEEEE

M -

BE-_T-_—F+-A=+t—HILEE "
AEETERREREERBRAEMRE =
FXARE(ZE_2F &) -

MN-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H  HELNE
F EBEIENAEREBERAY S

AZER BEERKEMR ST (ZF
ZTF E)o
BRMIFESOPT I FEE O - REEERT L

HEAREBEBER  MARTEFAENK
MEBREEAEIZBERFERIENTM
BREGEEZEARS  THEAR(ZE
ZEF )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13. FIB8HiMx (&)

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following:

PSRN BRERPERIN T

2021 2020
—B-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Re-presented)
(BEFER)
Continuing operations: FEREEKL .
Current tax BEARR 18
— Hong Kong Profits tax — BHBEH 11,583 30,492
— PRC enterprise income tax — PR EMERH 91,222 12,087
— PRC LAT — BT B ETR 88,902 58,351
191,707 100,930
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAEFE (BREERE),
BET 2 (963) 1,074
190,744 102,004
Deferred tax RIETIA (86,787) (154,254)
103,957 (52,250)
Discontinued operations: HIPREEER
Current tax BIEARR I8
— PRC enterprise income tax — R RSN 83 71
Deferred tax IRAERIE (9.313) (41,216)
(9,230) (41,145)
Total income tax expense/(credit) REFELERKLREER
from continuing and discontinued HFTERiEY (ER) B
operations 94,727 (93,395)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

13.

162

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year (2020: 16.5%),
except for one subsidiary of the Company which is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For
this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits are
taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5%.

The statutory income tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is 25% (2020: 25%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including leasehold land
payments and all property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated the tax provision for LAT according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

13. FIBBiRAY (&) #)

AEEZEENESHRBHEIR G ERR S
FE16.5% (ZE-FF - 16.5%) & -
WARRMEF —HWHEBRRBFAEF
BRMERERE TS EREE - %M
BARKERREMNNE 885 LR
8.25% My Tl BT - E R R TR 7%
16.5% B R RBFL -

RAEEENHBRATNEERR A
25% (ZZF=FF : 25%) °

TR ER iR T ERIEERE30% E
60% M REMRKFTE - HEBRHEY
EMERBERGEEE DN FTIARME
MEBRFAXSFANRFAX - AEEER
B BEMEENEARMARPTET AR
E At L HIRETR IR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 13.

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled
to profit/(loss) before income tax in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income at applicable tax rates as follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

R8> (%))

Profit/(loss) before income tax
— Continuing operations
— Discontinued operations

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable in the respective jurisdiction

Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax
purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of share of results of associates

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Provision for LAT

LAT deductible for calculation of income
tax

(Over)/under provision in prior years

Income tax expense/(credit)

REEMEHAS (Ef)JlHlEae2
M= R NIRER R AR ABRFTEH
A& R (BB) YR T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
BRETSRATE R, (E18)
— R (12,494) (207,288)
— R ET 38,459 (466,899)
25,965 (674,187)
REARERE R AR 2 &
BEFTHE 2 MIE 51,115 (149,730)
BEMBRS 2 RIEE
(150,835) (142,855)
T BENRAS 2 RISHE
67,324 62,503
DR E N RIEE B E 2,037 (2,642)
RERHEBEE BT E 61,920 102,571
B AT R ER 2 HIBEE
(2,547) (8,079)
iiﬂzifﬁﬁﬁéﬁ 88,902 58,351
ST EFT SRR AT 3R 2 Tt 3
B (22,226) (14,588)
BEFE (BRERE),BET
2 (963) 1,074
T8RS (H%) 94,727 (93,395)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

14. DIVIDENDS

164

(a)

Dividends attributable to the year

14. B2
(@ FEEERS
2021 2020
—B-—F —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TAT

Interim dividend HHARR

On 18 November 2021, the board of directors proposed
an interim dividend that was satisfied by way of
distribution in specie of approximately 3,154,445,000
Glory Sun Land shares held by the Company on the basis
of 402 ordinary shares of Glory Sun Land for every 4,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The proposed interim
dividend was approved on the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting on 17 December 2021 and the
distribution in specie was completed on 28 December
2021. The distribution by the Company was recognised
at the carrying amount of the net assets of Glory Sun Land
and its subsidiaries of approximately HK$4,910,191,000, of
which approximately HK$1,803,913,000 was attributable
to owners of the Company as the directors of the
Company considered that Glory Sun Land was ultimately
under the control of the same party before and after the
distribution.

No interim dividend was proposed during the year ended
31 December 2020.

No final dividend was proposed during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

1,803,913 =

R=-ZE=-_—F+—A+\A E=F
& 355 M) KA A) 4,000 i B AR
EIRP RS - ZT R ETIRE
ENMBEMNI2REBRG 2 EE
NEMHEADERARARFEND
3,154,445,000 E ¥ B X 15 - B
RHRER - E-—F+=-A++
=R R NN L SR S N i
MEWHER_-_ZT=-—E+= A
ZHNAEK - ARAF D IRIZE
FEWRENBAGFEERA
{B#74,910,191,000 /8 T HER - Hh
NAEEA AFE(G491,803,913,000
BT AARARREEREBENE
R DR BT8R — A LW REE
il

HE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—H1t
FE - BEZERNPHRE -

BE_T-_-—FR-F-_FF+=
A=1T-BLEFEHEEERHR

B o
N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The basic earnings/(loss) per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(excluding treasury shares held by the Group) of
31,387,512,000 (2020: 30,605,023,000) during the year.
There were no potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding for
both years and therefore the dilutive earnings/(loss) per share is
the same as basic earnings/(loss) per share.

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

15. BREF (EiE)

FREREARBTF(BEB) HREARQ
AEAARIERET(BE)BRUFAE
BTEBROMEFHHE I BIEREE
FHBEFR%)31,387,512,000 % (=
ST F maﬁmammﬁﬁﬁ £
RERHEHNRBTBEE ST AR B
SR EERRN, (B BSREALRR
L/ (BB) R -

ARREE ANEIEERERRR(BIE)
TIRBEATERETE

2020
—ECTF
‘000
T
Weighted average number of ordinary HFEANGREAREF,(EE)
shares in issue (excluding treasury PABE 1T E @A A hntE 15
shares held by the Group) during the H(TEEAEBFAFEN
year for basic earnings/(loss) per share EFRD) 31,387,512 30,605,023

(@) From continuing and discontinued
operations

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following:

(a) REFFALERRILELEXRK

ARBIEEANEBIEBRENEIRT

Loss attributable to owners of the
Company

ARBEEARIEER

BIEATERTE
2021 2020
—E=—F —TETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
(188,957) (217,251)
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

166

(b) From continuing operations

(o)

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing

operations is based on the following:

15.

SERERN(&FB) =)

(b) REFEELER

REFBELEEBONARREEA
FEIE FIRER (B18), B TR &

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ~ ARNABHEA AEN (E1B),/
the Company i )

From discontinued operations (0
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share

attributable to owners of the Company from
discontinued operations is based on the following:

IATERETE
2021 2020
— = —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(214,591) 74,279
REFELSEEK

2 LA ST RO 2 FIE A
s SR EARFL (1R TR
AR -

ARRER NEE BT,
(E18)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2021 2020

=B —F —ECREF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
25,634 (291,530)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y15 - BERRE
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture and Land and
fixtures and Machinery properties
office  and factory Computer Motor  Construction- leased for
Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment vehicles  in-progress Yacht own used Total
HENE
&8 4R
2B OUR  RERER HEkER
BT HOERG BERE EhRE AE HEIR R WibRAE @it

HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT ThT TRT THT THT TR TRT ThT ThL

(Note (d)

(@)
At 1 January 2020 R=B-%5-A-B
Cost s 302,247 76,03 34,118 17,143 8375 32,79 2473 151,457 624,630
Accumulated depreciation and ZHIERBE

impaiment (154,941) (50,973) (33,546) (6,340) (4,146) (32,693) (1123) (18,197) (301,959)
Net book amount FEFE 147,306 25,050 51 10803 4229 101 1,350 133,260 322,611
For the year ended HE-3-%f%

31 December 2020 tZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 147,306 25,050 57 10803 4229 101 1,350 133,260 322,671
Additions AE - 32,104 4700 1,558 1,061 5,641 - 96,847 141,91
Transfer to investment properties SRERENE (W)

(Note 17) (11,958) - - - - - - - (11,958)
Transfer from investment properties B ERAME (H17)

(Note 17) 209,197 - - - - - - - 209,197
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMBAT (Fa) (3,777) (749) (636) (8415) o = = (4,840) (18421)
Lease modification BEET - - - - - - - 1,192 1,192
Disposals L - (497) = = (13) = = = (620)
Depreciation it (12,854) (12,9%) (191) (1,151) (1,170) - (336) (25,708) (54,406)
Impairment E - - - - - - - (34,687) (34,687)
Exchange realignment EfRE 279 2,460 45 21 143 186 273 6,062 9,469
Closing net book amount EREEFE 328,193 45312 4490 2816 4136 5928 1,281 172,126 564,348
At 31 December 2020 RZB-8F+ZB=1-A
Cost A 348,69 99,368 2,176 13719 8558 40,490 2887 241,646 777,540
Accumulated depreciation and ZiERRE

impaiment (20,503) (53,99) (17,686) (10,903) (4.422) (34,562) (1,600) (69,520) 213,192
Net book amount FEFE 328193 45312 4490 2816 4136 5928 1,287 172,126 564,348
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BERRKRE ®)
(Continued)
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture and Land and
fixtures and Machinery properties
office  and factory Computer Motor  Construction- leased for
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment equipment vehicles  in-progress Yacht own used Total
HEY%
5 ZAR
2B R RERER BEfEA
BF  BOERRE BERE BlRfE AE HBIR R WibRAE szt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Fhn Thn FHn Tin Thn THn Thn Tin
(Note (d)
(@)
For the year ended HEZB=-%

31 December 2021 tZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount EEESHE 328,193 45312 4,490 2816 4,136 5928 1,287 172,126 564,348
Additions AE - 34,704 - 14 1,081 - - 13,769 49,101
Transfer from construction-in-progress  BEEHR TR - 6,059 - - - (6,059) = = =
Transfer from investment properties ~ BEE R EMNE (K 17)

(Note 17) 66,100 - - - - - - - 66,100
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44) HEMBRR (ita) - (3.550) - - (685) - (1.31) - (5,466)
Distribution in specie (Note 45) ENAR(Hi4s) (5,056) (43,420) - - (199) - - (87,841) (137,116)
Disposals e - (104) - 1) - - - - (106)
Depreciation & (23.265) (19.915) (502) (1,086) (942) - (80) (26,482) (n212)
Termination of leases RIEE - - - - - - = (35) (33)
Impairment HE - (10,025) - - - - - (25,730) (35,755)
Exchange realignment ERAE 18,673 1,605 124 19 8 131 u 4 25,080
Closing net book amount EREATE 384,645 10,726 4112 1,888 2,880 - - 50,228 454479
At31 December 2021 W-B--F+-A=1-A
Cost A 429,651 21,932 2314 13,982 6,738 - - 72,982 573,599
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE

impaiment (45,006) (17,206) (18,202) (12,094) (3.858) - - (22,754) (119,120)
Net book amount SEFE 384,645 10,726 4112 1,888 2,880 = - 50,228 454,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the impact of Covid-19
pandemic have had negative impacts to the global economy, business
environment and directly and indirectly affect the operations of the
Group. The financial performance of the operations of a golf practising
court, karaoke box and fitness rooms were adversely affected resulting
from the deteriorated economic environment and uncertain outlook of
the Group's business following the influence of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment allocated to the respective CGUs and as a result the
carrying amounts of the property, plant and equipment were written
down to its recoverable amounts of approximately HK$137,116,000
(2020: HK$59,144,000). An impairment loss of approximately
HK$35,755,000 (2020: HK$34,687,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the
CGUs related to operations of a golf practising court, karaoke box and
fitness rooms have been determined based on value in use calculations,
which is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
the most recent financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the cash
flow projections are those regarding the annual projected revenue over
five-year period, growth rate and discount rate. The annual projected
revenue over five-year period ranged from approximately HK$16,673,000
to HK$18,687,000 (2020: HK$13,708,000 to HK$16,037,000),
HK$7,077,000 to HK$9,156,000 and HK$11,303,000 to HK$15,896,000
for operations of golf practising court, karaoke box and fitness rooms
respectively. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount rate used is 16.77%
(2020: 15.88%), 16.92% and 25.34% for operations of golf practising
court, karaoke box and fitness rooms respectively.

The estimates would face a challenge due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
therefore management's estimated cash flows factor in possible cash flow
scenarios.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

16. ¥ - BENRE #)

BT -

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—HILtEE

BE-_T-—+-A=t+—RItEE"
2019 MRS RBRIBH EIREE MERR
EXTAEVE VTEERHEEFETASE
B2E% mBABRES - RHOKEGAT K
HBEMLERE  RZ2019TNASHEE
FEEYNCERIER R EF AR AR
LHEBENMBRBIENTHRE -

At AEBEFE I REESEHSELS
Lz BMEREHBZINBDSE  E
MZEWE BERZHEZERDERMK
IR 2 AT Uk B B8 49 137,116,000 7 7T (2020
159,144,000 7T) - RERE 2 H K=K
T 52 R B /&5 18 %935,755,0007% JT(2020 4 :
34,687,000 7T) °

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE" &
SHRKRMKES  RROKBFRESENRL
HENREEEBUNAT KB EEDENE
AEETEMEE  WIRB T BEEGHERME
THRENEEMSL - ZZFEERUAR
AESERENTRERFHHROHY
BEERAKBENRERERA - REeREHE
ARBARBREEREEMAFHENFETE
FHles  ERERTRENBR - KL
KRB - RRNOKSFEEIEHNRAFHE
B Z W a9 B T 4916,673,00058 T B
18,687,000 JT * (20204F : 13,708,000/ JT &
16,037,000 JT) * 7,077,000 7T 9,156,000
7 7T 5 11,303,000 % JT £ 15,896,000/% 7T © i
HAFEIRIR @ E Ty 3% B b5 i
HEREREE ZERXVEBBESES
BUGEEBHNRBATERE - KESR
KRB - RRLOKZ AT RS FATABRE AT
8538 & 5 Bl £16.77%(20204F : 15.88%)
16.92% % 25.34% °

MR 2019BRREHENS - ZFRAKEER
®hE - AHERENRARSRETERT
AR RERR
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRE #)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Bfizx - (&)
(b) Buildings with carrying value amounted to approximately (b) BR M 18 #9184,307,000/8 T ( —Z T — & F :

170

HK$184,307,000 (2020: HK$126,632,000) have been pledged to a bank
to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 35).

Right-of-use assets ()

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

126,632,00078 L) WIEFEERAKE MR
TR (5L 35) -

EREEE

REBAEERESNERAELEREED
e -

2021 2020
—B=-F —ECTF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k= FRT FHT
Ownership interests in leasehold land held ~— ZEFRBIATERK A AR B Y
for own use, carried at depreciated cost B RS LR T A R
in the PRC = (i) - 59,144
Other properties leased for own use, HEEEREMYE -
carried at depreciated cost FEK AR (i) 50,228 112,982
Notes: FitsE -
(i) Leasehold land for own use (i) BHAMASE L

The Group has obtained the right to use a parcel of land in the
PRC for its operation of golf practising court. The lease term is 17
years. Lump sum payments were made upfront to lease the land,
and there are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms
of the land lease.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

©

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

Properties leased for own use

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has obtained the right to use
properties as its various offices through tenancy agreements with
independent third parties and a related party, a company in which
Mr. Yao has significant influence over the related party. The leases
with independent third parties typically run for an initial period of
2 to 6 years. The lease with the related party runs for an initial
period of 20 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in

f 3 SO 065 e A P

16. ¥ - MERRE @)

fsE - (&)
(0 HEREEEE)
Mt : ()
(i) EEFEBANTE

RZZ-ZTF+-_A=+—R0 " £&
B maREE =) Ry (P2
E%E(WEEESEEJ)%%%%EH%
BEAXENINAT)MBERH &5
H—r#@%fﬂfﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ#“*ﬁ’ﬂiﬁﬂ%°
HBEYE=TWAERETEAH256
FoBEBOTMBEEVHMR A2
F o BERREREBEERER BEM
iE - EPBRERETRM KRGS

HERaPHANEEFHENER

profit or loss is as follows: BotfmT

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by REMEERRE SRR
class of underlying asset: BENNEER :

Ownership interests in leasehold land HE TR EER 4,242 6,342
Other properties leased for own use HEEERMEMME 22,240 19,366
26,482 25,708
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGENS 9,964 7,444
Expense relating to short-term leases RHEEER 10,028 7,733

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December
2021 was HK$13,201,000 (2020: HK$21,707,000). Details of the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 28(a).

HE-T-—F+-A=+—HI#F
E - HEMRS ML AR 13,201,000
,%m( T T4 1 21,707,000/87T) ©

EBENEH A DTS R R
E?ZS(a)o
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17.

172

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWE
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
At 1 January ®n—A—A 9,301,747 9,011,837
Transfer from property, plant and EEAYE - WERE
equipment (Note 16) (FffzE16) = 11,958
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB ZEYE - FE KR E
(Note 16) (F&E16) (66,100) (209,197)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44) & — B AR (FE44) (2,224,723) (9,439)
Disposals k=S (415,604) (11,675)
Distribution in specie (Note 45) Bk (M3t 45) (4,063,202) =
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HigMBRER 612,671 598,253
Fair value gain/(loss) N EWE(EE) 144,171 (607,202)
Revaluation surplus arising from BROEYE  BERZEHR
reclassification from property, plantand ~ EA&E GRS
equipment - 6,442
Exchange realignment RIS 340,697 510,770
At 31 December Wt-A=+—H 3,629,657 9,301,747

The Group measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties using the tax rates
and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected manner
of recovery of these investment properties.

Investment properties with carrying value amounted to
approximately HK$1,885,000,000 have been pledged as
securities to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 35)
(2020: HK$5,536,668,000 have been pledged as securities to
secure the Group’s bank and other borrowings).

(@) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

AEEFEREKEZFREMERRT
ABRTHHEERLRE  AEZFREME
TR Z RAPRIERIA -

8F [ 18 /& 49 1,885,000,000/& T ( —Z &E =
T £ 1 5,536,668,0008 T2 O E A 1E
RAEERITREMEENER) 2KE
MECERABERAIEBETEENE
(MFE3S) ©

(a) BREVEREBEZBRAZTHE

2021 2020
—B-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Rental income HeA 168,881 117,776
Direct operating expenses from EEHESWRAZYE
properties that generated rental HEREEERXT
income 40,402 31,712
Direct operating expenses from REEHSWAZYMEZ
properties that did not generate HEREEERX
rental income 5,037 2,218
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17. BEWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) AFEEZERK
The following table presents the fair value of the TRINTRIRE BRIRE R M
Group's investment properties measured at the end AEGENTEEIREMER
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, FE - WD BEABAMBRE
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy EHIFE13RAFEFERTE
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. =B FEER R FEE
The level into which a fair value measurement is EERME D HIBEMERI
classified is determined with reference to the FIEt R ABBH A BRREE
observability and significance of the inputs used in RBEWERE - ST
the valuation technique as follows:
Fair value
measurements
at 31 December
2021
R-BZ-—%F
+=A=+—H
FTEMNATE
Significant
unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
EATRTH
BRGAgE
(BE=E#&)
Description i HK$’000
FEx
Recurring fair value measurements EEERNFETE
Investment properties: WEME -
— Office, workshop, dormitory, —WAE- T -BE - JEH-
shop, car parks, hotel and =815 BIERBYES
shopping arcade
— the PRC — 3,407,557
— Office and residential properties — WMRAERETEWHE
— Hong Kong —&BE 222,100
3,629,657
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

17. BREWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE S

() RFEEFRE)

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2020

~NEERE
RZZEZEF+-A=+—H
Significant
other Significant
observable  unobservable
input inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Hib g A BBANA
BRaABE BRBABE
(B=E#H) (F=IEH) st
Description g HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
Recurring fair value it
measurements
Investment properties: "KEEANTEFER
B
— Office, workshop, —WAE - T35
dormitory, shop, car BE EH =
parks, hotel and Bi5  NEREE
shopping arcade Y%
— the PRC — 1,069,035 7,925,312 8,994,347
— Office and residential ~ — WAZEREED
properties *
— Hong Kong — &5 55,200 252,200 307,400
1,124,235 8,177,512 9,301,747
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and
level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an
investment property situated in Hong Kong of
HK$67,300,000 was entered into a tenancy
agreement in March 2020 and was transferred
from level 2 to level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
The valuation technique was changed from direct
comparison approach to income approach
following the occupy possession. Except for that,
there was no transfer among the fair value
hierarchy.

Other than described above, there was no change
in valuation technique during the years.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

17. BEWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE S

(i)
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BE-T-—F+ZA=1+—
RILFE  AFEBRTHE
—BH - E_EBRARE=ER
2 R B -

HE-_Z-TF+-_A=1+—
H It F - #67,300,000/%5
TR EBNEENER=Z
“EE-AFIHEERH I
EAFEEBRTPRE_ERE
FE=BA&-15F%  HER
TR EE LB EE AR A
75 o BRIELLASN - A EERME
B o

B EXAES - EREER
73 5 2 8 o

AEERF RN SRS
SEREB TS AERAT
ERRZM 2 AR -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation
of the opening and closing fair value balance is

176

provided below:

(i)

Opening balance (level 3 recurring
fair value)

Transfer in level 3

Transfer from property, plant
and equipment

Transfer to property, plant
and equipment

Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 44)

Distribution in specie

Capitalised subsequent expenditure

Fair value gain/(loss)

Revaluation surplus arising from
reclassification from property,
plant and equipment

Exchange realignment

Closing balance

B (B R
AFE)

WAS= AR

WEANE BERR

BEEDXE  BELERE

HE—HHEBAR
(FIE44)

Bk

HiEAZBaTER

ANEERZ(EE)

BHAENE  BE&
BBAEEMBEHAR

g

PE XS
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17. REWH*E &)
(b) BREVMEWATLENE L)

RFEERE)

EBEATATBER AL
AT B (E=BAR)

REMENDFERE=ER
REERTENE - BORB
RE R HEA SR FHREAR

T

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
8,177,512 7,828,564
- 67,300

= 11,958

= (209,197)
(2,224,723) (9,439)
(3,368,750) =
612,671 598,253
134,480 (567,668)

= 6,442

298,467 451,299
3,629,657 8,177,512
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17. BEWE #)
(b) REVWEWATENE(E)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i) 1EELMREA B

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs

Valuation processes of the Group

Independent valuations of the Group’s investment
properties located in the PRC were performed by
the external valuer, Valtech Valuation Advisory
Limited (“Valtech”) to determine the fair value of
the investment properties as at 31 December 2021
and 2020.

For the investment properties located in Hong
Kong, the valuations were performed by the
external valuer, APAC Asset Valuation and
Consulting Limited (“APAC”) as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 .

Valtech and APAC are independent and
professionally qualified valuers that hold recognised
relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and category of the
investment properties valued. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest
and best use.

The Group's finance department includes a team
that reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief
financial officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the CFO,
the valuation team and external valuers at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s
interim and annual reporting dates. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the fair values of the
properties were determined by external valuers.

AEEGEREF

SN AR 5 IR E AR A A
(AR ERAEELNFE
R E Y EETEGHE - B
ETRENEN T =_—FK
—EZEF+-A=+—HK
AYE -

MR BEBNEREYMENS -
HNEE{E (B B 22 K 8 B Tl R B
MAERAG ([EAEETME])
BERZE_—FR_ZT_FTF
+—A=+—HETHE-

TRRDRXEEMERFTER
A REEXERLNAEER
EMENNE RSB EALR
IR By B L AL (ERT - 3L
PREREMENS - REER
HERE &S MKEERRS -

BET RS Bk - ALEH
BEPI R — B EE B
BERTFTEITREE - ZBEBE
EmEaRUBeE((8EM®K
BHE c HEVBKE - A
E b R INBEERE D ENE
BemnERFRERET—
IREE - R EAREBEA
REBREAHR - N_F
T—FRZZEFTF+ A
=+—H  ZEVENAFE
R MNE (L ERTEEE ©
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17.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

17. BEWHE &)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREWMENLFENEE)
properties (Continued)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HEEMREAEIE (&)
Valuation processes of the Group (Continued) KEE b BT (&)
At each financial year end, the finance department: REVBREER - BEIM
e Verifies all major inputs to the independent e ZEBEVIAEMRENA
valuation report; EEXE2HAHE
e Assesses property valuations movements o HAFMHEAERELE
when compared to the prior year valuation AHEMELEES &
report; and
e Holds discussions with the independent o HFEN(HERIEE o
valuer.
Valuation techniques Ve
Completed properties in Shenzhen, the PRC RAERBURIIEE T I
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the valuations RZEZ—FR-_ZTTF
were determined using income approach (term and +-A=+—H " HEFBHK
reversionary method) based on the following NE(RERIESE) IREI

significant unobservable inputs:

Vacancy rates

b

R

=8
Term and reversionary yield

EHMER SR

Current market rent rates

BimsHeERX

TERAA B RGE ABIRE
% 8

Based on current and expected future market conditions after
expiry of any current lease.
RBIMERIREROZN R NORT RIERAARKTRETE

Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.
BRIBEMEBRINE  EEMEE  WEENGEBRPOHTSH
BETE -

Based on the actual location, type and quality of the properties
and supported by the terms of any existing lease, other contracts
and external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties.

REVMEERME  BE  BXET WEEAMBEAEOK
;o HE A RINDRE (Flanat#aiRTmE) (EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWZE#)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENAFETEHE)
properties (Continued)
(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1EEEWREA B (&)
Valuation techniques (Continued) & 1EFL T ()
Properties under construction in Shenzhen, the PRC AR BURINE 2 5%
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the valuations RZEZ—FR-_FT_FF
were determined using combination of market +=—A=Z+—8  HERER
approach and depreciated replacement method LATRE AR ATER 828 A B -
based on the following significant unobservable HRATSEMTERIRES O
inputs: HEEHR
Accommodation value Accommodation value represents the unit rate where the
transaction price is divided by permitted plot ratio gross floor area.
EEME BEMERRECERS  ERRGERRUATTHTERLEE
& o
Incurred construction costs Incurred construction cost represented the accumulated
construction cost incurred as of date of valuation.
EESMEIRA EELMIKAEEEENRFAEIAA - ERMHEBEREIKAE o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

180

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(iij) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

Valuation techniques (Continued)

Properties in Ganzhou, the PRC

Completed properties

As at 31 December 2021, the valuations were
determined using direct comparison approach
based on the following significant unobservable

input:

Price per square meter

17. BREWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE S

(i) 1HEFMREABE (&)

fEER A (&)

TR BB M B9 P 3
BExEIME
R-B-—F+-A=+—
B HEZRENTEATY

B ABBERERLEE
MmEE

Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,

size, age and other individual factors between the comparables and

the properties.

BFITAKER EZRTAIBLRAREZMERERE LB AR AR FR

REAERAZDEONER -

Properties under construction

As at 31 December 2020, the valuations of
properties under development in Ganzhou, the PRC
were determined using market approach based on
the following significant unobservable input:

ZEEYES

RZBEZEF+A=+—
B FERENERFPDENG
ENFEAMSEREUTEKR
B A B MET -

Estimated construction costs These are largely consistent with internal budgets developed by the
Group’s finance department, based on management'’s experience
and knowledge of market conditions, less cost of percentage of
completion on the construction. Estimated construction costs also

include a reasonable profit margin.

ETHE AR ZERIERANEE MK PIMELNABEERBUER - HT0R
BEREEMERARETLANT® - BIRE LK E D LK
AETE - Bt IKATEEEENMBEEX -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REME @)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENAFETEHE)
properties (Continued)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) EHERGREABE(E)
Valuation techniques (Continued) & 1EFL T ()
Properties under construction in Shantou and FAFR B\ R & Y A TE R 3

Nanning, the PRC

As at 31 December 2020, the valuations were RZE_FEF+_A=+—
determined using direct comparison approach B HEEREATERTH
based on the following significant unobservable BRE ABBEAERELEE
inputs: MEE :

Price per square meter Taking into account the differences in time, location, condition,

size, age and other individual factors between the comparables and
the property.

HFEFKERK ERETABLMRARIHEZMENKR LB AR HE - FR
FMEMERNAZTEMNER -

Completed properties in Hong Kong NEENE =T

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group R —FRZT-_FF+_A=+—
engaged external valuer to perform the valuation H AEBES/IINEGEEERKAER
using income approach and direct comparison BELECEETHE BEMNEEET
approach. While the valuations of certain properties MENGEDZEREAHY  ZSYER
located in Hong Kong had taken into consideration AW ASEETHENRZEYENFEE
of existing tenancies, such properties were valued HEDNENOBAE=H  WERMNTE
by applying income approach and the fair value K7 A] B R A B

measurement of such properties were classified as
Level 3 with the following significant unobservable

input:

Reversionary yield Based on actual location, size and quality of the properties and
taking into account market data at the valuation date.

B KRR REWMEERME HEEMEER  WEENGERPOHTISE
BETE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWMZE )
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENAFETE(E)

properties (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued) (i) 1HEHTTREALE (&)
Valuation inputs 1 1E A BIR
Below is a summary of the valuation technique J/A—I—Z%.d‘)\ NP ESERE=
used and the key inputs to the valuation of Fi E’\j&éﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@&
investment properties included in Level 3 in the fair Mk E B ABUERE :

value hierarchy:

Relationship of unobservable

Description Fair value at 31 December Valuation technique(s) ~ Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
g R+ZB=+-BHATE fhERH TUBREAYE FUREAAYBEE TUBREABBELTENBE
2021 2020 2020
ZBz-F S 33 - St 22
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL
Completed properties in 1,311,531 1,090,767 Income approach Vacancy rates 10% 20%  The higher the vacancy rates, the
Shenzhen, the PRC lower the fair value
RAERYNE IR WNE ZEX ZEXHR - AATELE
Term and reversionary yield 7-8% 7-8%  The higher the term and
reversionary, the lower the fair
value
EARESREE EARESREZERE AT
{EHE
Current market rent rates RMB31-RMB62 RMB25-RMB60  The higher the current market rent
per square meter  per square meter rates, the higher the fair value
per month per month
RimsHeEE BABYHK BRABTRX ROMBECEERHR A

ARENTE AR¥EB TR AYELER
AR¥ 627 ARE60T

Properties under construction 1,030,706 824,611 Combination of market Accommodation value RMB1,344 RMB1,715  The higher the accommodation
in Shenzhen, the PRC approach for land and per square meter  per square meter value, the higher the fair value
depreciated replacement
method for building
ReERYINER R ARRAHHTINTS BELE BYARARE  SYARARE  BEREHS ARTEMS
ERTHETHNES 13047 17157
B
/
Incurred construction costs RMB2,105 RMB1,292  The higher the incurred
per square meter  per square meter construction costs, the higher
the fair value
BEEHINA BYARARE  STARARE  EELEIAFES AATE
21057 12927t s
Completed properties in 1,065,320 - Direct comparison approach  Price per square meter RMB5,000- - Thehigher the market prices, the
Ganzhou, the PRC RMB15,800 higher the fair value
per square meter
RAEENNETINE ERNEE BEHARER BYARARK - WHERER ARTEES
5,000 Z 15,800 T
Price per carpark RMB110,000 - The higher the market prices, the
per carpark higher the fair value
BREEESER BEFEEARY - THEHER AIRTEER
110,000 ©
Properties under construction - 1,044,428 Market approach Estimated construction - RMB5,952-  The higher the estimated
in Ganzhou, the PRC costs RMB6,385 construction costs, the lower the
per square meter fair value
RbBEENNERNE 5k fhEr IR - gYAR  fEEHEIRAES  AATE
ARE5,952 2 it
ARH6,3857T
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

Description

it

Properties under construction
in Shantou, the PRC

RPELBRERNZ

Properties under construction
in Nanning, the PRC

RERENERNZ

Completed properties in
Hong Kong

REEHETEINE

Valuation techniques and inputs (Continued)

Valuation inputs (Continued)

Fair value at 31 December

RtZA=t-ANATE EEKH
2021 2020
ZBC-F “R-%F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERL TAL

TURREABE

Range of unobservable inputs

TURERABBHE

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs

- 3,006,256 Direct comparison approach  Price per square meter

BREE BYIRER

- 1,959,250  Direct comparison approach  Price per square meter

BB BEKER
222,100 252,200 Income approach Reversionary yield
WNE EEhEE

There are inter-relationships between unobservable
inputs. Expected vacancy rates may impact the
reversionary yield with higher vacancy rates
resulting in higher yields. For investment properties
under development, increases in estimated
construction costs that enhance the properties
features may result in an increase of future rental
values when the properties are completed. An
increase in future rental income may be linked with
higher costs. If the remaining lease term increase,
the yield may decrease.

The valuation for investment properties under
construction was also arrived at by making
reference to comparable sales as available in the
relevant market. The construction cost incurred and
estimated construction cost to complete the
development as at the date of valuation are also
taken into account.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

17. BEWHE &)
(b) BEVMEWATLENE S

(i) 1HEFMNREABE (&)

1 EBA IR (&)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TUBERABEENTENBE

2020
-2-%kF

=%

- RMB22,400-  The higher the market prices, the
RMB35,833 higher the fair value
per square meter
YRR THEERER AATEES
AR¥24007T
=

x
AR#35.8337C
- RMB28,814-  The higher the market prices, the
RMB34,906 higher the fair value
per square meter
AR THEERER  AATEES
AR#28,814T
=

AR 34,906 7T

1.9% 1.8%  The higher the reversionary yield,

the lower the fair value
ESkaxEs  AATERE

TABRBABBEZHATER
- M= E XA R EERK
R(ZEXHRREERY
Jo MBERBEBREMEM
* (fETHE TR IS R T
MERE - LYETIRDN
ARRBSEEEN - REHEE
WA INREE ZRAER
il RISRFARRIE 0 - R a3k

7T -

ot Fo Bk SN

ERREMEZEET2ER
AmS AL BEHERS D °
AN - TRE BT B E R HE
AR TR AN B ER B R IR B
BB ET B TR o
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18.

184

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

Contractual Other
Trademark customers Operating intangible
Goodwill  and patents  relationships License right assets Total
BE BERENE ANEFBAE R feR HtEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THx TR TR TR THET THT
At 1 January 2020 R=2-%5-F-H
Cost AR 147,958 3,984 55,710 10,997 818,656 4,440 1,041,745
Accumulated amortisation and 2t KAl E
impairment - (3,984) (37,133) - (271,192 (2,701) (315,010
Net book amount REFE 147,958 - 18,577 10,997 547,464 1,739 726,735
For the year ended BZ-Z-2F+CR
31 December 2020 =+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 147,958 - 18,577 10,997 547 464 1,739 726,735
Additions "E = = - - 1,720 - 1,720
Amortisation B = = (6,340) = (36,875) (443) (43,658)
Impairment iE - = = = (419,802) = (419,802)
Exchange realignment kS - - - - 8,841 - 8,841
Closing net book amount FREAFE 147,958 = 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
At 31 December 2020 R-E-BE+-8
Sr=F
Cost AR 147,958 3,944 55,710 10,997 868,274 4,440 1,091,323
Accumulated amortisation and 2234 R EifE
impairment - (3,944) (43,473) - (766,926) (3,144) (817,487)
Net book amount REFE 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
For the year ended BE-Z--%1278
31 December 2021 Zt-HLFE
Opening net book amount S ¥IEREF(E 147,958 - 12,237 10,997 101,348 1,296 273,836
Additions hE - - - - 128 - 128
Amortisation B - - (6,339) - (4,303) (443) (11,085)
Impairment e - - - - (10,211) - (10,211)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT
(Note 44) (it 44) - - - - (88,851) - (88,851)
Exchange realignment B X AR - - - - 1,889 - 1,889
Closing net book amount FREHEE 147,958 - 5,808 10,997 - 853 165,706
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-8
=t-H
Cost KA 147,958 4,014 55,710 10,997 - 4,440 223,119
Accumulated amortisation and  Z5HE S5 RHI(E
impairment - (4,014) (49,812) - - (3,587) (57,413)
Net book amount REEFE 147,958 - 5,808 10,997 - 853 165,706
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. BILEE (&)

(a) Impairment test for goodwill (a) EERBERFE

Management considered each operating segments
represents a separate CGU for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing.

As of 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
goodwill allocated to the Automation and Financial
Services segments amounted to approximately
HK$43,722,000 (2020: HK$43,722,000) and
approximately HK$104,236,000 (2020: HK$104,236,000)
respectively.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on value in use calculations or fair value less cost
of disposal with reference to market price, whichever is
higher.

For value in use calculations, management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on
industry growth forecasts.

BEERS BABREREM
5 BEKLED MBS —(EBILN
REEEEN -

RZIBE-_—F+_A=+—8 ' 5
e T BEEtResREDHBHHE
BREE D R4 /A43,722,0008 (=
T T4 143,722,000 ) M A
104,236,000/ JL( = & = & F -
104,236,000787T) °

ReELEMMARESETRB
EABEFEHAFERLERA
(A ERE)2RMGERME
= e

SMEREEEMNS  EEEER
R B, REEENE ST
ERRSELEMETRRORER
AL RAEFHRAIREK - BRERTHER
TRERBRIMIEL -
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18.

186

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

For Automation segment and Financial Services segment,
the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the next five years with a terminal value related to the
future earnings potential of CGUs beyond the next five
years to determine the recoverable amount of CGUs. The
financial budgets and growth rates are estimated based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The key assumptions used for the value in
use calculations are as follows:

8. BIEEE#®)

(a) BHEBERRE)

RESBEIEREBRE DA
| REEREEEEMHAKRE
TH AREREASREEA -

TIREE R BN AR RAFH R
TP BEAE - MERKEERBRAKR
RKAFRBASEEBMHOREEF
&N MBREMERERARES
ERBREMIZERBBMAE
EREEFEMBNEZMRAOT

Financial
Automation Services
BEt & B AR
For the year ended 31 December BEz-Z=——%
2021 TZA=+—HLEFE
Growth rate BRE 5% 5%
Discount rate AhIE = 11% 11%
For the year ended 31 December BE-_ZT_-_ZF
2020 TZRA=E+-—HLFE
Growth rate BRE 5% 10%
Discount rate AR % 14% 16%

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of CGUs.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. BILEE (&)

(b) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, (b) BTGk -_FF+=

the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic have had negative
impacts to the global economy, business environment
and directly and indirectly affect the operations of the
Group. The financial performance of the operations of
yacht club as well as training services were adversely
affected resulting from the deteriorated economic
environment and uncertain outlook of the Group’s
business following the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Accordingly, the Group assesses the recoverable amount
of the operating right allocated to its respective CGUs
and as a result the carrying amounts of the operating
right was written down to their recoverable amounts of
approximately HK$44,378,000 (2020: HK$51,089,000)
in the segment of yacht club and approximately
HK$44,473,000 (2020: HK$50,259,000) in the segment
of training respectively. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$10,211,000 (2020: HK$419,802,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of which the amount of
approximately HK$5,620,000 (2020: HK$231,314,000)
arose in the segment of yacht club and approximately
HK$4,591,000 (2020: HK$188,488,000) arose in the
segment of training respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs related to operation of
yacht club and training services have been determined
based on value in use calculations, which is arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rates of 1% (2020: 1%). The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the
business in which the CGUs operate. The pre-tax discount
rate used is 17.64% (2020: 17.86%) for the operations
of yacht club and 14.17% (2020: 14.27%) for training
services respectively.

A=+—HBIEFE 20198 MHFE
REBZIBEERIRECTE  BER
BEATARYE  YEHELHE
HETAEEZEL - BRERSHH
B RIBRIEIIRG 2 M RIS
F2019BRASHERIBHERLE
RIEBMEBEBFAI S THAZ

TS -

At - AEEFHOREESER
TEABMNLCERTIKESEE -
B AT 2B R B o B A AR
AR T (B A M 2 51 H0s 2= H AT Uk B &
KA#944,378,0008 L (ZE=ZF :
51,089,000/ 7T ) 2 44,473,000
(= & = F 4 : 50,259,000 %
JL) o RirE 2GR R ERRE
E7184910,211,000 T (ZE ==
F 1 419,802,000 T ) HH 4
5,620,000 ;o( = & = T F:
231,314,000/ 70) 2R B S FT
#B + #94,591,0008 (=L =T F :
188,488,000/87T) 2K B 1535 3P o

%

—E-—F+-_A=+—HLF
B - EEEME g AT RIF I AR X K548
ENREELBMNNAIKESES
ERNFEREEFEMET - WHMA
BYBEAEMETHEMSL -
ZEMEFAUARTERERE
FRERFHMAKIBAYKEE A
RIENRERETEE - BBAFZ
REMmERGHEIMETHERE1%

CERCTE 1) %E
EERWEBBIRESELEBMANET
ENRBATFIERER - KEEHES
BT K BR AR 55 301 AR 755 P {56 F B9 54 AT B
WEH P AE17.64% (Z B _FF :
17.86%) K 1417% ( — B T F :
14.27%) °
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

19.

188

(b) (Continued)

(9]

The estimates would face a challenge due to the
Covid-19 pandemic, therefore management’s estimated
cash flows factor in possible cash flow scenarios.

The operating right was used in the Group’s operation of
a yacht club and provision of training service. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of
these assets upon the disposal of subsidiaries disclosed in
note 44(b).

Amortisation of intangible assets of approximately
HK$4,303,000 (2020: HK$36,875,000) was charged to
cost of sales and approximately HK$6,782,000 (2020:
HK$6,783,000) was charged to administrative expenses
for both continuing and discontinued operations.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. BILEE (&)

(b)

(c)

(%)

B 2019 BB RERE - ZEh
IS EERDEEL - UL E IR B Al e
MREREBR MAFTRERER
o

TERANAEEKEEREEM&
REEINRS - B122021F12 A4
31HIEFE - A& B KK E44(0)
FEAHHEHRBARKBRLEZEE
Eo

B §5 & 2 P #94,303,00078 7T
—ZT T4 36,875,000 7T) 2
A SHE A AR K 496,782,000 % T
—TE T : 6,783,000/ 7C) B 5t
ANIFE MR HCE TS 2 ITREA -

19. REFE DN TIMIRE

At 1 January

Capital injection

Share of results of associates

Share of other comprehensive income

nm—HA—H
AE

DIEBE R R EE

of associates

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—~8

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

DMEBE AR E M 2 E s

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ZETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THxT FHEIT
317,524 321,780

= 24,842

(12,345) 16,011
(9,684) (45,109)
295,495 317,524
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

f 3 SO 065 e A P

19. RBEEQRNRE @)

&L
Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December 2021 (a) LWTHEBREER TS =—FR=_F=F
and 2020. The associates as listed below have share capital consisting FH+ZA=Z+—BZBERA - TXHEIDH
solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. BEARNRANERLEBRAERK  BAEE
HERE -
Country of Place of
Name incorporation business Ownership interest Principal activities
£ SEAR AR S B R S E BEERR TEER
2021 2020
bl —T_TF
Advanced Radio Device Korea Korea 43% 43%  Research and development, manufacturing sales
Technologies, Inc. (“ARDT") and marketing of semiconductors for
communication and related equipment
#E HE s - 8% - HERTISEERARIEBRE
EORSCh
Tekmar, Inc. The United States of ~ USA 37.76% 37.76%  Research and development, manufacturing sales

America ("USA")

EXFBERE E30
([%@E])
Yunnan International Holding Hong Kong Hong Kong 32%
Group Limited (“Yunnan”)
ERBERRNBRAR EE 9
(TE8ED)

ARDT, Tekmar, Inc. and Yunnan are private companies and there is no
quoted market price available for their shares. There are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the associates.

The Group has fully impaired the interest in Tekmar, Inc. and ARDT in
prior years and did not have any unrecognised share of losses of
associates.

All of the above associates are accounted for using equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

of carrier grade wireless telecommunication
systems and components

ME - REREETARRAIEREAZAR
B

32%  Investment holdings and trading
REEBRNES

4R35 B AR %5 & F & AR 75 ARDT  Tekmar, Inc. 2
ERA/FARA - HRMH I ETISRE - #
ERERARENBMENR 2RI IREE -
BEFEANEBBR Tekmar, Inc. & ARDT 2 ##
HBBELRE - WEREMARERZ D HE
L&/\jjgﬁg

E AR R R RBERANR A TS
WA AN
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REFE QR TINRE (&)
Summarised financial information for the HEAEBBEAZHE QAR ZHMEE
associates material to the Group R E
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRIREEHERF ZHBERE -
information of material associates, adjusted for any differences EREHBRNEMNE2FEDABRAR
in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amount in R A SRR AR R EE AR -

the consolidated financial statements:

Yunnan and its subsidiaries (“Yunnan Group”) EREREMBAR ([ Z8EEH])
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHETT
As at 31 December Rn+=-—A=+—H
Current assets MBNEE 960,499 1,053,758
Current liabilities mENBE (310,608) (563,728)
Non-current assets IEmBEE 470,484 502,231
Non-current liabilities IERBasE (196,954) =
Net assets BEFE 923,421 992,261

Group's share of net assets of Yunnan SRAEF I EEHEENEE

Group for the year FE 295,495 317,524
Year ended 31 December HE+Z-A=1T—RHILFE

Revenue for the year REF W= - 132,412
(Loss)/profit for the year F1Z (E518),/ %7 (38,577) 50,034
Other comprehensive income for the FREAM 2 EWE

year (30,262) (140,965)
Total comprehensive income for the FRNEERERTE

year (68,839) (90,931)

Group's share of total comprehensive SRR EBEOIEEHEBEEK
income of Yunnan Group for the miEEE

year (22,029) (29,098)
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI 20 RAFEFAHEMEZEKEZ

cTREE
2021 2020
Equity investments EERRAFETA HK$'000 HK$ 000

designated at FVOCI Hith2EmREWERIRE F#&x FHIT
Listed shares: WG
— Equity securities — Norway — RAEZESH— BE 38,218 36,825
— Equity securities — the USA — BRARFEEHE— £ 1,895 10,482
— Equity securities — Hong Kong —BRAEFEHF— BB 222,380 404,130
262,493 451,437
Unlisted shares JE TR 15,376 27,244
277,869 478,681

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be strategic
in nature.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, unlisted securities which
quoted market price is not available of aggregated carrying
amount of approximately HK$15,376,000 (2020: HK$27,244,000)
are measured at fair value and determined by market approach
using backsolve method (2020: market approach using backsolve
and calibration method) which are not based on observable
inputs.

The fair values of listed securities are determined on the basis
of their quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.

Changes in fair value of the above equity securities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
within the financial assets at FVOCI reserve within equity. The
Group transfers amounts from FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

FRERRE TR HE NS E RIE AT
Bt ARMEERER  REAEAEER
RZEREBRBIEL -

RZEZ—FRZT_FFF+A=1—
B @W{E#15,376,0008 T (=%
F 127,244,000 70) A KRBT E
RELEMESTIUARAFEFELRAF
AR AEE XN S E(WIEERJER
WABE)(ZE_ZF - RRMEEMN
rlﬁ/fmfﬁiﬁ/f)ﬁi °

ETESHAFERBRSBROTS

FRABRAEFNAFELBREMEE
Wt P ERL N R AR A FEFAR
fEmKmM S REERET R - &LE
EARERAESRR  AREKEATE
AR EERENFEEERERER
Al o
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20.

21.

192

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI (Continued)

Financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following
currencies:

20. BAFPEFARMBEZEREZ

EWMEE &)

BAFEAARMEERENEREE
HEHE -

IATINE

NOK dollar 78
US dollar e
Hong Kong dollar BIT

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets at FVTPL

Put option ROH B
— Current — e

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the put option had
been de-recognised as a result of the disposal of Yue Jin Asia
(note 44(b)).

As at 31 December 2020, the details of the put option are as
follows:

The Group shall have the option (the “Put Option”) to, at the
Group's discretion, sell the Option Shares (as defined below) to
the seller of Yue Jin Asia at any time within 5 calendar years
from 28 December 2016 upon the Shenzhen Dapeng New
District Management Committee or any other relevant
governmental authority enforcing its rights under the operation
entrustment agreement entered into between Shenzhen Yuejin
Sports Company Limited and Shenzhen Dapeng New District
Management Committee or any other relevant governmental
authority (“Operation Entrustment Agreement”) for any
breach of the Operation Entrustment Agreement by any
member of the Yue Jin Asia and its subsidiaries before 28
December 2016 at the Option Share Price (as defined below).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

BEAFEFABRSNEREE

2021 2020
B —F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
38,218 36,825
17,271 37,726
222,380 404,130
277,869 478,681
CPTESRMEE
2021 2020
:g: — qi — 7 P E'E
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#&x FHIT
- 32,044

HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE
P E BB RMNR C AR I FERR R h HiRE
(B 44(b))

R_F_FTF+-_A=+—0 BERA
HIERRFB T -

Eﬁf%ﬁﬁ;‘}|1‘§lﬁﬁﬁ AW (EfIRK B
TRERTE - AIRIERRERS
E\ﬁiﬁcﬂﬁ@m?ﬁﬂ?ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁféﬁi
NEREEBRA A LFINAREFEE
BELZEgNEMEMBEBRAKELSE
MEEZthas((REERHE]) KN
T—XNE+ A=+ /\BAIASRERS
BR(EEOT)ITEAEEFNNERLT -
AEEBRE(IREHE]D B1THNERE
R-E—ARFt+-_A-+N\HENSERE
FAEREBRGRAERD L E4HGEHRE
INEB R EWEB AR
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 21. TTESREE (®)
The consideration for the Option Shares (“Option Share HERNORE(HERGER]) &
Price”) shall be the higher of (i) the cash equivalent of the sum TEEANESE  (VEZERTIEEN
of (a) the amount paid in cash by the Group to the seller of Yue ZERAE  QOAREEURSEAZH4E
Jin Asia and (b) the value of all the consideration shares issued BREONETNSEE: NOEFHEMR
by Glory Sun Land to the seller of Yue Jin Asia as at the date TERGEEZBREH BB
when the Put Option is exercised; or (i) the fair market value of B ERERDOERE : )R ITER
the Option Shares to be determined by an independent valuer VhERRE A B E (G ERNFTE E /S
as at the date when the Put Option is exercised. R AFTE -
Where: W -
Option Shares means all of the issued shares in the capital of MR ISR HARTRE - NERDE
Yue Jin Asia as at the completion date of the sale and purchase MR B EHTROMEENTKB
of the issued shares in the capital of Yue Jin Asia after exercise B EERDMNRAFRE D BT
of the Put Option. (2
As at 31 December 2020, the Put Option was stated at fair NZEB_EF+_A=+—H ' G
value based on the valuation performed by Valtech, an ERBEVEEGBEMARTEERA
independent firm of professional valuer. The valuer conducted AHETTIAE 2 AT EYIR o HEMER
the valuation based on a profit forecast obtained from the BRARRESNMNBERN(E=HFAF
Company (level 3 fair value measurements). BEF2) REITHE -
INVENTORIES 22. 7€
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Finished goods FEAK on 40,001 26,204
Others HAh, 202 239
40,203 26,443
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23.

194

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23.

Within normal operating cycle included
under current assets

The balance comprises:
— Land cost

— Construction cost
— Capitalised interests

Expected to be completed and available
for sale after more than 12 months
Expected to be completed and available

for sale within 12 months

EIERSERRAAIIE
mEEE

EHRBEE

— AR AN
— LA
— BARIEFE

BEHZR T _EAATIR
A&

BN+ —EARTIR
A E

The properties under development are all located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2021, no properties under development

was pledged as security.

As at 31 December 2020, properties under development of
HK$3,123,958,000 and HK$3,367,303,000 are pledged as
securities for bank borrowings and other borrowings granted

to the Group respectively (Note 35).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

LRI ES
2021 2020
=B —F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
319,572 9,477,577
67.363 5,189,096
234,390 3,235,717
17,819 1,052,764
319,572 9,477,577
- 7,979,435
319,572 1,498,142
319,572 9,477,577

BRTDEZBURTE -

R-F-_—F+-_A=1+—H8 HEEHF

ERERTYEEERD -

RZZEZTF+-A=1+—80 ZEEDPY
% (3,123,958,0007% JT X 3,367,303,000
BILDRIRBIER FTAEBEMRITEE
REAEEREAR (FFE35) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

According to the state-owned land use rights grant contract
("Land Use Rights Contract 2014") dated in March 2014,
the parcels of land in the PRC for the property development
project of which certain properties under development of
approximately HK$130,841,000 and completed properties held
for sale of approximately HK$281,750,000 (Note 24) held by a
subsidiary namely Yunfu Baoneng Property Limited (“Yunfu
Baoneng”) were required to be completed by March 2017. As
at 31 December 2020, the development was still under
construction. A failure to meet any development milestones
contained in the Land Use Rights Contract 2014 may lead to a
daily penalty of 0.01% of the consideration of the Land Use
Rights Contract 2014 in according with the terms of the Land
Use Rights Contract 2014. The Group had made submission to
relevant land authority on application of extension of
completion of development on the ground that such delay has
been due to various reasons beyond its control. As advised by
the Group, there was no formal written notice has been served
to Yunfu Baoneng by the relevant land authority in respect of
the possible breach of the Land Use Rights Contract 2014; and
the Group considers the ground for application of extension of
completion of development is valid under the terms of Land
Use Rights Contract 2014. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has been still waiting for the written notice of extension from
the relevant land authority. After consultation with the PRC
legal advisor and taking into account the status of the
construction, the directors of the Company consider that no
provision in respect of the possible breach of the Land Use
Rights Contract 2014 is required to be recognised as of the end
of reporting period.

During the year ended December 2021, Yunfu Baoneng was
de-recognised from the Group upon the completion of
distribution in specie.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

23. BERYE &)

BT _TFET_A=1T—HLEE

BEBHA-ZT—NFE=ANEA i
ﬁ%%&%é%ﬂ_E T £ + 45 B
EEN])  ZENRTFEEYEEEEE
Bemit(ERETERPUWELY
130,841,000 8 TR BT TIHFEH EWE
#9281,750,0005%8 T (M 5 24) BT B 2
AIEFEREEBRAR(IEZERE])
?%ﬁ)z,ﬁ/\_iﬁ +tHF=ARITK - HE
—E-FF+-_A=1+—8" E%XJEIEE

HERRT - WA ZER —F—MFLit
ﬁ%%é% AWEH?EE&@ AlR]

SRR T NS L HFEREANN
ﬁﬁ BT —FE T FAES DR
EEXRUER0.01%HETR - AEE LA
RBEEESISENSERRA MRS B
T E BIR R EH TR R R o S
REBATEM - BELHER BRI A A
EER-_E-—MELHMEREANAE
FEREFHERNERAN  UEREAEER
BIRE T —MFE L ERAESONK
B ORBEHEREERENERES
BeR—_ZE_FF+-_A=+—H &%
B ESHHEB LI EEALFINEBME
H@ma - e BA BB E T E R
TEMKRE  AARESRE  HER
EHR BEEHRTMNAEUEER T
— P F T RS LIRRK o

T HT_ALFE - EXE
LD IR TERIEN AL BRI LR o
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24. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 24. E R IFIEHEWE

2021 2020
:g:_fﬁ — 7 P E'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Completed properties held for sale ERIFELEME 478,963 2,442,662
The completed properties held for sale are all located in the BRI ELEMESBARPE -
PRC.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, write-down of BE-ZE-_—H+-A=1—HILFE -
completed properties held for sale to net realisable value of B XK FEIEL &Y EM 5)332 ES —I o)
approximately HK$172,694,000 (2020: HK$189,921,000) was FE%)172,694,0008 T (T T F :
recognised as expense in cost of inventories of properties sold. 189,921,000/ 7T) E R B EMETFE X

RHERRFA

As at 31 December 2021, no completed properties held for sale WZE-_—H5+-A=+—8 " ETEIH
(2020: HK$1,333,384,000) are pledged as securities for bank EHENENREEAS(ZZE-_2F
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 35). #91,333,384,000% 7T) & f’EZ%Tﬁ TAE

BRITREE AR (ME35) ©

25. LOANS AND ADVANCES 25. ERREX
2021 2020
=B —F —ETTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FiExT THTT
Loans and advances BN (a) 2,276,992 481,773
Margin loans receivables EWFRER (b) 588,902 469,241
2,865,894 951,014
Less: Provision for impairment B OBERE (375,743) (5,074)
2,490,151 945,940
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. LOANS AND ADVANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

f 3 SO 065 e A P

25. ERKREBERE)

BT -
The loans and advances of approximately HK$174,785,000 (2020: (a) ERMBTRA) 174,785,000 T (ZF T 4F :
HK$481,773,000) are secured by charges over the properties and listed 481,773,000 7T) R fE R AW E K EE
securities of the borrowers, and/or backed by guarantee. Credit limits are FIEER - K/ HABRAER - REFED
set for borrowers based on the quality of collateral held and the financial Tfﬂﬁuc'u BEAERANTBER  HERXA
background of the borrowers. REEERE -
The carrying amounts of loans and advances are interest bearing at a ERRBRZEBMEENT 8% E18% (=T
range from 8% to 18% (2020: 8% to 18%) per annum. ZEF 8% E18%)MFFEFE o
The credit facility limits granted to margin clients are determined by the by BFFREFNEEEELRBBAEEE
discounted market value of the collateral securities accepted by the XMERESFHEBETEETE ©
Group.
The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged BTHFREFPHENBMABEEESERL
securities and are interest bearing. The Group maintains a list of approved R AEERE —HERARMNBZE - A
stocks for margin lending at a specified loan to collateral ratio. Any excess BRRETERERRLELTFHFRMER - EM/
in the lending ratio will trigger a margin call and the clients have to make BENERLEXEEETRAN TPHSAE
good the shortfall. TRAHAZ AR o
As at 31 December 2021, margin loan receivables were secured by RZEZ—F+ZA=+—0 BRFRE
securities pledged by the clients to the Group as collateral with ROBEREFPERTASEERERR 2F
undiscounted market value of approximately HK$3,661,111,000 (2020: %’Fﬂ% KRELIRTIEA493,661,111,000/8 7T
HK$2,190,009,000). (ZZ =% :2,190,009,000%7T) °
Loans and advances are denominated in the following currencies: (o) = RIRA T E¥EHE -
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Hong Kong dollar BT 1,301,665 951,014
RMB AR 1,564,229
2,865,894 951,014
Movements on the provision for impairment of loans and advances are as (d) EXRRBFAEREZDHOT :
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZZT-TF—HF—H 3,588
Provision for impairment TRERE 1,486
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ANZEZEF+A=+—AR=ZE=—F—HA—H 5,074
Provision for impairment AR E 370,669
At 31 December 2021 W_E=——F+=-A=+—H 375,743
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26.

198

TRADE RECEIVABLES

26. EIRE SR

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRR
Less: Provision for impairment OB B

Trade receivables — net

For customers of Automation products, a credit period ranging
from 30 days to 60 days (2020: 30 days to 60 days) after
acceptance is generally granted with exception of some trade
customers where the credit period of 12 to 18 months (2020:
12 to 18 months) are granted. For customers of Property
Investment and Development, the balances are due upon
issuance of invoices or within 2 days (2020: upon issuance of
invoices or within 2 days).

The operations in yacht club, training services and trading of
commodities were discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2020, the Group granted
credit period to the customers in yacht club, training services
and trading commodities were 30 days, 10 days and 30 days
respectively.

The ageing analysis of gross trade receivables based on invoice
date are as follows:

FEWE BRARK — HE

2021 2020
=B —F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
162,534 388,608
(2,948) (3,752)
159,586 384,856

HREBEMNEF  BETEIEN
ERHA30KRENOR(ZE-_ZTFE 30
XZE60K) BEAETESZEFNERSA
2EM8EAA(ZZE - FE 125 18(F
B) - (IR MERERERNES - B8
ERBEITEERI2AAN(ZT _ZTF
FEEZR2AN)ZIE -

BE_T_—Ft+-_A=+—HLEFE"
BRERRT - HIRBERARE S EBHCE
k-#E_FT-_TF+_A=1+—H K
SERBEESH  BHIIREEERE SN
BEPRHNEESMOHA30K 10K R
30K e

JEWE ZEZTAEENEEZHHNER
2N UM NE

0 to 30 days 0Z30H
31 to 60 days 31260 H
61 to 90 days 61Z290H
91 to 120 days 912 120H
Over 120 days 120 B A E

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2021 2020
—2-—F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
68,076 234,238
17.940 27,499
18,135 17,878
11,276 7,663
47,107 101,330
162,534 388,608
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. EWEZERF (&)

FEWE 5 BRRTIIRIA T EHEHE

Trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

—E=-—F —EETF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

US dollar e 67,099 51,080
Hong Kong dollar BIT 39,778 170,739
RMB AR 26,527 138,634
Euro (“EUR") BT ([&ocl) 1,870 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(BE]) 27,255 28,155
Singapore dollar (“SGP") s ([#zl) 5 =
162,534 388,608

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEWE 5 BRSO E R o 2 Ehan 1 -

2021 2020

—E=—F —EETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FET

At 1 January w—A—H 3,752 3,235
Provision for impairment VERERE S 1,151 475
Disposal of subsidiaries HEN BT (1,284) -
Distribution in specie BV (697) =
Written-off s (6) =
Exchange realignment kS 32 42
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 2,948 3,752
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27. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

200

(a) Contract assets

27. ERNEEREGHNER

(a)

Contract assets arising from: EHNEEXRY :

Sale of goods HEEm

Performance under construction A T AR
services

Less: Provision for impairment R ORERE

Notes:

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets are as follows:

Contract assets arising from sales of goods are initially recognised
for revenue earned from the sale of automated production related
equipment as the receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of product certification by the technicians.
Upon completion of the product certification and when the rights
to consideration become unconditional, the amounts recognised
as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The
significant decrease in contract assets as at 31 December 2021
was the result of distribution in specie of approximately
HK$34,619,000 and billing were issued to customers in respect of
work already performed and are reclassified to trade receivables
(2020: significant decrease in contract assets was the result of the
billing were issued to customers in respect of work already
performed and are reclassified to trade receivables of
approximately HK$173,926,000).

Contract assets arising from performance under construction
contracts primarily relate to the Group’s right to consideration for
work completed and not billed because the rights are conditioned
on the Group's future performance. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
milestones are reached.

The Group's credit terms and credit policy with customers are
disclosed in notes 26 and 48.1(b) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

=] II’J éé
2021 2020
—B-—fF “E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
22,540 35,398
- 37,256
22,540 72,654
(113) (4,140)
22,427 68,514

P EE -

BANEESTEN RN FEHL

74 \\\

EREEELENANEERVUEE
@EMKEEJEE% S48 P IS 0 Mk B
CEAARENEKBURREMTA R
Exljjmﬁxéuuwun é&lwﬁ;ﬁm&?ﬁ
EREERBEEER  BRAEAN
BENCEBEN S EARIKRE 5K
e BHMBEER-_ZT=_—F+=A
Z+—HREBETERITEARENDIRY
34,619,000 7% 7t & Bt B A A T1EMR
%?%&ﬁxﬁfﬂé%ﬁ/‘*ﬁﬁﬁuﬁzﬁ%
F(ZTBTF  BHNEEKNE TR
Emmsxemﬁkmlf’ﬁmgﬁééﬂj%
BEEHSPBEARKRESERD
173,926,000587T) ©

REAOBOEEHANAEEER
AWK TREANARER
REEAEN  BRZET LA RE
RICTERVA I - B ZHRIR BRI
1 - ANEERBBERKE 5K
e

AEBENBIE
EDBREE
DHRK o

HEENFER &
&ﬁ&%*&ml%%

AEBBAEEPRLNERGERE
ERBERD BIRGE BB |RE D B
726 12 48.1(b) P 1R EE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Contract assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets (ii)

are as follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

27. BHEBEREGHNEB®)

() BHEE#H)
i : (4

AHEEREKEFORMERMOT -

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year 22,427 35,221
More than one year —FLAE - 33,293
22,427 68,514
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract (i) AREEREZBRRENEHNT
assets are as follows:
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2020 W-E-TF—A—A 69,688
Provision for impairment AR E 59,816
Written-off B (125,013)
Exchange realignment FEH A% (351)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZE_TF+-_A=+—HBK
S 4,140
Reversal of impairment RAER [ (61)
Distribution in specie BEYHIk (4,124)
Exchange realignment M 3 R B 158
At 31 December 2021

RZZE=Z—F+=-A=+—8H 113
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27. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (Continued)

202

27. BHEBEREGHNEB#)

The Group receives payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts.

Significant changes in contract liabilities were as follows:

The significant changes in contract liabilities as at 31
December 2021 are related to (1) disposal of subsidiaries
of approximately HK$1,823,945,000 (Note 44); (2)
distribution in specie of approximately HK$2,335,646,000
(Note 45); and (3) increase in billing in advance of sales of
properties net of the impact on revenue recognised
related to those contract liabilities (2020: increase in
billing in advance of sales of goods and properties net of
the impact on recognised related to those contract
liabilities).

The following table shows the revenue recognised for the
year related to carried-forward contract liabilities:

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET

Contract liabilities from customers HREZFHNANEBEELH

arising from: UT&IE :

Sale of goods HEEM 12,100 30,230
Sales of properties VISEHE 40,557 1,969,240
Operation of golf practising court KERBERE S - 2,504
Operation of children playroom BETERRE - 1,295
Operation of fitness room KERH R - 2,937
52,657 2,006,206

AEBRIES KR E W& IRE
RPENE PR o

BHABENEAZEFHINT

RZBE-_—F+=-_A=+—H' &
HEBENERETIRR (1) HER
JB N F1#91,823,945,000 5 7t (M 5%
44) : (2)E ¥ 5k #J2,335,646,000
BT (MiEE45) : Q) TREWE (kK
MZEENBERRNBEMZH
BINEREN ST _ZF : BE
EmkMEGIRRIZEAVARE

RER TR ) EEIL N -

TRETBEAAFEADERHOK
SR EEEANAGEER

Revenue recognised during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the
year

BRAE

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

FARERN W AFH)

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
(918,531) (555,006)
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28. LEASES 28. HE
(a) Lease liabilities (a) HEERE
The following table shows the remaining contractual Ti%@ﬂ‘\$’§lﬁ’\§ k& BAOR A

GIE
ERENRBREOIHA

maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the

current reporting period:

Within one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years

Later than five years

Less: total future interest
expenses

Present value of lease
liabilities

The present value of future
lease payments are
analysed as follows:

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

—F
R~ AR
iz
BRESF

B RN BRI
R

HEAGBRE

*Xfrﬁ%\ﬁ
DHT

RERE

Total minimum
lease payments

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BEEENTREARE BEEEENRZRE

2021 2020 2021 2020

TEC-F EmEdmial — T —F [mboimbeics

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FTERx FHET TET FHET

14,208 25,888 11,129 16,280

47,367 104,650 43,009 80,112

- 37,327 - 23,513

61,575 167,865 54,138 119,905
(7,437) (47,960)
54,138 119,905
11,129 16,280
43,009 103,625
54,138 119,905
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28. LEASES (Continued) 28. HE#w)
(b) The Group as lessor (b) TEEEREHBAA
(i) Operating lease () ZEHE
The Group's investment properties are leased to a REBEIRE W ELATRIEE
number of tenants for varying terms. The future HEERFTZHEP - KEED
minimum lease payments receivable under non- AIRGE R &1 & R A AR R
cancellable operating leases of the Group were as SEHERFKOT
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F e e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Within one year —&R 130,273 110,431
Later than one year and not later EBR—FETERMFE
than two years 96,433 100,765
Later than two years and not later EBAMTFETER=F
than three years 77,923 78,907
Later than three years and not later B =4 B TERIUF
than four years 54,232 56,434
Later than four years and not later BANFETERASF
than five years 46,494 39,652
More than five years AFMUE 218,598 168,791
623,953 554,980
(i) Finance lease (i) MEHE
The Group leases machineries to its customers. $Elﬁﬁgﬁﬁf‘ﬂ%%§ °
These leases are classified as finance leases and EHERSBERARENRE R
have remaining lease terms of 1 year to 3 years BREEHARIFEIF(ZE
(2020: 1 year to 3 years). The customers shall ZEF NFE3IF) cRBPE
purchase or have an option to purchase the leased EREHEMNHERRREE
machineries at the end of lease terms of the finance JIEERERERMES -
lease.
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-THF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Finance lease receivables A E R W FIE
— Non-current portion —ERBHH 18,310 59,553
— Current portion — RBHD 30,282 64,500

48,592 124,053
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28. LEASES (Continued) 28. #HE®)
(b) The Group as lessor (Continued) (b) AEBEERBEBEAE)
(i) Finance lease (Continued) (i) BEHE(E)
The total future minimum lease receivables under RMEHETHARRKEHRERE
finance leases and their present values were as WrBra R EIRENT ¢
follows:
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
BRIEHEEEMR REEEENSRZERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
SECF pmbecal — T —F Ealeiestes
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T THT FHET
Within one year —&FR 33,603 75,718 30,282 64,500
Later than one year BR—FHTE
and not later than AR F
two years 17,475 53,525 16,587 48,938
Later than two years BRMFEBETE
and not later than R=F
three years 1,754 11,027 1,723 10,615
52,832 140,270 48,592 124,053
Unearned finance REVSERUA
income (4,240) (16,217)
Total net finance lease  FRIETE
receivables FEW R 4B 58 48,592 124,053
Portion classified as DEERE
current assets BEMNI S (30,282) (64,500)
Non-current portion IERENE D 18,310 59,553
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29.

206

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

RMNRIE - RS RHEBEYRK

Consideration receivables FEURAE

Prepayments and other deposits TR REMIRE
Interest receivable FEWLFI 2

Value-added and other tax recoverable  H2{EF K EH {th 7] iE [0 £ 78
Other receivables from related parties — E-fth fE Uk GBS 75 /) 518
Other receivables H fth fE W 5RIR

Less: Non-current portion B ERBE S

Current portion mENE D

The directors consider the balances of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are recoverable by reference to the
nature of these balances and credit history of counterparties
where applicable.

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2021, consideration receivables represented the
balance of the proceeds in connection with the disposal of financial assets
at FVOC| of approximately HK$401,000 in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2020, consideration receivables represented the balance
of the proceeds in connection with the disposal of financial assets at FVOCI
of approximately HK$9,834,000 in Hong Kong and approximately
HK$3,582,000 in the PRC.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, the balances of prepayments and other deposits
substantially represented prepayments made to the contractors of
property development and investment projects of the Group (2020:
approximately HK$2,017,710,000 represented an amount paid for
redevelopment project of certain land parcels in the PRC designated to a
subsidiary of the Company by the local PRC government. The remaining
balances substantially represented prepayments made to the contractors
of property development and investment projects of the Group).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

E
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FETT
(a) 401 13,416
(b) 74,670 4,830,006
3,842 10,730
20,327 308,439
50(b) 647 2,108
88,695 330,839
188,582 5,495,538
(9,191) (329,316)
179,391 5,166,222

REBBENTA - Be MEMBRUKF AL
ﬁ%E’UIE%ﬁ&ﬁ?HE’MﬁAaEﬁ(QD@Fﬁ)
& BEERAAIROEZEFER

BT -

(a)

X

A\ZE-—F+ZRA=+—H8 BRREHE
BHERAFEFALMEZARENETES
A& E#I401,00078 T B FTIS SIRRREE -

RZZT=ZT+=-—A=+—0 ERAEESR
HERATFEFALMEARSHE S
BEHN98340008 ThFHEESHMEEN
3,582,000 % ;LB BRI FT1S FRIBEASE ©

RZTZ—F+=-A=+—8 BAIRER
HiZeWBBEIZRAAEEMELER
REBENDEASNNENREB(ZEZZ
£ : 492,017,710,0008 7T 2 A B % T 38
MERER (BT EEBTEE TARAN
MBAR) MXHEE SREETZRAAE
EMEBRREZEEENDBEXNOEN
FKIF) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

30.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o] Movement on the provision for impairment of deposits and other

receivables are as follows:

29. FE{FF

f 3 SO 065 e A P

RIE - B K H Ath WK

I8 ()

BeE - (&)

(0 HERECRKERERENZSHNT

2021 2020
—g=—x ¥
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
At 1 January n—A—8 40,151 5,575
Provision for impairment BERE 22,560 32,662
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT (45,704) =
Distribution in specie Bk (9.607) =
Exchange realignment [ 5 SR 2 1,528 1,914
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8~ 8,928 40,151
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 30. BAFETAEBSENE/REE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Listed securities: MBS
— Equity securities — Hong Kong — RAEFESH —BE 65,088 115,166
Debt investments at FVTPL BEATEFABRNERRE 261,412 359,890
326,500 475,056
The fair value of the listed securities are based on their current BENAFTEBENERNERMEN
bid prices in an active market. REBEAETE
As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at FVTPL of R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 " HZQFE
approximately HK$120,992,000 have been pledged as FTABEM SR E E 120,992,000 % 7T

securities for the Group’s other borrowings (Note 35) (2020:
HK$310,474,000 have been pledged for the Group’s bank and

other borrowings).

EFAAEEEMEEMNERR(KE
35) (ZE =T : 310,474,000 BT EAE
RAEERITREMEENER M) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued) 30. BT EFTABRHNEMEE
(#&)
Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in the following BAFEFTABEANEHEETIIRIAT
currencies: EEEEE -

2021 2020
=B —F —ECFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
US dollar =TT 248,840 316,052
Hong Kong dollar ABIT 77,660 159,004
326,500 475,056

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 31. B4 RESEZEY r K EE
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS TEE SREIERREEFRE
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES LIRIT &R

2021 2020

—EC-—F —ECFF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Cash in hand FHERE 1,330 1,226

Cash at banks RITIRE 728,746 1,721,832

Short-term bank deposits with original JREIEAR DA =1E A Y52 HA

maturity less than three months RITIEE - 1,604

Cash and cash equivalents HehkIReEEY 730,076 1,724,662
Pledged bank deposits and restricted EHEMRITERRZ R HIFR

deposits 33,624 646,085

Client trust bank balances b S S R =3 195,404 254,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 31. R RBRLEEY - KB

BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS TEX - ZREGFAREFE
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES e ITE R ()
(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, restricted RekReEEY BHEARTER X
deposits and client trust bank balances are denominated in the REFEARREPELRITEBRTIIIZAT
following currencies: B¥EE
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —T-FHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
RMB AR 283,535 1,695,095
US dollar e 118,969 97,260
Hong Kong dollar BT 501,360 793,394
Others Hitp 55,240 39,784
959,104 2,625,533
The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance AR IT R A R R A B R INE
of RMB out of bank balances in the PRC are subject to the rules AR EE L2 5 B BT 28 5 ) JE
and regulations of the foreign exchange control promulgated EHDERFTIRMR o

by the government of China.
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31.

210

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
AND CLIENT TRUST BANK BALANCES
(Continued)

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts of
approximately HK$195,404,000 (2020: HK$254,786,000) with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising
from normal business transactions. The Group has classified in
the consolidated statement of financial position the clients’
deposits as client trust bank balances in the current assets
section and recognised the corresponding trade payables to the
respective clients in the current liabilities section, on the
grounds that the Group is liable for any misappropriation of
the respective clients’ deposits as stipulated under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"). The Group is
not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own
obligations under the SFO. As such, these monies are not
included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group for cash
flow purposes in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Group'’s pledged bank deposits represented deposits of
approximately HK$6,000,000 have been pledged as securities
for bank borrowings granted to the Group (Note 35) (2020:
approximately HK$178,695,000 have been pledged as
securities for bank and other borrowings granted to the Group
and deposits of approximately HK$23,560,000 have been
pledged as securities for bank borrowing granted to an
independent third party).

The Group's restricted deposits represented the guarantee
deposits of approximately HK$27,624,000 (2020:
HK$443,830,000) for construction of properties. In accordance
with certain PRC regulations, property development companies
of the Group are required to place the proceeds received from
pre-sale of properties as guarantee deposits for constructions
of properties. The deposits can only be used to pay for relevant
property development projects when approval from the PRC
State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau is obtained. The
restriction will be released according to the completion stage of
the related pre-sold properties.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

31. BERBTEHEY -  2HEAR

TER ZREERREFE
LiR1T& R ()

7 £ B B AT AR M B TS M A (5 5T PR
BEBR 195,404,000 0 ( — & — T F ¢
254,786,000 70) - MR TP RIES
EBRGFAEEZTFR - AEEBELR
AUBRARFEREERI AREE
EfnTHEFERETES  TERS
BEBLIEREEENESIERTER
F BEAREBEEEZALBEEN(E
SRBE®RG D BT AEBAHEA
ERFHEFNBERLAE - AEETHEER
BENRIBRBITERES LB E KD
THEMT - Al - EBLFEBTEIEELES
REREXRTHARREREENNAE
ERS RIESEEY -

AEBEEBRITFR(AEFR) L
6,000,000 T2 TEMIEAKR TAKE
RRITEENER(EIS) (ZE=F
1 #9178,695,00078 L E T IIE AR
FAEEMRITREMEBENER  &fF
FX#123,560,000/8 TE FEFIEER T
B E=HIRTEENER) -

AEENZRHNGFREBEEDMENRE
IR & #727,624,0008 T( —Z T —F F:
443,830,000%7T) ° RIFE THEVER -
REENMEBRRABBTHNEEME
IS8 - tERERYENERTR - %
GREAMNESTRER L ERER
BHERBARI N EBYERERIAR - %
REIERIZEEBEMENR TRHET
LABRRR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

32.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

Trade payables B SRR
Bills payables ENERE

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on invoice
date is as follows:

EBNEZERRRENRE
2021 2020
—EBE-—fF ZE-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
603,744 3,700,039
28,874 30,422
632,618 3,730,461

REZZHHERNEZERARBENRE
MRRE DMTEAT -

0 to 30 days 0zx30H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61Z90H
91 to 120 days 91&120H
Over 120 days 120 A E

The average credit period of trade payables ranged from 30
days to 60 days (2020: 30 days to 60 days) for suppliers of
Automation products; ranged from 1 day to 2 days (2020: 1
day to 2 days) after the trade date where the transactions are
executed in relation to provision of securities brokerage
services; and ranged from 7 days to 30 days (2020: 7 days to
30 days) in relation to property investment and development.

The operations in trading of commodities and home appliances
were discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2021.
As at 31 December 2020, the credit period granted by the
suppliers in relation to trading of commodities and home
appliances were ranged from 10 days to 180 days and 30 days
respectively.

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$ 000
THERT THET

544,859 2,672,649
27,505 21,121

7,260 11,943

4,747 2,884

48,247 1,021,864

632,618 3,730,461

BFERMERNENESERTH

SEHNF0HEOR (S -4
30HE60H) : ATIREBZTHFLLR
BHRZME HIJuq’L A=k =Y
H(ZZEZZF: E28): RmE
HERERME HIJJ|¥7E|%§30EI(:
T-TFE:7HE30R) -

@:tfgi_ﬁ—'—_ﬂz_!—_aﬂ:ng '
AmEINRERHEBEEFL - BE
7_7$+ A=+—8" ﬁiJ—E?ﬁTJEFﬁDD
RREBSHETHEERSRIR/IORE
180K 530K °
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32. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

33.

212

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables are

denominated in the following currencies:

32. BNEZ KRR

AR EREE #)

ENESEARENREROREETR

RMB

US dollar

Hong Kong dollar
EUR

JPY

Others

AR
ETT

BT
H
Hit

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

ATE®EHE !
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
294,634 3,316,729
92,280 53,422
215,514 329,561
1 205
30,186 30,542
3 2
632,618 3,730,461

Accrued operating expenses

Other tax payables

Deposits received

Secured deposits from contractors

Payables for construction costs

Interest payables

Other payables to a non-controlling
interest

Other payables to related parties

Provisions and other payables

Less: Non-current portion

Current portion

FEsT & E
HAth FE AR
2l e
ABENREER

FE ZRR AR
ANENNS)

A FEFERRME 2 O FE AT
SKIA

2 4 4 BB 5 93
%ﬁ&ﬁ@%ﬁmlﬁ

B IEmEER Y

mENER D

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

33. EErBEARAEMENRE

2021 2020
—E-—f& ZEEF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHBxT FHETT
81,825 103,422

14,288 68,142

36,121 34,285

= 341,204

163,315 162,080

8,385 207,838

(b) - 46,916
(b), 50(b) 5,492 105,451
84,862 397,812

394,288 1,467,150

(17,906) (17,660)

376,382 1,449,490




33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:
(a) As at 31 December 2021, approximately 72% (2020: 93%) of the

carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are denominated in
RMB, the remaining are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

(b) Other payables to a non-controlling interest and related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

33.

34.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

EirEAREMENSFEE®)
I
(a) RIE_—F+-_A=+—8 2% (==

—TH : 93%) BAHE A R EMENFIRMER
EELAREE  MEKRERNBITA
H o

(b)  EtuRefy IRk s KRR T 2 FURRER
A RRRREREER -

FEFTHRE
— JEREE D

Consideration payable
— Non-current portion

As at 31 December, 2020, the consideration payable classified
as non-current liabilities in relation to the operating right (Note
18). Pursuant to the Operation Entrustment Agreement, the
balance will be settled by 10 equal annual instalments of
RMB39,250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$46,237,000)
each from the seventh year of the completion of the step
acquisition on 23 April 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the imputed interest
charged for the year of approximately HK$13,010,000 (2020:
HK$18,826,000) included in the finance costs of discontinued
operations is calculated by applying effective interest rate of
13.04% (2020: 13.04%).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
of the consideration payable through disposal of subsidiaries
disclosed in note 44(b).

ESRE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THxT FHEIT
= 163,747
RZZE_ZTF+_A=+—H8 &&EBE

HENENRESEAIERBEE(H T
18) - IR LR Ha= hEBEDH
WSS B I E—AEWMA-+=
BEFELFRIZI0OFSHENFHD BN
K FHIAR# 39,250,000 7T (FHE R4
46,237,000787T) ©

REBEZE-_—F+A=+—HILHF
[§ ST AR E XM EN RN AT E
HEE N 2.4713,010,000/8 0 ( — B =24
18,826,000/ C) 2B 13.04% (== =

—_—

T 1 13.04%) WERNRFAESFH o

BE_T_—F+-_A=+—HLEFE"
AN EF S T 44(0) R ER VT B L
AL EZEMANRE -
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fo e S8 265 e A B

35.

214

BORROWINGS 35. B &
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-EF
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
TE E15 ) ik FERE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt FTHx FHx FET FHET
Secured BEH
Obligation under repurchase  [B18& 1755 18 T A9
agreements HHE (a) 338,063 - 214,427 =
Bank loans IRITER (b) 1,137,671 - 1,923,672 4,857,200
Margin loan FREX 31,649 - 251,753 =
Trust receipts loans EFEIEE R 14,768 = 8,661 =
Notes payables AR - = 217,810 =
Other loans HEMER - - 2,021,479 1,453,522
Total secured borrowings BEBEERTE (d), () 1,522,151 - 4,637,802 6,310,722
Unsecured K 1
Corporate bonds TEEFH (© 356,000 - 1,020,000 =
Bank loans IRITER (b) 56,263 = 20,000 =
Other loans HEMER 71,929 - 550,969 632,468
Loans from related parties e T E (f), 50(b) = = 220,000 =
Total unsecured borrowings &K IR {E B 4258 484,192 - 1,810,969 632,468
Total borrowings e A 2,006,343 - 6448771 6,943,190
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period
were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowings

f 3 SO 065 e A P

35. BE (&)

AEBRABESHRNEERIZAT
EE :

Other borrowings

RITEE Hitig&
2021 2020 2021 2020
et T TS kil T TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FHET
Within one year or on —FRIREK
demand 1,208,702 1,952,333 797,641 4,496,438
More than one year, but not i@ —4 - BKBB
exceeding two years N E - 904,657 - 167,276
More than two years, but not 2B F {8 K BB
exceeding five years hE - 3,952,543 - 1,918,714
1,208,702 6,809,533 797,641 6,582,428
As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rates of bank R-E-_—F+-_A=+—8 " FIkE

and other borrowings ranged from 1.4% to 8% (2020: ranged
from nil to 15.0%) per annum.

Notes:
(@) For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has entered
into repurchase agreements whereby listed securities of the Group’s
margin clients are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date.

As at 31 December 2021, bank loans of approximately HK$1,011,930,000
(2020: HK$1,181,401,000) included in current liabilities are not scheduled
to repay within one year. They are classified as current liabilities as the
related loan agreements contain a clause that provides the lenders with an
unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group has not
breached any of the covenants of the banking facilities.

HEENEERINENT1.4%E8% (ZF
—EF GENTFEE15.0%) °

BT -

BME-F-FFR-F--FT-A=t—
L ARMTOERE B A
BHEREE 2 ETASLE RS 25
RIS AR R MR AL 25

- ——¢+;H—+ = IR
1,011,930,000 B LHIRITER (=T =FTF -
1,181,401,000 8 7T) st AREN & (& - W2
R—FAEE - BEDDEARBEE
HRERGZEE SR TEE AERGETRE
B BRI B SRIB SRR

RZEZ—F+A=+—ARZZT=_THF
+TZA=+—H8 ' AEBEWEEREMBIT
BB -
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35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

216

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had corporate bonds denominated
in Hong Kong dollar with an aggregated amount of approximately
HK$356,000,000 to several parties with coupon rates ranged from 7.0%
to 8.0% per annum and repayable in 1 year from the respective issue
dates.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had corporate bonds denominated
in Hong Kong dollar with an aggregated amount of approximately
HK$1,020,000,000 to several parties with coupon rates ranged from
5.0% to 10.0% per annum and repayable in 1 year from the respective
issue dates. Among the balances, approximately HK$112,000,000 was
issued to a director of the Company and a director of a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 50(b)).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,152,439,000 were secured by:

(i) guarantee provided by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries
and related parties and shareholder of the Company;

(ii) the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 16);

(iii) the Group's investment properties (Note 17);

(iv) collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$96,750,000; and

(v) the Group's pledged bank deposits (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$6,789,533,000 were secured by:

(i) guarantee provided by the Company, certain of its subsidiaries
and related parties and shareholder of the Company;

(i) equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group;

(iii) the Group's property, plant and equipment (Note 16);

(iv) the Group's investment properties (Note 17);
(v) the Group's properties under development (Note 23);

(vi) the Group’s completed properties held for sale (Note 24);

(vii)  financial assets at FVTPL (Note 30);

(viii)

collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$102,610,000 ; and

(ix) the Group's pledged bank deposits (Note 31).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

35. BE#®)

McE

()

(&)

RZTEZ—F+=—A=+—8 A&EHH
LA TTEHER A RIE S & 3£49356,000,000 7
TFETH BHFEEFHMNENT7.0%E
8.0% ' HARIEITAHIME 1 FIEE -

R-ZT-_TF+—A=+—8 A&EEHEH
Lx,%mﬂam@w %4 #£491,020,000,000
BILTTHE CEHFERFFNENT5.0%E
10.0% - mﬁﬁaﬁéﬁﬁaﬂ,ﬁﬂ1¢1§iﬁo He
%8#9112,000,000 8 LB T F AN R —BES
EARAR—HEHBARIZ —REE(ME
50(b)) °

ﬁ727—$+*ﬁ_+—a AEEKR
1TEE#91,152,439,000/8 L A N ZIBEIK IR

@ ARE - HETHEBAR K@
VAR A A RIBRRER LAV HEAR

(i) AEEWDE  BERZEH(HE
16) :

(i)  AEEOBREWECLE7)

v AKEBFREFONERARAY
96,750,000/ 7T © &

v)  AEESBEIRRITER(HE3) -

RZTZTF+—A=+—8 AEENHR
1TEE#6,789,533,000/8 7T A N EIBEIK IR

@ ARw - EETHEARREBS
SAT AR A RIBCRER (A AR

(i)  AEEETHEBRRARE

(i) AEBWWE  BE RZEH(HE
16) :

(iv) AEEONEEWMECLE17)
v AEESNTERBYECTE23)

v) AEEMCEIFELESWEMZ
24) :

BRAFEFAEBZOSHEE (K
30) :

(vii)

AREAFREFPMNERRD
102,610,00077T : K

(viii)

(x)  AEEHBEMPRITER(HFE3D) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other borrowings of approximately (e)
HK$369,712,000 were secured by:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

guarantee provided by related parties, subsidiaries and shareholder
of the Company;

financial assets at FVTPL (Note 30); and

collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$720,075,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s other borrowings of
HK$4,158,991,000 were secured by:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

guarantee provided by an independent third party, related parties,
subsidiaries and shareholder of the Company;

properties owned by an independent third party;

the Group'’s investment properties (Note 17);

(iv) the Group's properties under development (Note 23);

(v) financial assets at FVTPL (Note 30);

(vi) collateral of the Group’s margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$725,643,000;

(vii)  intragroup group receivables of a subsidiary of the Company;

(vii)  equity interest of a subsidiary of the Company; and

(ix) the Group's pledged bank deposits (Note 31).

As at 31 December 2020, loans from related parties of HK$220,000,000 ()

are unsecured, repayable within 1 year and unguaranteed and interest-

free.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

35. BE (&)

BsE - (&)

R-ZZB-_—F+-_A=+—0 AEEHEM
BEE#%7369,712,000 BT A T S EEE A

@ ARE - BT WEARKRRRE
HAOHELR

iy BAFEFABENSHEEE (K
30): &

iy AKEBEBOHFREFEFPEN &L
720,075,000 7T :

R-ZZBE-_TE+-_A=+—0 AEEHEM
&5 4,158,991,000 7 7L LA LA N S TEVEH 1

0] ARRBILE=T  BHT  WEAR
R BCRIR AR

(i)  BAUE=REBANWE
@iy AEEEEEMEFLE7)
(iv) AEESZRERBYEPTE23)

(v) RAFEFAEBZOCEEE (KM
30) :

v) AEBEBHNAFREFEFERARDY
725,643,000/ 7T :

(i)  AAT—FEHEA RS E RS ERE
WA

(viiy AR R KB A RIRARE - &
(x)  AEESOBERRITERFIE3) -
RZZE-THF+-_A=+—8 BH%AH

B%
220,000,000 % T A MK - AR —FRER
RERER BRB -
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35.

36.

218

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period are
denominated in the following currencies:

35. BE (&)

US dollar =TT
JPY HE
Hong Kong dollar ABIT
RMB AR
DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following balances, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position:

36.

AEBRAFERRNERIEZEUATE
FHE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

46,807 153,350

= 3,832

1,158,127 1,992,359

801,409 11,242,420

2,006,343 13,391,961
EERIE

BOA 7] 52 I 1T B0 #E N LA B HR A IR
BEERHINAHERE - ARFELHRA
HF - BEEERH - AAVRLEREEE
HIHRLERIRRE - A TERIDKEEE
HIRERE - NRBMBARMEZARET -

Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE E
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B#f€m&EBEER A A

2021 2020
—2-—F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAET
13,010 49,296
(234,117) (1,073,251)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The net movements on the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) are as

f 3 SO 065 e A P

36. IEIERIIE (&)

BIERIREE, (BE) WEEFEMT

follows:
Unrealised profits
in financial assets Intangible assets
Accelerated tax Unrealised (profits) Financial at fair value through identified in
depreciation allowance  losses in inventories Tax loss quarantee contracts  Fair value gains/(losses) profit or loss acquisition Total
EAPEAEEN
NERENERE  REBEE(EN)/ B 21 ] HBEREH APENE/(BE)  SREECAUEEN  KEREDNEREE it
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 200 2021 200 2021 200 021 200 021 200 021 200
SR0-F b C50-F el - ekl CFs-f el Cf--F e C50-F el C3- Eelbi C3s-f s
HKS'000 [EGTAXUON  HKS'000 [GTCXUVIM  HKS'000 EAXUVIR  HKS'000 GICXUIN  HKS'000 GICXUVIN  HKS'000 [EGTCXUIN  HKS'000 [GTSXUVIN  HKS'000 [GCXiN
TEn Wl TEn EEREA TR B TE BERvol  TET EEREA TR B TET ROl TET EERE
At 1 January m-A-A 26,434 340 3008 347891 g (1744) (8294) 646582 7441 W56 369U 4118 55006 1023955 117154
Charged(cedited) tothe 158/ A) B4
profitor loss (#s0) 2205  (67466) (36401 (2039) (572) 835 (9579) (135545 (15455 (2361)  (1111)  (50999)  (96,100) (195470)
Diposalof subsidares ~~ {HEHBA
(Note 44) () = - 167% o - 181 (66,027) (%) - - - - (B9 8
Distioution inspece ~~~ EAAR
(Note 45) (GRTH) (430) - (168) (393,922) - - - - - (685520)
Curency transaton EHAEEE
dfference 508 9N 8,745 859 - 3 - (61 18748 3014 - - - 51 801 47818
At 31 December MZA=1-A %062 26434 (13009 32008 (9863 (781) 195802 64658 19108 34583 3,007 4118 AT 1023955

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred tax assets in respect of losses amounting to
approximately HK$350,923,000 (2020: HK$498,473,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income due to
uncertainty of availability of future taxable income. Except for
tax losses of approximately HK$12,964,000 (2020:
HK$439,837,000) that will be expired in 5 years, the remaining
tax losses do not have expiry date.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
withholding tax is imposed at 10% on dividends declared to
foreign investors in respect of profit earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onward. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for
which deferred tax have not been recognised is approximately
HK$681,541,000 (2020: HK$1,149,193,000). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

fir 0] BE 3B 1B & 7R B R B m B & IR
ARG A ENESERER
BEEHBEE - AR BEATBERYE
WAGTETAEBETE X At AEE W
£ 3t B $8350,923,0008 T(ZE - &
1 498,473,000 70) R IELEHTEE
B MZEERIEE E 0] A5 R R ER
TR A 1 85 o Bk B IE B 18 12,964,000 7
(T~ T4 : 439,837,000 L) R
AFEAFEI - LREB T IEEEY &2
E| o

REFBEMERERER B _TFTN\F—

H—B#E - s EE A R R FE R
SRR EEE SRR BRI 10% TR

oo NIEHR - BRBERREERENF
= Bt /B 2 7] A R 9 i U 2 AR B A T B Ii
= H 854 5 681,541,000 T (ZE =
ﬁi 1,149,193,000787T) - HAAEE
BRI TR EEE R - B%E
%EETTE%E’U*X{ETW N2 EE[o I
I ERZEE=EERAE -
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37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. ®A&
Number of Share
shares capital
ROEE R
(thousand) HK$'000
(FHr%) FH&T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each SRRME0.10BITH L AAX
At beginning of year and end of year RENRFER 500,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE:
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TF—H—H 29,787,512 2,978,751
Shares issued (Note) BT () 1,600,000 160,000
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 N-BE-_EBEER_-_T_—
+=HA=+—H 31,387,512 3,138,751

38.

220

Note: The share allotment of 1,600,000,000 shares amounted to

HK$400,000,000 was completed on 8 May 2020 at placing price of
HK$0.25 per placing share.

RESERVES

Details of the movements of the Group’s reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(a)

Merger reserve represents (i) the difference between the
share capital of the Company and the combined share
capital of the subsidiaries (after eliminating intra-group
investments and share capital) acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2009 and (ii)
impact on business combination under common control.

Capital reserve of the Group represents the net assets
attributable to non-controlling shareholders which were
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in 2009,
and is treated as a deemed contribution from equity
holders and the release of share-based compensation
reserve upon the incentive shares under share incentive
scheme approved and adopted by the Group in 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. RESERVES (Continued)

(0

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net profit
(after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years) as
reported in their respective statutory financial statements,
before profit distributions to equity holder. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. The PRC
company is required to appropriate 10% of statutory net
profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution of its post-
tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of
the statutory reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
production operations, or to increase the capital of the
companies. In addition, a company may make further
contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its
post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the
board of directors.

Other reserves represented (i) share of other
comprehensive income of associates; (ii) gains/losses
arising from changes in Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control; and (iii) revaluation
surplus upon transfer of owner-occupied properties to
investment properties and the tax arising from revaluation
thereof.
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38. RESERVES (Continued) 38. f&f (@)
Company ARTF
Share Capital Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserves deficit Total
R E EARE Hitf# E-Sa) st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TRT THAT THET TAT

(Note)
(BF=E)
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF
—H—H 4,824,575 34,750 (117,646)  (1,630,794) 3,110,885
Profit for the year FREF - - - 62,290 62,290
Placing of new shares @E%?Fﬁﬁﬁ 240,000 = = = 240,000
Share of other SaK(a)i /NG|
comprehensive income  E b W
of associates - - (45,109) - (45,109)
At 31 December 2020  RZTZTF
and 1 January 2021 +=A —+—El
;=T —%F
—H—H 5,064,575 34,750 (162,755) (1,568,504) 3,368,066
Loss for the year FAEE - - = (121,348)  (121,348)
Share of other DGR E N A EAM
comprehensive income 2EKE
of associates - - (9,684) - (9,684)
Dividend by way of NEMDIRFAE
distribution in specie AR S (611,067) - - - (611,067)
At 31 December 2021 R-T——%
+=-A=+—H 4,453,508 34,750 (172,439) (1,689,852) 2,625,967
Note: Capital reserve of the Company arising from the Group reorganisation in ik : —EENFAEBEEEEENRD A ERGH
2009 represents the difference between the nominal value of shares BEARABRBEAZITORMEEEEA
issued by the Company pursuant to the reorganisation and the MEBAREEFEMBE L ZRE -

aggregated net assets values of subsidiaries acquired.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 39. UM AERNTR

(a) Share option scheme adopted by the (@) AATERAMHIERAESTE

Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24
November 2010 (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”)
and remain in force for ten years commencing on the
adoption date. Share options were granted to directors,
certain members of the senior management and
employees of the Company on 17 June 2013 (the “Date
of Grant”). The exercise price of the granted options is
HK$0.42, which represents the highest of (i) the official
closing price of HK$0.41 per Company'’s share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the Date of Grant; (i) the average closing
price of HK$0.42 per Company’s share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share. Options are granted unconditionally and vested
immediately on the Date of Grant. The options are
exercisable in ten years starting from the Date of Grant.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle options in cash.

The fair value of options, determined using Binomial-
Model, was HK$0.185 per option. The significant inputs
into the model was share price of HK$0.41 at the Date of
Grant, exercise price shown above, volatility of 65%,
dividend yield of 2%, an expected option life of ten years
and an annual risk-free interest rate of 1.59%. The
volatility was assumed based on the daily share price
volatility of the Company and comparable companies for
a historical observation period equal to the life of the
options. Since the Company had a trading history shorter
than the life of the options at the time of the grant,
volatility was calculated with reference to comparable
companies listed in Hong Kong and in the same industry
as the Company.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
had expired during the year ended 31 December 2020
and a new share option scheme was adopted on 2 June
2020 (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”).
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

224

(a) Share option scheme adopted by the

Company (Continued)

The 2020 Share Option Scheme remain in force for ten
years commencing on the adoption date. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted pursuant
to the 2020 Share Option Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company to any person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of options shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company at the time of the grant of the options and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the official closing price
of the Company’s share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share. The options are exercisable in ten years
starting from the date of grant. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle options
in cash.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and 2020 Share
Option Scheme and no outstanding option as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Glory Sun Land

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The subsidiary of the Company, Glory Sun Land operates
a share option scheme (the “Glory Sun Land Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of Glory Sun Land Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the employees, executives, officers
and directors of Glory Sun Land and its subsidiaries. The
Glory Sun Land Option Scheme became effective on 26
March 2014 and remain in force for ten years
commencing from the effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Glory Sun
Land Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Glory Sun Land in
issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Glory Sun Land Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Glory Sun Land in issue at any time. Any further grant of
shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Glory Sun Land, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of Glory Sun
Land. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Glory Sun Land, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Glory
Sun Land in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Glory Sun Land’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

226

(b) Share option scheme of Glory Sun Land

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
(Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 20 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$10 in total or other
amount as determined by the board of Glory Sun Land by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the Glory Sun Land
Option Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of Glory Sun Land, but may not be less than
the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Glory Sun Land’s shares on the date of the offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Glory Sun Land’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Glory Sun Land’s shares on the
date of the offer, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. As at 31
December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options has been remained outstanding under the
Glory Sun Land Option Scheme was nil.

Options are lapsed if the employee leaves Glory Sun Land

Group and the relationship with consultants is ceased or
terminated by Glory Sun Land Group.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. A RIBARR TR
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T THET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE k& 2,553 3,192
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R RIHIEE - =
Investment in an associate R—REBE A RNIEE 295,495 317,524
298,048 320,716
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances =G ONE T 656,059 =
Other receivables H tih pE W FRIE 1,596 1,940
Financial assets at fair value through ZAF(EF ABZMN SR
profit or loss BE 155 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE YR B A B F s 6,031,821 7,215,010
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 23,179 160,582
6,712,810 7,377,532
Total assets BEEASE 7,010,858 7,698,248
Current liabilities ))ﬁibﬁﬁ
Accrual and other payables E‘I’&E@fﬁiﬂﬁ 15,372 9,544
Amount due to subsidiaries JEH RN E G| 555,686 630,686
Borrowings BE 675,082 551,201
1,246,140 1,191,431
Net current assets RBEEFHR 5,466,670 6,186,101
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,764,718 6,506,817
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 37 3,138,751 3,138,751
Reserves i 38 2,625,967 3,368,066
TOTAL EQUITY B 5,764,718 6,506,817
The financial statements were approved by the board of AU BHREAEFEN T __F=H
directors on 31 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf: =+—B#tE YHEUTEERARE
Yao Jianhui Li Minbin
kR Z=HOR
Chairman Director
EE 2
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

228

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021
are as follows, which in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, principally affect the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.

41. T EH B AT

R-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—BIEWE
ARNFHBNT ARAREZERE %5
HETEREAEENELE BEKE
& ARREERE @ REHMHBAR]
ZHEETERRERANTTE

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
AMARL/RY/ BRf/E4R/ AARREN
WELRER MR/ R A LS YT I Ll [ER-Eie EREER TIZEH
Directly held:
EiiE:
Great Sphere Developments Limited 3 July 2012 The British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100%  Investment holding
(The "BVI")Hong Kong, US$1 each
limited liability company
Great Sphere Developments Limited ~ ~E——F+F=H EBRNEE ((%BRZ 1 REREE1ELN 100% RERR
BB/ BRERLA ERRR(
Success Charm Holdings Limited 11 May 2009 The BVI/Hong Kong, 27,774,264 ordinary shares of 100%  Investment holding
limited liability company US$1 each
RAERARAA “ERAFRAT-B EBRRHB/BAAR 0 TMa4BERAEIER 100% RARR
N HERRKD
Indirectly held:
HiEE
ACE Grand Limited 3 October 2012 Hong Kong, limited liabiity 1 ordinary share, HK§1 100%  Property investment
company
ACE Grand Limited “F-2%tA=R BRARAT IREBR - 1787 100% WERE
Glory Sun Asset Management Limited 30 March 2012 Hong Kong, limited liability 14,000,000 ordinary shares, 88.22%  Providing asset
company HK$14,000,000 management services
BNEEERARAR TR-ZEZAZTH BAARAA 14,000,000 % @A - 88.2% HREUAEERRK
14,000,000 7
Glory Sun Bullion Limited 4 June 2013 Hong Kong, limited liability 20,000,000 ordinary shares, 88.22%  Providing bullion trading
company HK$20,000,000 services
EHERXARAA “T-=£/AEA BERARAT 20,000,000 &A% 8820% HRIERE AR
20,000,000 %7
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. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41. T ERB AT &)

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
HRRL/HY/ BBfT/EHR/ AARREN
WEARAR HRAL/ RIS BepBREARE 2ELRE EREE TIZEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE: (8
Glory Sun Credit Limited 24 October 2014 Hong Kong, limited liabiity 553,333,330 ordinary shares, 100%  Providing money lending
company HK$553,333,330 services
EHEERRAT “E-PMETACTER BEARAA 553,333,330 B AR - 100% REEERS
553,333,330/
Glory Sun Financial Investment 13 March 2014 Hong Kong, limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares, 88.22%  Investment holding
Limited company HK$4,000,000
ENERRARRAR “T-WEZATZR  ARERAA 4,000,000 &M% - 88.2% RARR
4,000,000/
Glory Sun Securities Limited 30 October 1998 Hong Kong, limited liability ~1,003,347,067 ordinary shares, 90.38%  Providing securities
company HK$1,003,737,067 brokerage services
EHEFRRAT “ANETR=TE BEERAA 1,003,347,067 R &A% 038% feltEFELKRE
1,003,737,067 BT
Glory Sun Services Limited 28 October 2016 Hong Kong, limited liabiity 1 ordinary share, HK§1 88.22%  Providing back office
company support to the Group
BREARAH ZE-AETAZTAR BEERAT 1RERK 1B 82% RMASEREHRLER
bl
Glory Sun Wealth Management 30 March 2012 Hong Kong, limited liability 4,600,000 ordinary shares, 88.22%  Providing insurance
Limited company HK$4,600,000 Services
BN EERARAR “R-ZFZA=TH EAARAA 4,600,000 % @k - 88.22% RERBERHK
4,600,000/
Glory Sun Capital Limited 27 August 2018 Hong Kong, limited liability 15,000,000 ordinary shares, 88.22% Inactive
company HK$15,000,000
EHRAARAA “E-NENACTER  BEARAA 15,000,000 % @ - 822% ELEEH
15,000,000 7
Gallant Tech Limited 10 May 2007 Hong Kong, limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares, 100%  Trading of machines and
company HK$5,000,000 spare parts and
investment holding
ENREERAR “TELERATA BEARAR 5,000,000 & ik - 100% WEREHAEAUR
5,000,007 REZR
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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41. T ERBA T (&)

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
HRRL/HY/ BRf1/BHR/ AAAREN
WEARAR MR/ ML A BepdREARE 2RLRE EREE IZEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE (4
Handmoon Investments Limited 31 October 2016 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
ERRERRAT SRRETAST-R RRRAER/FAER 1 REREEIFTMLER 100% WERE
A7) Htn
Harvest Joy Investments Limited 26 October 2016 The BVIHong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
ERRARRAR TERETACTAR RERREE/EAER  \REREE1ETHERK 100% WERE
A7) &t
Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset 23 April 2012 Hong Kong, limited liabiity 1 ordinary share, HK$1 100%  Investment holding and
Management Limited company securities investment
BAENEEERARAT ZE-ZEMAZTZR FAERAA 1RERR 1B 100% HARRREFRE
Laihua TaiSheng Limited* 8 June 2011 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB1,650,000,000 100%  Property development
company
REZEBRAT “F——%7xANR HEARELAT EELARE1,650,0000007 100% MR
Lahua TaiFeng Limited* 10 January 2012 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB 600,000,000 100%  Property development
company
REZERRAT “T-C£-A1R PEARRLLT B &G AR 600,000,0007 100% #ERE
Lin Dong Corporate Management 21 August 2017 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB2,000,000 88.22%  Consultation on
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Limited* company corporate management
ROLLERAA(LE)BRAA  —B-LE\IZt-A TEAREAAR EEARK2,000,0007T 8.22% CEERHD
Shanghai Chuangguang Electronics 7 April 2017 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB5,000,000 100%  Trading of machines and
Co., Limited* company spare parts
LREREFARAT “F-tF¥MALA HEARELAT EEAR5,000,0007T 100% HKERTHHES
Shanghai Hunlicar Investment 4 May 2014 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMBS50,000,000 88.22%  Investment Management
Management Co., Ltd* company
HERRAREARLA “Z-MERARA PEARRELT BE AR 50,000,000 82% RAEE
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

41. T ERB AT &)

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
HRRL/HY/ BBfT/EHR/ AARREN
WEARAR HRAL/ RIS HE SRV TN bl 2ELRE EREE TIZEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE: (8
Shenzhen B&K New Energy Co,, 4 November 1999 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB720,000,000 75.5%  Property investment
Limited* company
BN RRDERAT “hWANET-ABE  PEEREEAT BELAR720,000,0007 155% MERE
Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial 26 February 2014 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMB30,000,000 100%  Inactive
Property Co., Ltd* company
AImAAEERRAA “R-mE-ACTAR PEARERAR EEARE 30,000,000 100% EEXH
Shenzhen Bao Da Financial Services 12 October 2015 The PRC, limited fiability Registered RMBS,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd* company
AImEEERREERAT Z2-RETATZRE PEARERAR EERAR5,000,0007T 100% REARK
Shenzhen Gallant Financial Leasing 8 November 2016 The PRC, limited liability Registered HK$500,000,000 100%  Finance leasing
Co, Ltd.* company
AMIENBERERRAA ZERET-ANE PEAREAAR B &#2500,00000070 100% HERE
Shenzhen Gallant Tech Co., Ltd.* 23 June 2006 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB260,000,000 100%  Trading of machines and
company spare parts
AMITENRXSTHRARAA  —EERFRA-T=A  PEARAMELA E R AR 260,000,0007C 100% HERTHHES
Shenzhen Qianhai Bao Xin Equity 1 April 2017 The PRC, limited liability Registered RMB50,000,000 88.22%  Investment management
Investment Fund Management company
Co,, Ltd.*
MITHEEEREREEEEE —T-tFMA-A EARRIAR EE AR 50,000,000 82% RAEER

ARAR
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41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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41. FERB AT (&)

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Date of incorporation/ ~ establishment/operation  Issued/fully paid up/ held by the
Name of subsidiary establishment and kind of legal entity  registered share capital Company  Principal activities
HRRL/HY/ BRf/E4R/ AARREN
WEARER AL/ AL A LSV TN il 2ELRE ERER TIZEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE (4
Smart Riches Limited 13 January 2011 The BVI/Hong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Inactive
limited liability company
Smart Riches Limited “B—£-AtZH  EERLHE/FAAR \REREE1ETHERK 100% EBEXH
N Htn
Ultra Glory Investments Limited 17 May 2016 The BVIHong Kong, 1 ordinary share of US$ 1 each 100%  Property investment
limited liability company
BRRARRAR TRRERATERE RERAER/FEER 1 REREE1ETMLER 100% W%R3
A7) i
World Fair International Limited 27 December 1996 Hong Kong, limited liability 10,000 ordinary share, 100%  Inactive
company HK$10,000
HEERARAT “ANAETZAZTER  ARARAA 10,000 % &% - 10,0007 100% EEXH

*  For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 42. FEERER

(@) Material non-controlling interests () EAXRIFERER
Summarised financial information on BEEAHIZREZNE LA
subsidiaries with material non-controlling ZHBERBE
interests
Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial IATHEE AL B M E B EAIFE
information for subsidiaries that have non-controlling BENSHBARZEENBE
interests that are material to the Group. The information BIEE - LTAE3ER BRER
presented below represents the amounts before any NAEIEEIERATC S5 ©

inter-company elimination.

Summarised consolidated statement of HEHBREREE
financial position
As at
31 December
2021
R-ZB-—%F
+=-B=+—H
RN FBELFTRETR
BRHBERAD A
Percentage of equity interests held by R R A R
non-controlling interests Bkt 24.50%
HK$'000
FHBT
Current assets MEBE 31,085
Current liabilities mEaE (904,478)
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,329,314
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (112,506)
Net assets BEFE 1,343,415
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42. FEEBER @)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EXRIEERERE)
Summarised consolidated statement of HETENRZREE

comprehensive income

For the year ended
31 December 2021

HE_ZT_—F
+-A=+—HLEE
AR F S Glory
RER B 12 Sun Land
BRAF BB
(Note)
(FHEE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FTHET
Revenue Wz 111,040 5,510,909
Profit for the year FEH A 141,834 249,022
Total comprehensive income e G G 179,595 426,736
Total comprehensive income allocated to 7t T JE1EAEZS ) 2 T
non-controlling interests Wes4azs 44,000 221,971
Summarised consolidated statement of cash HEREREFREE
flows

For the year ended
31 December 2021

HE_ZT_—F
+TZA=+—HLFE

Y FBE Glory

RETR R 12 Sun Land

BRAR B

(Note)

(Pi=E)

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT TET

Cash flow from operating activities MEEHEENRERE 468,765 1,742,340

Cash flow from investing activities KETHELENIRESRE (249,638) 513,283
Cash flow from financing activities MEEHELNRSRE (233,041) (2,575,995)
Net cash outflows Bant — F58 (13,914) (320,372)
Note: Glory Sun Land ceased to be the subsidiary of the Company upon Mz : BHMEMNEND REKETHAR
the completion of distribution in specie. The financial information ARMBRAR - BN BB ER
of Glory Sun Land represented the results and cash flows for the BT —F—A—HEZEEWHET
period from 1 January 2021 to the date of completion of REBREERIRERE - ROIKAT
distribution in specie. Prior to the distribution, the percentage of SEERERNEN BT ENRES
equity interests held by non-controlling interests in Glory Sun Land DL ARA2.23% o ROIKAT » FEEARAE
is 42.23%. BEREHENKEANREA IR

42.23% °
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42. FEEBER w)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () ERIFERERE)
Summarised consolidated statement of AR REE
financial position

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-—FEE+=-_A=+—H
FINFBENFEEIR  Glory Sun Land

1D ERA A EIEH
Percentage of equity interests held by FEIRRR iS5 MRS
non-controlling interests ERsNsd 24.50% 30.87%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets MENEE 11,677 17,512,604
Current liabilities mEAaE (1,018,773) (11,616,203)
Non-current assets IEmBEE 2,226,115 6,339,471
Non-current liabilities IERBasE (76,922) (8,019,421)
Net assets BEFE 1,142,097 4,216,451
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 42. FEEBER @)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EARIFERERE)
Summarised consolidated statement of GETHEKGEREE

236

comprehensive income

For the year ended
31 December 2020
BHE_T_TF
TZA=+—HILLEE
FINFLFTREIR  Glory Sun Land

& 1n EBR A &) EHEM
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHEIT
Revenue Wz 80,224 6,785,385
Loss for the year FEEE (366,175) (772,982)
Total comprehensive income PHEW B FE (303,487) (555.936)
Total comprehensive income allocated B¢ T IE4E M R M 2 U
to non-controlling interests FEE (74,354) (141,208)
Summarised consolidated statement of cash GEBELREREE
flows
For the year ended
31 December 2020
BHE—_ZT-TF
+—A=1+—BL&E
FINFBENFEER  Glory Sun Land
& BRA A BB
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash flow from operating activities EETHELNRESRE (104,069) (2,144,315)
Cash flow from investing activities KRETHELENIRESRE (167,055) (107,020)
Cash flow from financing activities BEEFDEANESRE 240,609 2,394,663
Net cash (outflowsyinflows Be Cnt),/ mAFE (30,515) 143,328
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The following transactions with non-controlling interests
were accounted for as equity transactions as the changes
in the Group's ownership interest did not result in a loss
of control over its subsidiaries.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 18 June 2020, an independent third party made
a capital injection of RMB2,160,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,346,000) in a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group
recognised an increase in non-controlling interests
of approximately HK$2,346,000.

On 29 June 2020, Proficient Power Limited (“PPL"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 88 ordinary shares to Glory Sun
Financial Holdings Limited (“GSF Holdings”), a
subsidiary of the Company. The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$222,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$222,000.

On 29 July 2020, Hong Kong Bao Xin Asset
Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen Bao Xin Supply Chain Company Limited
to Shenzhen Baoxin Logistics Company Limited, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company at a
consideration of RMB500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$548,000). The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$82,000 and a decrease in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$82,000.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

42, R ER (B)

(b)

REZEREZRS

R ASEM BRSNS &
BEAREHMB AR RZESE - &
AT BB SEER A st 1) R 5 A B a1
L HHNER °

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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RZZE-_ZFTFA+NAB"
—ZBIE=FAKNR A
F2EMBRARETEAR
#2,160,0007T( 8 & X 4
2,346,000 7T) ° AN E#R
FE 42 1) 25 38 D0 %9 2,346,000
BT

RZZEZZTFA=-+hAB"
KAREREWBARIBEE
R &) ([PPL]) M AR R B
RAEFERMIERER A A
((BFSmiEg])ilsRET
88k L imAx - AEBE BRI
7 A A 2R > #9 222,000 75 7T
MAD RS A (LRI N
#9222,00078 7T ©

RZE-FEFtA=-+1H "
AR EWBRARBAEEHN
BEEEBRARGFLEED
& WERVIEHREESR
NEINEERERE TAAA
FEEWBRARFINEFH
WMRARDR  REARE
500,000 7t (#HE 7 %) 548,000
BIT) o AL E R IEE IR
%5 1% 10 4982,000% T & AR A
AEBEABEEZALAD
82,0008 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

238

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(iv)

On 18 September 2020, the Company acquired
additional 0.02% equity interests in Glory Sun Land
with cash consideration of approximately
HK$294,000 from an independent third party.
Upon the completion of the acquisition, the
Company’s interest in Glory Sun Land increased
from 69.11% to 69.13%. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$860,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$566,000.

On 15 January 2021 and 18 January 2021, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Shenzhen Yuejin Sports Company Limited has
disposed its entire equity interest in Shenzhen
Ruiteng Enterprise Management Company Limited
("Shenzhen Ruiteng”) and Shenzhen Qianhai
Virdom Education Investments Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Qianhai”) to a non-wholly owned
subsidiary at a consideration of RMB 1. Upon the
completion date, the Group's effective equity
interest in Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen Qianhai
decreased from 69.13% to 58.76%.The changes in
the ownership interest do not result in a loss of
control over Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen
Qianhai. Shenzhen Ruiteng and Shenzhen Qianhai
will remain as a subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results and financial positions will continue
to be consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$3,502,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3,502,000.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

42, R ER (E)

(b)

B ERERETRE ()

(iv)

RZZBE-ZEFAR+NE &
AR AR SR (E49294,000 %
TR —REBYE = WEEH
E A B 5M0.02% B HE o A
WIBETE A IE « ARRRNE
FrEH AR IR 69.11% 18
%£69.13% o AEEERIEE
1% # 5 8 > #9 860,000 78 7T I
RRNEER AL ESIE N
566,000 75 JT °

RZE-_—F—A+HBAR=
E-—F—A+/\8 ' K27
I EMBARGFYIERES
ERARMUREBEARE 1 LE
EERRIIRBEEEEEEGR
AR R BB ZOFRIIA
BB REBR AT (R
YAE]) M2 EBRET —H
EEEWEAR - K7k B H
% - AEERGFY I ROFRY
BEM EIR IR 69.13% R
DES876% ° % FTE HEHE S
BE TSGR R E
KORINBTEEE I < 7Y E
B RRYIBTE BN ABARRA R
MEAR - BEMIEESE M
Bk RS EEN A EENGE
HISRERNEGAEAR - A&
BRIFERERZ R DL
3,502,000 T R AR R AR
A JE Al 7 55 38 A1 %9 3,502,000
BT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

On 18 March 2021, Glory Sun Land, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
placing agreement with Glory Sun Securities
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, pursuant to which Glory Sun Land
allotted and issued 910,020,000 new shares at a
placing price of HK$0.3 per share to the
independent third parties. The placing was
completed on 7 April 2021 and gross cash proceed
of HK$273,006,000 have been received by the
Group. Upon the completion of the placing, the
Group's effective equity interest in Glory Sun Land
decreased from 69.13% to 57.61%. The changes
in the equity interest do not result in a loss of
control over Glory Sun Land. Glory Sun Land will
remain as a subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results and financial positions will continue
to be consolidated in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Group recognised an
increase in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$376,801,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$103,795,000.

During the period from 25 June to 27 July 2021,
the Company acquired additional 0.19% equity
interests in Glory Sun Land with cash consideration
of approximately HK$2,843,000 from independent
third parties. Upon the completion of the
acquisition, the Company’s interest in Glory Sun
Land increased from 57.61% to 57.80%. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interests of approximately HK$8,492,000 and an
increase in equity attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$5,649,000.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

42, R ER (B)

(b)

(vi)

(vii)
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BFRIERERIETR S (8)

RZZE-—F=/F+N\H &K
RAEEENBRRIEH B
HARRFEEENBAREH
BEERARIGI AL S W -
Bl ENEMRBIE=H
EREBERESERH
03B TEREBERETRZ
910,020,000 f% ¥ A% 15 ° B &
EEER -_E-—FMA+H
SERK - A BB WEIFTIS R
18 I8 & #8 %273,006,0007%
JC o REEESIETKE - &
BERENMEHNEREIRH
69.13% & > £57.61% ° #%
RS e N B R E T
B RYIE B - BB D
BARBINWEBAR - BEE
TS RIS B
SEMGE M BERERANEE
IR o NEEERIEIERE R
h1#7376,801,0007% 7T K KA
AEEAEBMLEZRDD
103,795,000/8 T °

R-E-—FA-+HHE
A= +EHEHE - AAF
R4 R (B 42,843,000 JT A
BYE=ZARBNRENE
REIN0.19% AR 4 o M UL BB =
HEME  ARABRBEFEL
B R 2R H57.61%1E 1 &=
57.80% ° A& B iR IE AR
E 25 8 L #9°8,492,000 7 7T I
AN B A A FE (G #E %5 100
5,649,000/& 7T °
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

240

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

(viii)  On 30 July 2021, Golden Affluent Limited (“GAL"),

(ix)

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 6,936,376 ordinary shares to
GSF Holdings, a subsidiary of the Company.
Besides, GAL applied and PPL to allot 138 ordinary
shares. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$4,977,000 and an increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$4,977,000.

On 23 November 2021, Shenzhen B&K New Energy
Co., Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen Bangkai Commercial Property Co.,
Limited and B&K Rechargeable Battery Holding (HK)
Limited to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Group recognised an increase in
non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$658,000 and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$658,000.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

42, FEIERRERS (&)

(b) HEIEZERERETRS (&)

(viii)

(ix)

RZBE-—F+HA=+H &K
RAIMFEEEWBARENE
RARI(EBERAT M
Ee TR (AR E — B
B A7) A EE K #176,936,376
fRE@mAR o thoh - R BRA
7] B2 &5 30 2 SKPPLED 3% 138 %
TR o AN E R IEE A AE
R A #94,977,000 78 TT K AR
NEEE ANEEERIE N
4,977,000 7T ©

RZE-_—F+—A=+=
B - KAREEMBARREY
N R IR D B R A AE]
BB - RIS
EABR AR RPN FaRIER
(BB)BER QB2 HARE D
EFARRRIZEMBAR - &
& B SR IR 4 AR R 250 0 4D
658,000/ T R AR AR A
FE(EHEZTR 2 49658,00078 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before

43. 78

income tax for the year to cash generated

from operations:

Loss before income tax from continuing operations
ProfitAloss) before tax from discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

— Interest income

— Finance costs

— Dividend income (Note 7)

— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 16)

— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)

RESREEXBNORAERABR
RE& HEEERORRAETN/ (58

{EEATRE -

— fEMA

— BIBRA

U ONGET)

— 0% BER&ENE (Wit 16)
12 AURI)

— Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) — HEW% + BiE R EHEE (:7)

— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44)
— Gain on early termination of lease

— Fair value (gain¥loss on investment properties (Note 17)
— Fair value gain on derivative financial assets (Note 7)

— Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL

— Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at FVTPL

— Gain from derecognition of financial quarantee contract

(Note 7)

—HENBRAMENE ()

— 10 Wﬁam%

— RENE NFERE) /BR M)

— T EREENDTERE (Fi7)

—BATEHAERNEREENATE
BB

—HERATEF A BRNHECREED
BiE/ (k)

— RIS RERA D NS (F57)

— Loss from derecognition of derivative financial assets (Note 7) — & ILEERATE S RAE 2 B (H3E7)

— Loss from derecognition of subsidiaries

— Impairment losses on intangible assets (Note 18)
— Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

(Note 16)

— Impairment losses on loans and advances (Note 25)

— Impairment losses on trade receivables (Note 26)

— Impairment losses on other receivables (Note 29)

— (Reversal of)fprovision for impairment losses on contract

assets (Note 27)

— Write-down of inventories of properties (Note 24)

— Write-down of inventories
— Release of exchange reserve upon distribution
— Share of results of associates (Note 19)

Operating profit before working capital changes

—RIEEZNBLA L BR
— EVAERERR(HE18)
— 0% BERREEERR (5 16)

—BRRETRESE (HF25)
—Féuﬂzm%ﬁfz TR EEE (1t 26)
— At ENFIERESE (HFF29)

—ANEEREFR(RE) /BB

(Hzx27)

—WRmERE (Mxk24)
—HREE

— N R E LR

— PREERRRE (W 19)

SEALRDMEREN

ReERERMETE

(a) AFERRFE

BADEF](E18)
EREEBAENRE YR+

2021 2020
8- S22
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TATL
(12,494) (207,288)
38,459 (466,899)
25,965 (674,187)
(47,374) (41,000)
149,219 97,335
(5,139) (10,781)
72,272 54,406
11,085 43,658
1 123
(364,191) (519,624)
@ =
(144,171) 607,202
(1,313) (18,291)
146,115 2,777
32,680 (4,266)
- (33,419)
33,357 -
999 -
10,211 419,802
35,755 34,687
370,669 1,486
1,151 475
22,560 32,662
(61) 59,816
172,694 189,921
- 15,097
(64,977) -
12,345 (16,011)
469,850 261,868
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 43. mMEREREBRWE )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before (a) EEERATEHANER(EHE)
income tax for the year to cash generated BEREXBIBNREZHER
from operations: (Continued) (&)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Changes in working capital: LEESEE) -
— Inventories —FE (14,212) (18,384)
— Loans and advances — BER KRB (710,508) 321,289
— Client trust bank balances — BPESRITAR 59,382 121,891
— Completed properties held for sale ~ — B R LFEWELERP
and properties under development ES (1,395,012) (1,915,368)
— Trade and other receivables and — EE R EAMER
contract assets RENEHEE 337,192 (796,815)
— Finance lease receivables = F’ﬂﬁlgﬁﬂﬁfﬂg?ﬁ( 77,779 (895)
— Financial assets at FVTPL — EBERATEFAEENSH
BE (30,239) (364,716)
— Trade and other payables and — B E 5 R R E At AT
contract liabilities FEREHNAE 3,128,418 473,441
Cash generated from/(used in) operations A& & FT18,/(FTF ) 1,922,650 (1,917,689)
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 43. GERERBRMTE )
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEFTEFELEEEZIYK:
financing activities:
This section sets out an analysis the movements in RETES| S 2R MEFBE
liabilities from financing activities for each of the periods EEEBEZEBHIN -
presented.
Other
payables Other
Bank and toanon- payables to
Corporate other Interest Lease  controlling related
bonds borrowings  payables liabilities interest parties
(Note35)  (Note35)  (Note33) (Note28(a))  (Note33)  (Note33) Total
RN HftEf
BIR k2R BES

bRE%  HffE  EANE BAEAR  BEXR WEE

(WaEss)  (W&E3s)  (WaEs3) (Wdas@)  (W&E33)  (MeEss) #it

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TR AL A TAT TR AL A

As at 1 January 2020 RZZZZE-A—H (16834000 (8192,346)  (477,465) (34,110) (44,558) (78,088)  (10,514,967)

New lease iitii)-1 - = = (96,847) - - (96,847)
Lease modification REBT - - - (1,19) S = (119)
Financing cash outflows/ ~ BER S/ (FA)

(inflows) 670800  (3,587,491) 1,033,001 21,707 232 (21,282)  (1,883,033)
Finance costs BHBRA - - (759401) (7,444) - - (766,845)
Exchange realignment ~ EXHE (24000 (592,124) (3.973) (2,019 (2,590) (6,081)  (609,187)
Asat 31 December 200 K-ZE-F%F+-A

=1+-H (1,020,000) (12,371,961) (207,838) (119,905) (46,916) (105,451)  (13,872,071)
New leases e - - - (13,769) - - (13,769)
Termination of leases ~ #IFHE - - - 37 - - 37
Financing cash (inflowsy ~ BERE RN/l

outflows (16,000) 2,154,613 813,889 27,146 230 97,062 3,076,940
Finance costs BHBRA - - (874070) (9,964) - - (884,034)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ {HEMBAF - 2,719,048 32,119 - - - 2,751,167
Distribution in specie ENAR 680,000 7,362,974 255,880 64,544 48,554 5211 8,417,223
Qthers 2t - (1,165550) (24,589) - - - (1,190,139)

Exchange realignment A% (349,467) (3,776) (2,227) (1,868) (2374)  (359,712)

Asat 31 December 2021 M=Z=—F+-f
=t+-A (356,000)  (1,650,343) (8,385) (54,138) = (5492)  (2,074,358)
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ 44. HEKBE DR ZEHEKE QA
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z--F+ZA=1+—BLHF
E

(a) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinpeng Fresh Food (a) HEFITHELEHRDE
Industry Company Limited (“Shenzhen BR 2 & (SR )
Xinpeng”)
On 23 June 2021, the Group disposed of its 51% equity RZZEZ—FA=Z+=0 &%
interest in Shenzhen Xinpeng which was principally = AR & K E A K 15,000,000 7T
engaged in trading of seafood for a cash consideration (FBE R 418,270,000 T) HEH
of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately PRIIFTIEHI 51% kg - ZARE

HK$18,270,000).

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follow:

RNEEHES -

RHEBRNEEFEWT

Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Net assets disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration

Net assets disposed of

Release of exchange reserve
Release of non-controlling interests

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
FHET
VI - BB RERE 44
ReKIRSEEY 2,483
JEURE 5 B 3k K H th & U KT8 25,215
BHEEEFE 27,742
HEHE A TS
HAeRE 18,270
BHEEEFE (27,742)
fEBRIE H S 2,759
B Ol FRIE AR 8,519
1,806
HEFREENBRESRANTE
BWEESRE 18,270
It EMRe RIREEEY (2,483)
15,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Yue Jin Asia

On 23 July 2021, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Yue Jin Asia which was principally engaged in
operation of yacht club as well as provision of training
services.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follow:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

44. HEMBELR, FHEKHELR
(%)

BE2-_FE-_—-F+-A=+—HLHF

E )

(b) HEZIHETMN
R-_E-_—F+A-_+=H' &%
B HEHE N BN PR
ZAREEREERSHALCEUR
MR -

REERMNaEFENT

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Consideration payable
Borrowings

Current tax liabilities

Amount due to the Group

Net liabilities disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration

Non-cash consideration

Net liabilities disposed of

Assignment of amount due to the Group
Release of exchange reserve

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

*  Represents the amount less than HK$ 1,000

2021
-
HK$'000
FET
M - B R 1,403
mEE 88,851
JE U 5 BR 3k R EL A FE MR R TE 10,957
A Y (Bl B AR 1B 9
RENRREEED 3,737
FEAT B 2 AR 3k R b FE A5 5RIE (15,762)
ERE (179,826)
BE (52,800)
BNHAT IR & (& (4,725)
JE AN E FRIE (305,346)
EHEAEFE (453,502)
HEMB A TS :

ReERE —*
FRERE (79,128)
BEHE&EFE 453,502
HEEN AR EIE (305,346)
ARBRIE H e (3,185)
65,843

HEREENESREFE
BYERESRE —*
I EMNRe RIREEEY (3,737)
(3.737)

* RAREFE/NN1,0008 T
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ 44. HEMBE AR, ZHHEQR

DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES (%)

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) BE-_F—_—-F+=-A=+—HL#F

E &)

(c) Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial (c) HEFRIHEAEEXZFRAL A
Company Limited (“Xinhengchuang”) &l ([RYIF1ERIS)
On 22 December 2021, the Group disposed of its entire R-ZT-—F+-"F-+-H K
equity interest in Xinhengchuang. Xinhengchuang was KB HEERNRYIFERIN 2 24
principally engaged in property development and o BRI EENPEIE SR
investment in the PRC. BRREE -

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follow:

REERMNEERFENT

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Inventories of properties

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Borrowings

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Net liabilities disposed of

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration

Non-cash consideration

Net liabilities disposed of

Release of exchange reserve

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

2021
—E_—fF
HK$'000
FET

M - B R 4,019
HEYHE 2,224,723
BEFIBEE 39,069
MEGFE 3,219,639
FEUSE 2 BR 5k T2 E A FE UL GR IR 385,126
BN ER AT Uy (B F TR 27,155
EEBRITFR IR G TR 68,180
ReE KA EEY 54,527
FEfS B 2 IRk R E A0 FE S 5RIE (1,353,920)
aHEE (1,823,945)
BE (2,666,248)
ENERR IR B (& (111,835)
BELEFIEAE (88,298)
BHEEEFE (21,808)
HERB AT :

RERE 367,500
FRERE (89,628)
BHEAEFE 21,808
R bR e 5 4 (3,138)

296,542

HEREENBESRAEE !

BYERERE 220,500
FTHENRE MRS EED (54,527)

165,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Disposal of Shenzhen Xinhengchuang Industrial
Company Limited (“Xinhengchuang”) (Continued)

The consideration has been partially received of
approximately HK$220,500,000 and the remaining of
approximately HK$147,000,000 was included in trade
and other receivables under the distribution in specie in
note 45.

Deregistration of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
derecognised the Hunlicar All Weather CTA No.1 Private
Equity Investment Fund, Hunlicar Debt-equity Swaps
Strategy No.1 Private Equity Investment Fund, Hunlicar
Equity Choice No.1 Private Equity Investment Fund and
Hunlicar Quantitative Hedge No.1 Private Equity
Investment Fund (the “Private Equity Investment Funds”).
After the derecognition of the Private Equity Investment
Funds, the Group de-recognised the respective non-
controlling interest of HK$1,464,000.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

44. HEWE LR, FEHEME DA

(%&)

BE-E-_—F+ZH=1+—HL#F
E#E)

(c)

(d)

HEFRIIEABERERL A
& ([RYFF1EA ) (&)

ZAREE WA —H69#9220,500,000
77T 0 Mgk T 49 147,000,000/ 7T
BIEF ABREMI T 45 B WD IRETA
B SRR REMERFRIE -

KB A Al

REBEE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H
HFEE AEBFHEHERERE
CTA 1SRFLEREREES - Hh
BREEBRREEIRLERERER
- BHREBEIRLERER
BEES RIERECE 1 FALER
EREES((AEBRERER
©])c MR IETERLEREREE
©% 0 AEBERIEERAREIEER
251,464,000 78 7T ©
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44. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/
DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(e) Disposal of He Shan World Fair Electronic
Technology Limited
On 22 June 2020, the Group disposed of its entire equity

interest in He Shan World Fair Electronic Technology
Limited for a cash consideration of HK$382,063,000.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follow:

44. HEWE LR, FEHEME DR

(%&)

BE-ZE-_EF+-H=1+—HLHF

B

(e)

HEBLTHEEFRHEBR

AT

RZE_ZEFAA=-+=-H K&
B A IR 4 X {8 382,063,000/8 7t
EERBILTHRETRHEERA
AR 2 BP AR HE -

REERMNEEFHENT

2020
—T-TF
HK$’000
F&T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE RZE 18,421
Investment properties WEYZE 9,439
Deferred tax assets BEFIBEE 181
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEYD 1,802
Trade and other receivables FE U B 2 BR 5% T2 E b FE WK IE 58
Trade and other payables JEN B SRR N B b fE SR8 (6,243)
Current tax liabilities BB I & & (2,501)
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEEE (98)
Amount due to the Group AR E B FRIE (140,230)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFEAE (119,171)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB AT :
Cash consideration RENRE 382,063
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFEAE 119,171
Release of exchange reserve FRBRIE S S 18,390
519,624
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREENESRNFEE
Cash consideration received BUYIR & KRE 382,063
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtErRe RESEEY (1,802)
380,261
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45. DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE

45. EY) 5K

On 28 December 2021, the Company distributed an interim RZZBEZ—F+ZA=+N\B ' ARFE

dividend that was satisfied by way of distribution in specie of
shares in Glory Sun Land held by the Group to shareholders of
the Company. The distribution in specie was completed on 28

December 2021.

The carrying amounts of net assets of Glory Sun Land Group at
the date of the completion of distribution were as follow:

AZ+NHZEK °

MBREEDT

AR R B RRK RS
NEMHEADRAKRERBENENE
W2 - BYMDIRER T -_—F+=

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Financial assets at FVOCI
Inventories

Inventories of properties
Contract assets

Trade and other receivables
Current tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Financial guarantee

Non-controlling interests

Net assets distributed under distribution of specie

Net cash outflow arising on distribution in specie:

Cash and cash equivalents distributed

RN G

BREME
BRAFEAAREMERRG S REE
&

MEFE

BREE

R 8 5 Bl R e B A R W R IR
BIEAR] Y B B TR
BEEMFIRITER R BITFK
RekReEHEY

e B 5 Bk M B A FE 4 5RIR
BHAEE

tEE

HEARE

MR RS

EERIARE

RS ER

TRt an

REBEEWMDIRE DIKEEFE

B2 REENR SR L FE
ENEREMREEEY

% HRRLE

ENEMEEEEFERDIRTTHK A B

2021
— g

HK$°000
TR

137,116
4,063,202
4,800
452
10,175,785
34,619
5,118,073
53,487
430,531
259,155
(4,046,840)
(2,335,646)
(8,042,974)
(64,544)
(101,877)
(685,520)
(89,628)

4,910,191

(3,106,278)

1,803,913

(259,155)

Annual Report 4§ 2021 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao V0 5 e A Bl

46. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 46. EX K H R
Capital and other expenditure contracted for at the end of the REBRFHREFTNERREENER
year but not yet incurred by the Group were as follows: REMAZAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI AEREE -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R&E - 3,781
Investment properties and property WEMERMEBRRES T
development expenditures 1,424,352 17,600,675
Investment in an associate & — A& A A 215,158 215,158

1,639,510 17,819,614
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47.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the end of the year are analysed into
the following categories. See note 4.9 for explanations about
how the category of financial instruments affects their

subsequent measurement.

47. REH B D
EEHNE

REBRFRERANCREERBED
BREER TS BRELST - EESRT
BEMnHEHRETENTE  F2HME
49R)EHFA ©

Financial assets
Measured at fair value
— Financial assets at FVOCI

— Financial assets at FVTPL
— Derivative financial assets

Measured at amortised cost

— Trade receivables

— Finance lease receivables

— Loans and advances

— Deposits and other receivables
— Client trust bank balances

— Pledged bank deposit and restricted

deposits
— Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
— Trade and bills payables

— Accruals and other payables
— Borrowings

— Lease liabilities

— Consideration payable

ERMEE

A FIERE

— RAFEAHMEZEKE
LEREE

— BATES A RSN REE
— PR BEE

B AN E
— RUE B
— MEMER KR
B R ER
&%&ﬁMEWm
— B EFRITE
— BERRTES &x@ﬂ?ﬂ

—REMREFEY

EHAE

B IER AT E

— RBNESERFIRENER
— Rt ER REAMEN R
—f&E

—HERE

— EARE

f 3 SO 065 e A P

MEMEERTH

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
THERT THET
277,869 478,681
326,500 475,056
- 32,044

159,586 384,856
48,592 124,053
2,490,151 945,940
118,630 701,412
195,404 254,786
33,624 646,085
730,076 1,724,662
4,380,432 5,767,575
632,618 3,730,461
394,288 1,467,150
2,006,343 13,391,961
54,138 119,905

- 163,747
3,087,387 18,873,224
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48.

252

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
48.1Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management program focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
the senior management of the Group under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.

(a) Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong and
in the PRC. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to Hong Kong dollar and
RMB denominated transactions. Foreign exchange
risk arises where future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in
currency that is not the respective company’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's
cash and bank balances and borrowings are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US
dollar. Since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to US
dollar, the Group believes the exposure of
transactions denominated in Hong Kong dollar
which are entered into the Group to be
insignificant.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% with all other
variables held constant, loss after tax would have
been approximately HK$25,779,000 lower/higher
(2020: no significant impact).

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

48. B AR ERE
48.1 B R A &

NEBEBRAZZIAMERERE - 2
iz E ke (B IEIMNE R g - EEE
g RFERR) EERRERRBE
TRRB AEENEBRRERT
RERSRMSN A TERER -
BWAOBEE AR EEMERIRAE

THEE - REEMNRREERET)
BIBEARNRESHAENBERETR
REIR o

(a) TEREEE
S 7 B

AEEEEREERTELE
E5 o AEBAXHSNER R
I%Eﬁiu%ﬁ&}\iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ
RHEM - ERRBRRS
EEREENER A%’ATD}
BEERIMINEREHER - B8
EEIMNERR o

RZBEZ—FRZFT_FTF
+-A=+—8 REEXNH
& RIBTTHEBREBEEZE
T ARBERETEE - AR
/amiﬁi%mﬁﬁﬁ EH AL E
e ANEBERIMZAETETE
MR BHRBRITRERX -

RZBE-Z—ER T -_FTF
+=—A=+—8 " WAREHR
B,/ {E5%  EFTA H it
BRFHIBEAT - BHILER
gL, N4 25,779,000

BT(ZE_2F  BEAY
g)-
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BERRER &)

481 B EBEE (&)

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WHEEEE(E)

The Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the level of
foreign currency receipts and payments. The Group
ensures that the net exposure to foreign exchange
risk is kept to an acceptable level from time to time.
The Group also regularly reviews the portfolio of
suppliers and the currencies in which the
transactions are denominated so as to minimise the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price change arising
from its financial assets at FVTPL and financial
assets at FVOCI. The Group’s financial instruments
are equity securities which are subject to change in
market prices of the securities. To manage its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities,
the Group diversity its portfolio.

For those equity investments at FVTPL and FVOCI
with quoted market price. The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. If equity prices had been 10%
higher/lower (2020: 10% higher/lower):

— loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2021 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$6,509,000 (2020:
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$11,517,000) due to the change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL; and

7R 52 [ B 2R N R R A K
FoEUNERIIERZHE
@ o ANEERERATAR HIME

TR\ e 5 BB B A 1 1A AT 2 2K
F o R - AEEE R
EEEA MR ZE - ZER
EAEE R IMNERE

1B 15 2 2

AEEAZ R R FER AR
T REEMEATFEFAR
i 2 E U 0 & B & A S| R
BAEEREE - NEEE R
TARKEESFMEZSHAA
& o REERRENKRERE
FMELNERRR  AEH
HEEEHEE TUZT -

BUTISHRERAFETA
Bam RIEAFEGFARMEE
W rRERE M S - LATH
E)SWIE AT - BARB RS AR
% (B FTTE ¥9 A0 BB FETE HY © fin]
HXFL/EE/TE}V]O‘VO —_F-
TE: ERTEKI0%) ¢

— BHE-_Z-_—F+=-A1

=t+—HILEFENBRH
BEBBRL N
6,509,000 L (=& =
TFE:RD MO
11,517,000 7T) * JhH

RIZAFEFAEZN
TREENAFEES
FTEt : &
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

254

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

Price risk (Continued)

— other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$26,249,000
(2020: increase/decrease by HK$45,144,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVOCI.

The Group is not exposed to significant commodity
price risk as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash held at banks, loans and
advances and financial lease receivables, the Group
has no other significant interest bearing assets. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. At 31 December 2021, if interest
rates on cash held at banks, loans and advances
and finance lease receivables had been 25 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$7,360,000 lower/higher
(2020: HK$6,621,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest income on cash at
banks, loans and advances and finance lease
receivables.

GLORY SUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED Eff & @EBHER A A

48. B EMERE &)

481 B EBEE (&)

(a)

5 m i ()
EsmLR (&)

— #HE—ZE-_—%+=A
=+ —HILEFEMEMD
2mEUWRE I IR
#926,249,00078 T( —
oSS DI
45,144,000 7C) * J9HE
PRI AFEGFAEME
ARENEMEERE
TEME -

Fr-A=+—RLEEES

RHEmEBRR -
VRS

BRIBTTIR SR - ERRBR
AR ghE S EUGRIESN - AR
EEVHEEMEAGFEEAE -
AEFEBRARZERSRER
RENSEMHRREGHTE o
R—E-——F+-_fF=+—
B HERITHEESER  BX
REF A K g & & UG IE
MEHEE, FAE25MEEZ
EREEMEHE T ENER
T FANKRREEREES
RSE A1 497,360,000 75
(B -ZHE {4 1Em
6,621,0007870) * ETEZMHMNIR
AREER  ERREFUR
BhE TS UG R B U A
A BTE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o VA 205 e A Pl

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank and
other borrowings which are interest bearing at
floating rates and are repayable based on the
repayment schedules. Borrowings issued at floating
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on bank and
other borrowings had been 25 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,018,000 higher/lower (2020: HK$25,381,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from financial assets at
amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2021, the top five debtors and
the largest debtor accounted for approximately
24% (2020: 32%) and 7% (2020: 10%) of the
Group's trade receivables balance, respectively. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group normally
conducts credit checks on new customers and
requires them, and other customers with credit
histories that the management is not satisfied with,
to pay a deposit, or to provide the Group with a
letter of credit when placing orders. For sales of
goods, the Group normally requires customers to
pay approximately 90% of the contracted sum
before the goods delivery.

48. BIEMERE &)

48.1 B EEE (&)

(a)

(b)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group provides clients with securities
brokerage and margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by clients’ securities
or deposits held as collateral. Each client has a
maximum credit limit based on the quality of
collateral held and the financial background of the
client. Management has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken overdue
debts. The overdue balances for margin clients are
reviewed daily, and force-sell action may be taken
against clients with overdue balances on case by
case basis.

For other loans and advances, prior to the lending
of loan, the financial strength, purpose of the
borrowing and repayment ability of the borrower is
reviewed to ensure the default probability is
acceptably low.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Group as set out in note 49, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 49.
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B RRER &)

481 B EBREE (&)

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE &)

In order to minimise the credit risk of the Group,
the management has implemented internal control
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtor at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

Impairment and provision policies

The Group's impairment requirements under HKFRS
9 are based on an expected credit loss model. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivables and contract assets; and
general approach to measure ECL on loans and
advances to customers, debt investments measured
at FVOCI and other financial assets accounted for
at amortised cost. Under the simplified approach,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general
approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in
credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1:
12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

258

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group's
historical experience and expert credit risk
assessment, including forward-looking information.
The loan and advances use the number of days past
due and loan-to-collateral value to determine
significant increase in credit risk. For non-standard
financing, internally derived credit ratings have
been identified as representing the best available
determinant of credit risk. Credit risk is deemed to
have increased significantly if the credit rating has
significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial
recognition.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@) Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank
balances are located in Hong Kong and the
majority of cash and bank balances are
located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
credit risk on cash and bank balances and
client trust bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or with good reputation.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued) 48.1 BiEAKER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE &)
Financial assets with crediit risk exposure (Continued) EfGEERRr & MEE (&)

EWE SRR RENE

(b)  Trade receivables and contract assets (b)

The counterparties of the majority of trade
receivables and contract assets are individuals
who are mainly located in Hong Kong and
the PRC. For the customers related to sales of
goods, the Group normally requires
customers to pay approximately 90% of the
contracted sum before the goods delivery. As
the Group trades with a large number of
diversified clients, in the opinion of the
directors, the concentration of credit risk of
trade receivables and contract assets is
manageable.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

260

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, ECL rate of contract
assets with a gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$22,539,000 (2020:
HK$72,654,000) is assessed to be 0.5% (2020:
ranged from 0.5% to 10.64%). The loss
allowance provision for contract assets was
approximately HK$113,000 (2020:
HK$4,140,000).

The following table provides information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECL for trade receivables as at the end of
reporting period:

48. B EMERE &)

481 B EBEE (&)

(b) f=EEE (&)

Ef = ERR 8 % a AE ()

(b)

Expected
loss rate

BHRERER

EWE SRR RENE
E(#&)

RZZTE=Z—F+=A8
=+—H ERAMEY
22,539,000 (= &
— T 4 : 72,654,000
TLMEHNEEMTESRE
EEBERETEA05%
(ZZ2ZZFF: N TF
0.5% £ 10.64%) - &4
BENBBEE®BAY
113,000 (=& =F
£ 1 4,140,000 7T) °

TREHBBAREH
RAKENEE AR I
K W E 5 AR TR
SEBRNER

31 December 2020
ZR-EET-A=T-H
Gross
camying Loss
amount
A
% HK$'000
% T

allowance
EERE
HK$'000

T

31 December 2021

ZBC-E+-A=t-A

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
kil ik REfE R
% HKS'000 HKS'000
) Thn Thn
Current (not past due) I (K84 0.31%-34.60% 129174 402
130dayspastde ~ BE1Z08  0.41%3460% 1,720 8
3160 dayspastdue ~ HBE3IZ60R  0.79%-34.60% 5,554 4
61-90 dayspastdue ~ BE61Z0R  0.94%-34.60% 4132 39
91-120dayspastdue  HEH9TZ1208  036%-3460% 5,028 18
121365 days past due 21212365 B 34,60% 6,926 2,397
162,534 2,948
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0.07%-23.54%
0.04%-23.54%
0.22%-23.54%
0.02%-23.54%
0.69%-23.54%
0.20%-23.59%

122,099
168,067
9,723
38,388
3,384
40,947
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34
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50
37
3,019
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables.

Loans and advances

The counterparties of the majority of loans
and advances (including margin loans and
other loan financing) are individuals who are
mainly located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The management prepares an analysis of key
margin client to avoid excessive concentration
of risk. As at 31 December 2021, the credit
risk of the Group on loans and advances are
concentrated on 3 customers with
aggregated carrying amounts of
HK$1,826,229,000 (2020: diversified). The
remaining customers are diversified into a
large number.

The Group measures loss allowances for loans
and advances on either 12-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred since initial
recognition or whether an asset is considered
to be credit-impaired. ECL is calculated using
the key parameters include probability of
default (“PD"), loss given default (“LGD"),
exposure at default, time value of money
with reference to the quantitative analysis of
historical statistics (such as ratings of
counterparties and types of collaterals).
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

()

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
from initial recognition of loans and advances
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To
assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the loans and
advances, generally on individual basis, as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The following indicators
are generally incorporated: (i) external credit
rating (if any); (ii) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet their
obligations; and (iii) significant actual and
expected changes in the performance and
behaviour of the counterparties, including
changes in the payment status of
counterparties in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the counterparties.

For mortgage loans receivables and margin
loan receivables, credit assessments are part
of the normal process before approving loans
to applicants. The Group considers that the
credit risk arisen is significantly mitigated by
the collaterals.

There have been no significant changes in
estimation technique or significant
assumptions made during the reporting
period.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued) 48.1 BiEKRER (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE (%)
Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued) EfG s BE a5 m & E ()
() Loans and advances (Continued) (0 ERERBHE)
The following table provides information TRIEEEBER LD
about movement of allowance for RS H R AR (B S
impairment losses on loans and advances as BREZEHHNER

at the end of reporting period:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1B H2RE EIRR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TET

At 1 January 2021 RZE=—%—A-H 51 5,023 - 5,074

Transfer to stage 3 BEEEIRE - (1,578) 1,578 =

Provision for impairment  JH{E# & 10,590 35,327 324,752 370,669
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—

+-A=+-H 10,641 38,772 326,330 375,743

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

E1R& F2RRER E3RE Bt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAR TAT TBz TR

At 1 January 2020 RZZ=ZT5—-HA-A 139 3,449 = 3,588
(Reversal of)/provision for  JRfE (B[E),/ Bl
impairment (88) 1,574 — 1,486
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+-A=t+-8 51 5,023 - 5,074
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

(0

Loans and advances (Continued)

The significant changes in the loss allowance
in loans and advances are as follows:

(i) Upon the completion of distribution in
specie, Glory Sun Land ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The loans to
Glory Sun Land Group with gross
carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,224,000,000 remain outstanding
after the completion of distribution and
were classified as loans and advances
during the year resulted in an increase in
loss allowance; and

(i)~ Origination of new loans and advances
net of settlement resulted in an increase
(2020: increase) in loss allowance of
approximately HK$370,669,000 (2020:
HK$1,486,000).

Other receivables and deposits

In respect of other receivables and deposits,
the Group monitors the exposures and
manages the other receivables and deposits
based on historical settlement records and
past experience. At the reporting date, the
credit risk on other receivables and deposits
have not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures loss
allowances for other receivables and deposits
at an amount equal to 12 months ECL.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to settle the payables of the Group. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
senior management of the Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available. In addition, due to the conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government management
aims to monitor and manage its operating
cashflows and transactions denominated in RMB
regularly to minimise the respective liquidity risk.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group'’s liquidity reserve which comprise undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding while
minimising its overall costs by keeping a mix of
committed and uncommitted credit lines available.
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48.1 B EEE (&)

(c)
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48.

266

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
48.1Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

48. BIEMERE &)
48.1 iR REE (&)

() "EBELEE(E)

TRAAKENIIFTEERME
BN REAGEREAH
FHE M RSRFILRED R
2 BRI HAR - RAMEE
ERBENRBRRERE -

Withinone  Between Between
yearoron oneand two and Over
demand two years five years five years Total
—FAg
REX -ZME WERF HBIF st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT FHT FTHT THT FHT
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-—%F
t+t=HA=+-8
Trade and bill payables EREBESERK
ENRE 632,618 - - - 632,618
Accruals and other payables fExtE R K H it
R 5RIE 376,382 3,834 7,855 6,217 394,288
Borrowings BE 2,166,475 - - - 2,166,475
Lease Liabilities HE&E 14,208 15,749 31,618 - 61,575
3,189,683 19,583 39,473 6,217 3,254,956
Financial guarantee BRITHBER
issued
Maximum amount Bt EER
guarantee 54,615 - - - 54,615
At 31 December 2020 RZZZTF
+=A=+—-H
Trade and bill payables JENE SRR
ANES 3,730,461 - - - 3,730,461
Accruals and other payables JEFT & B R E
PR FRIA 1,467,150 - = - 1,467,150
Borrowings fBE 7,341,450 3,332,163 4,716,140 - 15,389,753
Consideration payable ERRE - - 46,236 416,129 462,365
Lease Liabilities MEEE 25,888 23,232 81,418 37,327 167,865
12,564,949 3,355,395 4,843,794 453,456 21,217,594
Financial guarantee issued B 1THI TSR
Maximum amount TReBER
guarantee 628,430 - - - 628,430
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 481 B EBREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () HEBELEE(E)

W E R EA B AT EERA
VB P S R e RN BE R 2
SKIE R B KA B R E SKIEK -
AIE& 2 FIREER AR ERK
BRHXPRHRAFESE - B
BEREMRHNEER - 1|
HERAL T EITEEREFIL
TREERIE - KBEGHW
BETEENEREK - BHRe

Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on
demand clause which gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time, the
amounts repayable are classified in the earliest time
bracket in which the lender could demand
repayment. Based on the internal information
provided by management, it is expected that the
lender will not exercise its rights to demand
repayment. The expected cash flows with reference

to the schedule of repayments set out in the loan MEBLT
agreements are as follows:
Between  Between
Within oneand  twoand Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years Total
—£x -EZ@MF WMERE BBIF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET FET
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
+ZA=t-8H
Borrowings 9= 1,291,293 56,440 755,354 24341 2,127,428
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZF
+=A=+—H
Borrowings B 6,013,678 3,486,695 5,771,040 26,480 15,297,893
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

268

48.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or dispose of assets to
reduce debt.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings
and shareholder’s equity. Capital is managed so as to
maximise the return to shareholders while maintaining a
capital base to allow the Group to operate effectively in
the marketplace and sustain future development of the
business. Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of gross gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
48.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group's total borrowings and total equity and gross
gearing ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as

f 3 SO 065 e A P

BERRER &)
48.2 EXRERER (&)

AEER_ZF_—FR-_FT_FF
tT-A=+—HAmBERBERES

follows: REARBEBLRERNT
2021 2020
:g: — fﬁ — = —ﬁfﬁ
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Total borrowings ER-EGEE] 2,006,343 13,391,961
Total equity W4 6,334,049 10,862,098
Gross gearing ratio (%) BE B (%) 31.7 123.3

48.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value measurements of financial instruments of
the Group that are measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are disclosed
by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

48.3 AF{EfEE

RSB KRR AFB A FEE
EAREHSHIA  BETHIA
AR ERT RS

— REBEEEMSTHREESLA
BEOREABRREE —E
) -

—  FERAMERRENLINY
BASE  BEBASE AT
B (BDanfE#R) skE# (Bl M
BRTE)REEXBEBRR
BH(E-EBH) -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

270

48.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. For the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, instruments included in level
1 comprise listed shares classified as financial assets at
FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Instruments included in level 2 comprise unlisted
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 48.3 AP EMGE (&)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. Instruments included in level 3 comprise financial
assets at FVOCI (2020: financial assets at FVOCI and
derivative financial assets) that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market as of 31 December
2021.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include: Quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments. Other techniques, such as
discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial instruments.

i — &l sk 2 (A B A o A BUR I FEAR
BEABEMSEIEETE - BIZRT
H@BIAE=ZBR - IIAF=E
ANTAREAFEFAREMER
WEmeREE(—T_FF &
NTFEFARMEEEENSHE
ERTESREE) BE-_T——
FHZR=+—BUEERTISR

& -

RABESR T ABENTEME
AR RRIANMISREL
RHEHME - EbTE - PIIARLIR
RBeRENN - ARARNETH &
TRTANRFE-
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 48.3 A {EMLE (&)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets THREZZEZ_—FRZZT_FF
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2021 and +-—A=+t—HEAFEFEHK
2020: SEEMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-EBR EER E=ER Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZB=——%&
+=-A=+-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABEN
SREE 310,955 15,545 - 326,500
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAEME
BlR&zeMEE 262,493 - 15,376 277,869
573,448 15,545 15,376 604,369
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZfF
+=-A=+—-H
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEF ABEN
EREE 454,056 21,000 = 475,056
Financial assets at FVOC| BAFEFAELME
BElR&EeMEE 451,437 - 27,244 478,681
Derivative financial assets TESRMEE
— put option — AL - = 32,044 32,044
905,493 21,000 59,288 985,781
There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level MEEEANTEE— —LK=ERH
3 during the years. 2B o
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 48.3 AP EMGE (&)

TREFE

“ERERMEECE

The following table presents the changes in level 3

financial assets:

Derivative
Financial asset  financial assets
at FvoCl — put option
BRAFETA
Hitt 2 E K2 fTELMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE_TF—H—H 66,714 13,753
Fair value loss of financial assets at FVOCI AT ETAEMEE KA
recognised in FVOC| reserve AR A T ER AEME
BN eREENATE
BiEEtE (39,470) -
Fair value gain of derivative financial assets ~ T4 & BEE 2 AFEK
— put option recognised in profit or loss  Z— R IR P HER - 18,291
At 31 December 2020 and at 1 January RZEZE $‘|‘ A=+—H
2021 kZZ=—%—H—H 27,244 32,044
Fair value loss of financial assets at FVOCI XA FEFT A E A 2 E IR H
recognised in FVOCI reserve FEEAIRA T ER AEME
AW ENeREENRTE
BEE (11,868) -
Disposal BTk - (33,357)
Fair value gain of derivative financial MTEemMEEL RN TE
assets — put option recognised in st — REEAREER
profit or loss P ER - 1,313
At 31 December 2021 RZZ-_—F+-A=+—H 15,376 -
Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group valued its Mi: R_E-_—FER-_ZTE-_TF+_-A

investments in unlisted shares classified as financial assets at
FVOCI using back-solve method and backsolve and calibration
method respectively which are not based on observable inputs.

=t—R AEEHSBREAFE
RAAHMEZEKGERNEREE 2
LA E 2 BIGE B I IR A E
R A BUR S BIHDE K EIR B

HEITIAE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.4Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. The following table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements.

48.4

48. B EMERE &)

ERAEARTTBEBAREN
DAV EFE(E=ZER)

AEEHNBRRESHEBHNEMF
HIENBE LRz HEREBANE
HARBEER TREDLLES
FZERAFEAEMEANEKX
TRBRBABBNE(LER

Relationship of
Fair value at Range unobservable
Description 31 December Valuation technique(s) Unobservable inputs (weighted average)  inputs to fair value
Rt=A=+-H L]E XL LD ¢
i WATE fEmE TUREGALE (WEFSE)  ATENBE
2021 2020 2020
ZEC-f el “2C%E
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn R
Unlisted equity 15,376 20,936 Market approach using Volatility Volatility 55% 50%  The higher the volatility, the
securities backsolve method (2020: higher the fair value
using backsolve and
calibration method)
¥ ETRAES RERAEEE(CT-EE: i RiE RiEds AATEER
RERMEEMRES)
[k
Earnings Earnings - 20-37 The higher the eamings
multiplier muliplier multiplier, the higher
the fair value
BEARY BAIfEE BAIfEEER  AATEERS
Unlisted equity - 6,308 Combination of cost approach ~ Volatility Volatility - 40%  The higher the volatility, the
securities and market approach using higher the fair value
equity allocation method
¥ PR FRRAZEERARE. B RiE REHE - AIRTEES
ikt
Derivative financial - 32,044 Income approach - Glory Sun Land's - HKS0.01 The higher the share price,
assets — Put option share price the higher the fair value
e BEE LN S - ENENRE REES HATEER
- Fair value of the - 1% The higher the fair value of
acquired the acquired company,
company the lower the fair value
- BRERAN BRELANATENES
AYE ARFEAE
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.5Group's valuation processes 48.5 AEB 2 HERF

The Group’s finance department performs the valuations
of financial assets required for financial reporting
purposes. The level 1 and level 2 fair values of financial
assets are measured by reference to quoted market
prices. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
has engaged independent professionally qualified valuer,
Duff & Phelps (2020: Duff & Phelps and Valtech Valuation
Advisory Limited), to assist the Group in determining the
fair value of financial instruments in level 3 for financial
reporting purposes. The responsibility for determining the
fair value rests with the Group.

At each financial year end, the finance department
reviews all significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments used to measure the fair values of financial
instruments in level 3. Changes in level 2 and 3 fair values
are analysed at each reporting date. As part of that
discussion, the finance department presents a report that
explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

48.6 Fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost approximate their carrying
amounts.

48.7 Offsetting financial instruments

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements.

NEBZ M PETIM SRS B
MRS RMEEME - F—EBRK
F_EACBMEEAFENZRED
BHREFE HET-_—F+=
A=+—HIEFE  ~&EERE
BYBREAERGEMBERHE
TEBERAT(ZE T4 EHE
RARFHERAT) BB ARESR
ABYBEREENEETE -ERDR
TEAMATE BTAFENEME
FERAER -

REFBFER - MBS EH
FHREAEE=ERAERIAR
FENAEEAFABENBIER
HERFE - F_EBRALRE=ZEBHRAR
FEEHREBEBRS AHETY
o tEREmZ — 8D - HI5ERFT
SEX—MBREATEZHRED
W& -

486 EMEMEATENERMEER

TREENAFE

HEHENAGTENEREER TR
BEMNAFEEEREERS

48.7 KEEem T E

TERPIENBEEARTBHEIIE
B R FEE R B LR
BRORNETREERSRAE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 48. B EMERE &)

48.7 Offsetting financial instruments (Continued) 48.7 TR T A (&)

As at 31 December 2021
R=B=-%+=A=+-H

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

BREASHEE
k3
HK$'000
TRT

Trade receivables

el B S8R 733,938

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial

liabilities
set off in the
consolidated
statement of

financial
position
BRAR
FRUBRRR
EENERARE
#eHl
HKS'000
TiEx

(173,615)

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position

FREHRR
RP25IER
AEFE
HKS$'000
Fign

560,323

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
FRGEBBRARD
EHNERLE

Financial
instruments
otherthan  Cash collateral

cash collateral received

RESERRD
HEmIA
HK$'000
TAL

EUREER
HKS'000
TEn

Net amount

R
HK$'000
TR

560,323

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities
BREAR
RAEBHRRR
EHNEREE
8ty
HKS'000
TAR

Trade and bill payables EfHE SEHR

276

ERRE 378,964

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets
set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
BRAR
GREBHAR
EHNEREE
Ekx
HK$'000
TARL

(173,615)

As at 31 December 2021
RZE=-%+=R=1-H

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position

FRUBHR
RP25IER
AEFE
HKS$'000
TiEn

205,349

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
RAGREHAR AR
BHENEBSE
Financial
instruments
Cash collateral
received

other than
cash collateral

RELEARD
HEMIE
HK$000
TAx

EURLER
HK$'000
TR

Net amount

B8
HK$'000
Ti7

205,349
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

48.7 Offsetting financial instruments (Continued)

48. MIERAREE &)
48.7 EiHEmMIT B (&)

As at 31 December 2020
A\ZEZF+-R=1-H
Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement

Gross amounts of of financial position
recognised  Net amounts of ARGRRBRART
financial liabilities ~ financial assets iglvEl e
setoffinthe  presented in the Financial
(Gross amounts consolidated consolidated instruments
of recognised statement of statement of otherthan  Cash collateral
financial assets ~ financial position ~ financial position ~ cash collateral received Net amount
ERRR BRI
FaUBRAE HeUBRRR FaMBRRR
EHmeRaE HHENeREE P2IeREE RREEARH
BeE ae8 e MERIE  SURSER FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn T AT T
Trade receivables EREFER 1,250,186 (865,330) 384,856 - = 384,856
As at 31 December 2020
R-Z2-RF+-A=1-H
Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
Gross amounts of of financial position
recognised  Net amounts of ARGRIBRART
financial assets  financial liabilties bigeliopilka
setoffinthe  presented in the Financial
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated instruments
of recognised statement of statement of otherthan  Cash collateral
financial liabilities ~ financial position ~ financial position ~ cash collateral received Net amount
BLEN EERR
GRUMBMAR GAMBRRR HAMBRRE
EHNERAE HHNERAE P2IERARE BRLERARN
Ee8 &e8 HE MEBMIE  CUGSHER w8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn TR TET TR
Trade and bill payables BB SRR
EARE 4,595,791 (865,330) 3,730,461 - - 3,730,461
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49.

278

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to mortgage loans arranged
for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in the PRC of
approximately HK$54,615,000 (2020: HK$628,430,000).
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group will be
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks whilst the Group will then
be entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. Such guarantees will terminate upon
issuance of the relevant property ownership certificates. The
directors of the Company consider that the likelihood of default
in payments by purchasers is minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence.

Save as those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following significant related party
transactions during the period.

(a) Key management compensation
Key management includes the board of directors and the

chief executive, and their compensation disclosed as
follows:

f 3 SO 065 e A P

50. @EE TR 5

NEENERXEEES S — T RERM
BREERREH S T REBEEATE
HE  EHEBRER - MEXHLRZES
FHRERTZEEIEA B

BRAME IR PAIREEE N - A%
BAHREEEATEANBR TS -
() TEEEEFHMH

TRERABBRESERITHAE
& HEBimEmT

Directors’ fees F5EE
Basic salaries, housing allowances,
other allowances and benefits in kind

Contributions to pension plans

EXFHE  BERR
H A28 MBS
RIREFBIHER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-ETF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

F#&T FHET

5,336 7,093

9,634 10,233

227 173

15,197 17,499
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50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Related parties balances

(9]

280

50. AR Z (&)

(b)

Other receivables from related
parties
Other payables to related parties

Loan from related parties

Loan and advances to related
parties

Corporate bonds subscribed by
a shareholder of the Company/
a director of the Company/
a director of a subsidiary of the
Company

Notes:

(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related

parties.

(ii) The transaction were entered into at terms mutually agreed with

ﬁ’r&ﬁ’ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂ JTH)

£ Q]

H o e BEHE 7 &Y
IR

BARE 7 B

18T RARE T BV E R
KB

ARE—HER
ARA—BES/

AR E— KB

RAZ—BER
RBHRAES

the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Related parties transactions

(ii)

(c)

Notes

B

BARK D B RRERER
2021 2020
—¥-—F il Sk 3
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
647 2,108
(5.492) (105,451)
- (220,000)
995,414 -
(227,000) (112,000

0] B HRBTAEEATE

(i)  ZERSTHRERE S LR E &
FRAKERERGBRPRIL ©

Sales of seafood HEgE

Interest expense and related MERX REEER
charges

Interest expenses on corporate NAEHFNERAX
bond

Rental income GiERALN

Distribution costs PARTzI DN

Administrative expenses THREA

Notes:

(i) A director, Mr. Yao, has significant influence over the related

parties.

(ii) The transaction were entered into at terms mutually agreed with

the related party in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
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HEMAERS

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FHETT
= (1,323)

= 2,641

4,883 2,961
(1,104) =
4,046 4,159
9,400 36,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

0

On 14 January 2022, Shenzhen B&K New Energy Co.,
Limited (“Shenzhen B&K"), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into two separate
capital injection agreement with Shenzhen Baokai
Industries Company Limited (“Baokai Industries”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shenzhen
Hongxinglaihua Hotel Company Limited (“Hongxinglaihua
Hotel”), an independent third party, respectively.
Pursuant to the capital injection agreements, Shenzhen
B&K shall issue 280,000,000 subscription shares and
500,000,000 subscription shares, respectively, at a price
of RMB1 per subscription share.

Upon the completion date, the total registered capital of
Shenzhen B&K will be increased from RMB720,000,000
(equivalent to HK$864,000,000) to RMB1,500,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,800,000,000) and will be held as to
approximately 30.91% by Baokai Industries and 37.56%
by Hongxinglaihua Hotel. The equity interest held by the
Company in Shenzhen B&K will be diluted from 75.50%
t0 54.91%. The changes in the ownership interest do not
result in a loss of control over Shenzhen B&K. Shenzhen
B&K will remain as a subsidiary of the Company.

f 3 SO 065 e A P

51. EHEREE

(i)

RZEBE-_—F—A+WmA - FINH
gL R D AR QA RYF
gl KRARFEEEWBRT) DB
R EREEXEBRAR(ERE
¥ ARRZ2EMBRR) RFEY
6 BAE A T A IR A A ([ 98 Bk EE
BIE] — BB E =R MM E
BHEE Bk o BIBEE MR - R
YA EIL B REBR D AR 1
JC BB 1% 9 51 33 % 280,000,000 [i%
2 B& R% 19 2. 500,000,000 A% 72 B A%

T/'\ ®

e B HIE - ORI A AR
RAEEE B A R #720,000,0007T
(#8E 7 864,000,000 7 7T ) = A
R #1,500,000,0007C( 18 & R
1,800,000,0007%& 7T ) + I # i & 57
FEEAH3091% @ Mk E i E
B E B 4937.56% © D 7 RIRE
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51.

282

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
(Continued)

(i)~ On 28 January 2022, Glory Sun Financial Holdings
Limited (“GSFHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire 14.73% of all
issued shares in Golden Affluent Limited (“Golden
Affluent”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, at the consideration of HK$110,000,000.
Upon the completion date, Golden Affluent will become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of GSFHL and the Company.

Other than the disclosure above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, up to the date of this report,
there is no significant event identified by the management
subsequent to the reporting period.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(A) Property Held for Development and/or Sale:

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
SRR

REBEFREEZENSFE

(A) BHEBRR RHEZWE:

Approximate Estimated Equity
gross  Progress in date of attributable
Location Classification floorarea  development completion to the Group
A rEH
bk 28 BHER RIEE fizt ek B gD
(sq.m.)  (Note)
(FmK)  (KE)
Baoneng Taigu Plaza Residential 5629 Completedand up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, sale
Zhangjiang New District, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
ECANET € TIFE BTk
TREENTETHEREEABEI8EEK FHLR
Baoneng Taigu Plaza Commercial 28,494 Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, sale
Zhangjiang New District, Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
BaAdn [EES TIRE Bk
TRERNHETHEREEAE 8IS K21 iR
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 38,314  Completedand up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H25, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
Bl EES TIFE RE4
TREENTETHRBDRAES H25 LR
Baoneng Plaza Residential 371 Completedandupfor ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
C2)] Fx TIRHE Bk
IREBNTEIHRBTRAES H263 IR
Baoneng Plaza Commercial 16,994  Completed and up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
201 Ax TIHE RE4
TEEENTEINRETRAES H265R IR
Gangzhou Baoneng Centre Office 37,339  Completedand up for ~ Completed 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District, sale
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
EMER L BFE TIHE B
IEEBENTEIHRBTRAES H263R IR
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Yok vt I

(B) Property Held for Investment:

(B) HrFREME :

Approximate Equity
gross  Progress in Estimated date Lease attributable
Location Classification floorarea  development of completion  expiry  to the Group
goa Y] e |
L pix- | BEER RIEE EtmHEs  ORER  EER
(sq.m.)  (Note)
(Frx) (W)
Baoxin Technology Park (Phase 1-3) Office, Industrial, 426,878  Phase 1, 2:Inservice;  Aug 2022 2055 75.5%
No. 9 Bangkai Road, Guangming Gaoxin District, Shenzhen, the PRC Dormitory Phase 3: Groundwork
EHHRE (5 -2=8) B¥E 1% — ZH:RAER: 2002%8A
hERITRRRHE DA% Es B ETR
Tower 2, Lippo Centre, No. 89 Queenway, Hong Kong Office 880 Inservice Completed 2059 100%
BESREVRNETL2E 57 BRARR B
Baoneng Taigu Plaza Shopping Mall 22,868 Insenvice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. K21, No. 38 Meiguan Avenue, Zhangjiang New District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
FALH B0 RARR B
IRABMNTRITHREEAE 38R K Rt
Baoneng Plaza Shopping Mall 81,386 Insenvice Completed 2052 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
2] LT RARR BRR
IBERNMETHER TR AEEHEFHR
Baoneng Plaza Hotel 22,190 Internal decoration Aug 2022 2052 100%
Lot No. H26, Ganjiangyuan Avenue, Zhangjiangxin District,
Ganzhou City, Jiangxi Province
2] il REEE 2022%8R

IREENTETHRETREES H6
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